CHELTENHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Cheltenham Borough Council
Planning Committee

Meeting date: 19 September 2024
Meeting time: 6.00 pm

Meeting venue: Council Chamber - Municipal Offices

Membership:

Councillor Frank Allen, Councillor Glenn Andrews, Councillor Paul Baker (Vice-
Chair), Councillor Adrian Bamford, Councillor Garth Barnes (Chair), Councillor

Barbara Clark, Councillor Jan Foster, Councillor Andy Mutton, Councillor Tony

Oliver, Councillor Simon Wheeler and Councillor Suzanne Williams

Important notice — filming, recording and broadcasting of Council
meetings

This meeting will be recorded by the council for live broadcast online at
www.cheltenham.gov.uk and https://www.youtube.com/@cheltenhambc/streams
The Chair will confirm this at the start of the meeting.

If you participate in the meeting, you consent to being filmed and to the possible use
of those images and sound recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes.

If you have any questions on the issue of filming/recording of meetings, please
contact Democratic Services.

Speaking at Planning Committee
To find out more about Planning Committee or to register to speak, please click here.

Please note: the deadline to register to speak is 10.00am on the Wednesday before
the meeting.

Contact: democraticservices@cheltenham.gov.uk
Phone: 01242 264 246



http://www.cheltenham.gov.uk/
https://www.youtube.com/@cheltenhambc/streams
https://www.cheltenham.gov.uk/info/12/planning_and_development/652/planning_committee
mailto:democraticservices@cheltenham.gov.uk

Agenda

1 Apologies
2 Declarations of Interest
3 Declarations of independent site visits

4 Minutes of the last meeting (Pages 5 - 12)
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 15 August 2024.

5 Public Questions
6 Planning Applications

6a 22/01935/FUL Castle Dream Stud, Mill Lane (Pages 13 - 62)
Planning application documents

6b 23/01424/FUL & LBC Glenfall House, Mill Lane (Pages 63 - 134)
Planning application documents
Listed building application documents

6¢c 24/00631/FUL 3 Pittville Crescent Lane (Pages 135 - 154)
Planning application documents

6d 24/01323/FUL 1 Howell Road (Pages 155 - 160)
Planning application documents

7 Appeal Update (Pages 161 - 180)

8 Any other items the Chairman determines urgent and requires a decision


https://publicaccess.cheltenham.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=RKI3WOELMDX00
https://publicaccess.cheltenham.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=RZF4VIELI6T00
https://publicaccess.cheltenham.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=RZF4VJELI6U00
https://publicaccess.cheltenham.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=SBTFJVEL0M300
https://publicaccess.cheltenham.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=SHQPFPEL08300

Agenda ltem 4
Page 3

CHELTENHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Cheltenham Borough Council
Planning Committee
Minutes

Meeting date: 15 August 2024

Meeting time: 6.00 pm - 7.15 pm

In attendance:
Councillors:

Frank Allen, Glenn Andrews, Paul Baker (Vice-Chair), Adrian Bamford, Garth Barnes
(Chair), Barbara Clark, Jan Foster, Tony Oliver, Simon Wheeler and
Suzanne Williams

Also in attendance:

Tracey Birkinshaw (Director of Community & Economic Development), Chris Gomm
(Head of Development Management, Enforcement and Compliance), Victoria Harris
(Planning Officer), Michelle Payne (Senior Planning Officer), Michael Ronan
(Lawyer) and Ben Warren (Planning Officer)

1 Apologies

Apologies received from Councillor Mutton.

2 Declarations of Interest

There were none.

3 Declarations of independent site visits

Councillor Oliver visited North Place car park.
Councillor Andrews visited 6a and 6c.

4 Minutes of the last meeting

Minutes of the meetings held on 30 May and 13 June 2024 were approved and
signed as a true record.



Page 4

5 Public Questions

There were none.

6 Planning Applications

6a 24/00607/FUL 5 Bala Road (various properties)

The planning officer introduced the report as published.

There were no public speakers on the item.

The matter then went to Member questions and the responses were as follows:

The planning officer did not have that level of detail as Members were
concerned about the quality of the render that would be used, as they had
observed similar materials deteriorating quickly in other properties. However,
the planning officer explained that through condition 3 this could be looked at
and details shared with the Chair and Vice Chair.

A question was asked to the applicant whether the owners of the houses that
had been purchased could be approached to have works carried out
simultaneously at their own expense. However, the applicant was not present
and no response was received.

The planning officer explained that they did not have the level of detail
regarding the render and cladding as to whether it would have the potential to
make the properties too hot.

The matter then went to Member debate where the following points were raised:

Member highlighted that this is the second stage as properties have already
had this work completed in Dinas Road and that residents in Gwernant Road
have been chasing when this work will happen and that the member will
support this application.

In Hesters way a number of properties appear to have had this work done and
been finished in the same way and works well.

The legal officer reminded the committee that they should not duplicate existing
regulatory regimes, such as those governing the safety of cladding and fire ratings.
The role is as local planning authority and the applications need to be addressed in
that context.

The matter then went to the vote on the officer recommendation to permit:
For: Unanimous

6b 24/00973/FUL 15 Hillfield

The planning officer introduced the report as published.

There were no public speakers on this item.



Page 5

There were no member questions or debate.

The Chair clarified that the application was at committee as Cheltenham Borough
Council owns the property.

The matter then went to vote on the officer recommendation to permit:
For: Unanimous

6¢c 24/00236/FUL Car Park North Place

The planning officer introduced the report as published.

There were two public speakers on the item; an objector and the applicant in
support.

The Chair of the Cheltenham Civic Society in objection addressed the committee
and made the following points:

The Cheltenham Civic Society supports the principle of redevelopment of the
site for housing. Although this scheme is below the standard for a town like
Cheltenham. Objections relate to the detail of the proposal.

The site is a prominent location, important in the central conservation area
and is surrounded by several impressive listed buildings.

The proposal fails to comply with S72 of the Planning Listed Building and
Conservation Area Act 1990 as it does not pay special attention to desirability
of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation
area. The plans fails to make reference to neighbouring buildings such as the
Grade II* listed St Margaret’s Terrace. Instead the proposed development has
lacklustre architecture, poor proportions, cheap detailing, weak terraced
housing and ugly, monolithic block of flats. The scheme could be built
anywhere and has no reference to the town’s design history.

The density of the development is too low at 114dph when compared to other
developments around the town centre. This site should be developed with
buildings at least five storeys high adding to Cheltenham’s housing stock,
improving the provision of affordable housing, enhancing the profitability of the
scheme and improving the architectural setting of this important site. Unable
to see why Cheltenham Borough Council’s minimum threshold of 20%
affordable housing cannot be met.

Sustainability is not at the heart of the proposal as it should have been.

The scheme will be dominated by moving and parked vehicles. There is
insufficient parking provision for future residents, which will impact
neighbouring streets. Parking should have been provided in an under croft as
seen in other developments in the town.

The strip between the rows of houses may look attractive. However, it
presents problems of continual maintenance. The boundary with Northfield
Passage is also poorly defined and will suffer similar problems.

More trees are needed, including street trees within the scheme, a
characteristic feature of Cheltenham and a requirement of the NPPF. Instead



Page 6

one existing tree in St Margaret’'s Road is to be removed against the tree
officers advice.

The applicant then addressed the committee in support and made the following

points:

The applicant introduced himself as the Managing Director of Wavensmere
Homes who co-own the North Place car park with BBS capital.

The development proposal is for 147 dwellings, comprising of 75 three
bedroom townhouses and 72 one and two bedroom apartments. This diverse
housing mix is designed to meet the needs of the local population.

The design has evolved through extensive feedback from stakeholders and
consultees. The site has a history of unfulfilled plans, with the Council first
earmarking it for sale in 2008. This has resulted in learning from this and the
application has been revised to address these concerns. The apartment
blocks massing has been reduced, improved pedestrian and cycle access and
enhanced public and private amenity spaces, ensuring the design respects
the nearby Grade II* St Margaret’s Terrace.

The scheme offers an opportunity to restore street scene, improving the site’s
poor condition which negatively impacts the conservation area and nearby
heritage assets. The redevelopment will enhance the areas character as
highlighted in the officer report.

The development addresses critical housing needs as the lack of a five-year
housing supply is well known.

The commitment to sustainability is evident in the design which aligns with the
SPD climate change policy. Energy efficiency has been prioritised through a
fabric first approach, aiming for EPC A ratings for the townhouses. The gas
free development will feature photovoltaic panels, air source heat pumps in
the townhouses and MVHR systems in the apartments. Each townhouse will
have electric vehicle charging points.

Significant biodiversity net gains will be achieved, 226% for habitats and
123% for hedgerows, exceeding the required 10%. The planting of 57 trees,
especially along street frontages. The development will offer both resident and
public amenity spaces, including specimen planting and informal play areas.
Pedestrian links will connect residents to key local areas like Pittville Park,
Clarence Square, the Brewery Quarter and the town centre. Through
partnership with the Cheltenham Paint Festival this will incorporate public art
to enhance the cultural value of the development.

There is ample cycle storage included within the apartments and townhouse
terraces. Parking will be available for the townhouses, residents of the
apartments will be encouraged to use alternative transport methods. Local
street parking permits will be unavailable to residents. However, reduced price
permits in the adjacent NCP car park have been procured.

Despite significant viability challenges 29 units will be designated as
affordable.

The matter then went to Member questions, the responses were as follows:

It was not specified that rainwater would be captured by water butts. However,
future residents could potentially install them. Surface water drainage is part
of the landscaping proposal.



Page 7

The planning officer did not know how many car parking permits would be
available for NCP car park. This had been secured independently by the
applicant and developer without involvement of the council. The planning
officer advised that members can only consider the scheme that has been
submitted and the parking provision that has been included within the
application.

It was confirmed that any future resident would be unable to apply for an on
street parking permit.

The planning officer was not aware of any land or soil conditions that
prevented the site from having under croft parking. Cost was a major factor
why is was not possible and in terms of viability as discussed in the report.
The application has been through an extensive pre application process and
the scheme has evolved and changed dramatically as result of feedback from
officers, consultees, heritage and urban designers. The application has had a
significant change in layout of the site. If the application was not approved it
would be for the developer to understand why the scheme was not acceptable
and to look to make any amendments.

Taller buildings had been presented and considered. However, following
feedback from conservation and heritage it was needed for the building to be
recessive to the St Margaret's terrace to prevent it from overpowering or
dominating the terrace. It also provides progression in heights within the street
scene along with Dowty House.

There will be an informative that residents will be unable to obtain on street
parking permits as this has been confirmed with Highways. Any future buyers
will be made aware of this through local searches.

No works are proposed to Northfield Passage as part of the development as
no works can be proposed to a public right of way without consent. However,
the intention is to open and improve the public right of way by taking away the
existing fence and walls. It has been confirmed that the levels of the site will
be taken down to match the public right of way.

There is no way to prevent people parking on the public right of way as this is
outside of the planning process. A condition has been suggested regarding
parking within the site in way of a scheme to control how people park outside
of the designated parking spaces. Whether that be signage or double yellow
lines.

The matter then went to member debate and the following points were made:

As developers there is an opportunity to recognise the history of a site. The
North Place car park development is on the site of a former company that
used to be important to Cheltenham known as the Black and White Coach
Company before becoming part of National Express. This site was hugely
significant for residents and therefore ask that the sites heritage and
memories be respected and not just wiped out as a redundant car park.
(Councillor Williams read out the above before Members questions and left
the meeting at 18:53 and took no further part in the committee)

Agree with the Chair of the Civic Society as these buildings are not interesting
and yet will be within a significant site and feel the design is poor and better
could have been done. Disappointed to lose a significant tree regardless that
the site will have new trees. Appreciate that it would require a redesign to



Page 8

keep the tree however, throughout the design process this could have been
addressed.

The scheme could have had more properties and increased the density.
Could argue that larger houses are not needed in the town centre and that
smaller properties are. Should have more parking for site as parking is
necessary regardless of town centre location.

Not happy with the application however, unsure if there are valid planning
reasons to refuse.

Disappointed with the scheme as there are many ways in which it falls short,
regarding the design of the townhouses which fails to meet the NDSS
requirements. The lack of parking provision for the 72 apartments as the
development will be replacing an existing car park and adding to parking
pressures on the town centre. The felling of a tree which was only recently
granted a TPO and the objection from the tree officer and failure for the
developer to take this into account is a cause for concern.

There are two major crises facing our country, a chronic shortage of housing
and the climate emergency. The benefits of site surpass its shortcomings.
Reassured that the report notes the council and the developer will be in
discussions about the townhouses design and NDSS requirements.

Access is adequate for service and delivery vehicles and the townhouses will
have a drive. The provision of a bike shed and proximity to the town centre
should help reduce the need for cars at the site.

The development will be sustainable and the scheme will deliver more on its
biodiversity net gain (BNG) requirement for habitats and hedgerows along
with provisions made for planting of new trees.

The development will help the council ambitions for net zero with the solar PV
panels on apartment rooftops, heat pumps at the townhouses and electric
vehicle charging points. The scheme will be a redevelopment of a brownfield
site and the application should be supported.

Whilst not against the development it is not possible to replace an existing
tree that has an established habitat for new trees as these will take a long
time to establish habitats.

On balance will support the application as it is a bonus that there is any
affordable housing within the scheme. Shame to lose the tree as it appears it
could have been saved had building been shifted along. However, the
planting in the middle of the scheme will be a benefit in the long term. Housing
is desperately needed in particular social housing and would be reluctant to
refuse application that contains affordable housing.

No application is ever perfect and members had meeting with the developer in
pre application process and the scheme has taken on board points that were
raised by members such as the BNG. Glad to have another development
within the town which will have no gas.

A member liked the finish of the buildings and said that the architects panel
didn’t oppose the materials being used. A positive is that there would be a
significant contribution to education and a smaller one to libraries. There are
no planning reasons to refuse the application and the council does not have a
five-year housing supply.

A member was critical of the Cheltenham Civic Society and took exception to
the un civic awards as they are unjust and hurtful. Agree with members that



Page 9

scheme could be better however, arguments to support the scheme are
excellent.

The matter then went to the vote on the officer recommendation to permit subject to
S106 agreement, conditions and informative:
For: Unanimous

A member asked about the possibility of a sign or plague that the site was once the
Black and White coach station. The Chair indicated that the applicant nodded that
this would be possible.

7 Appeal Update
Appeal details were noted for information.

8 Any other items the Chairman determines urgent and requires a decision

There were none.



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6a
Page 11

APPLICATION NO: 22/01935/FUL OFFICER: Michelle Payne

DATE REGISTERED: 1st November 2022 DATE OF EXPIRY: 27th December 2022

(extension of time agreed until 26th April 2024)
DATE VALIDATED: 1st November 2022 DATE OF SITE VISIT:

WARD: Battledown PARISH: Charlton Kings
APPLICANT: | Ms J Cox

AGENT: Heine Planning Consultancy

LOCATION: | Castle Dream Stud Mill Lane Charlton Kings
PROPOSAL:

Material change in use of land for mixed use for the keeping of horses with
stables and the stationing of caravans for residential use with associated

development (hard standing, utility block, dog run, fencing and gates)
(retrospective)

RECOMMENDATION: Permit subject to conditions

j ARE .\__’_.‘v.:fi",_., ’ -
‘ -‘g.l-—i\‘. L = AE0.3
_ T‘\_‘__ o

(wnjued

TTTTTeee— L wniYEd

f
\\ ﬁ }\%7\"‘\\ “‘

This site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copynght All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007



Page 12

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL

1.1 The application site is located to the north east side of Mill Lane, and the junction with Harp
Hill. The site lies within the Cotswolds National Landscape (former AONB) and outside of
the Principal Urban Area (PUA) of Cheltenham.

1.2

Planning permission (ref. 17/00129/FUL) was granted in 2017 for the “Change of use of
land for the permanent residential occupation by a traveller family, provision of day room,
retention of hardstanding, access, fencing, stables and use of associated land for keeping
of horses” in April 2017. The permission was granted by the planning committee on a
temporary 5 year basis, and subject to the following conditions:

1

The occupation of the site hereby permitted shall be carried on only by Mrs Cox and
any dependant relatives. The use shall cease on or before 21st April 2022.

When the land ceases to be occupied by the above named person(s) the use hereby
permitted shall cease and all caravans, structures, materials and equipment brought
onto or erected on the land, or works undertaken in connection with the use shall be
removed and the land should be restored to its condition before the use took place.

Reason: A personal temporary permission is given only to meet the specific needs of
the applicant in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Planning
Policy for Traveller Sites and Circular 11/95. To grant a permanent consent would
result in long term harm to the AONB, contrary to policy CO2 of the Local Plan and
the provisions of the NPPF.

No more than 2 caravans, as defined in the Caravan Sites and Control of
Development Act 1960 and Caravan Sites Act 1968, shall be stationed on the site at
any time (1 static caravan and 1 tourer).

Reason: In order to control the amount of structures and equipment on the land in
order to avoid adverse impact on the AONB, in accordance with policy CO2 of the
Local Plan.

The stable buildings and associated land hereby permitted shall not be used for any
other purposes than agriculture, the private stabling, keeping and exercise of horses,
the use of the site as a stud and other non-commercial equine uses. No other
commercial activities, including livery, shall take place on the land, including the
storage of materials, other than those ancillary to the uses listed above.

Reason: This is the basis upon which permission is sought and the Local Planning
Authority wishes to have the opportunity of exercising control over any subsequent
use in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Planning Policy for
Traveller Sites and Circular 11/95.

No more than one commercial vehicle shall be kept on the land for use by the
occupiers of the caravans hereby permitted and shall not exceed 7.5 tonnes in weight.

Reason: The parking of large vehicles would detract from the amenity of the area and
therefore should be limited, in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework, Planning Policy for Traveller Sites and Circular 11/95.

Prior to the erection of the day room hereby permitted details relating to siting and the
materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the building shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The building
shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details.



1.3

14

15

1.6

1.7

Page 13

Reason: To ensure the building has an acceptable appearance and impact upon the
AONB, in accordance with policy CO2 of the Local Plan.

The above-referenced 2017 permission was granted following the previous grant of two
earlier temporary 3 year permissions (ref. 10/01839/COU and 13/01459/COU); the 2010
application being allowed on appeal in September 2011.

This application is now seeking a material change in use of the land for the keeping of
horses with stables and the stationing of caravans for residential use (two mobile homes
and a touring caravan) with associated development (hard standing (including storage of 1-
2 touring caravans for travelling), utility block, dog run, fencing and gates) on a permanent
basis. The application is retrospective; the most recent permission having expired in 2022.

For the avoidance of doubt, the two stable blocks already benefit from planning permission
on a permanent basis.

The application is before the planning committee due to an objection from the Parish
Council. The Parish Council’s main concern relates to the impact of the proposals on the
AONB, being out-of-keeping and visually intrusive; their full response can be found in the
appendix at the end of the report. The application was also called to committee by former
councillor Matt Babbage.

Members will visit the site on planning view.

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Constraints:
Cotswolds National Landscape

Relevant Planning History:

10/01839/COU REFUSED 10th February 2011
Change of use from agricultural to residential occupation by a gypsy family with the stationing
of two caravans and erection of an ancillary "day room" building and construction of new
access, hardstanding and associated landscaping. Retention of stable building for the
purpose of keeping horses *ALLOWED ON APPEAL*

12/00271/CLPUD CERTIFICATE ISSUED 29th March 2012
Vehicular access and permeable hardstanding

13/01459/COU PERMIT 6th August 2014
Change of use of land for the permanent residential occupation by a traveller family, retention
of day room, hardstanding, access, fencing, stables and use of associated land for keeping
of horses

17/00129/FUL PERMIT 26th April 2017

Change of use of land for the permanent residential occupation by a traveller family, provision
of day room, retention of hardstanding, access, fencing, stables and use of associated land
for keeping of horses

3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE

National Planning Policy Framework 2023 (NPPF)
Section 2 Achieving sustainable development
Section 4 Decision-making

Section 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities
Section 9 Promoting sustainable transport

Section 11 Making effective use of land




Page 14

Section 12 Achieving well-designed places
Section 14 Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Section 15 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

Adopted Cheltenham Plan 2020 (CP) Policies
D1 Design

GI2 Protection and replacement of trees

GI3 Trees and Development

Adopted Joint Core Strategy 2017 (JCS) Policies
SD3 Sustainable Design and Construction

SD4 Design Requirements

SD6 Landscape

SD7 The Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
SD9 Biodiversity and Geodiversity

SD10 Residential Development

SD11 Housing Mix and Standards

SD13 Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople
SD14 Health and Environmental Quality

INF1 Transport Network

INF2 Flood Risk Management

Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents
Cotswolds National Landscape Management Plan (2023 — 2025)
Planning Policy for Traveller Sites (2015)

4. CONSULTATION RESPONSES

See appendix at end of report
5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

5.1 Letters of notification were sent to 62 nearby properties on receipt of the application, and a
site notice was posted in proximity to the site.

5.2 An additional round of consultation was carried out on receipt of revised plans.

5.3 In response to the publicity, 18 representations have been received in objection to the
proposal. The representations have been circulated in full to Members but the main
concerns/comments are summarised below:

The granting of a permanent permission

Horses not a permanent feature on the site

A permanent permission would allow for more caravans on the site
Septic tank is smelly and has overflowed in the past
Site is being overdeveloped

Light pollution

Site entrance is out-of-keeping

Parking issues

Permission will set a precedent

Trees and hedging have been removed

Not appropriate development within the AONB

The term ‘family’ is open to broad interpretation
Another temporary permission should be granted
Additional access formed

Devaluation of surrounding properties



Page 15

6. OFFICER COMMENTS

6.1

6.2

Determining issues

6.1.1 The key considerations in determining this application relate to the principle of
development; landscape impact; neighbouring amenity; and highway matters.

Principle of development / policy context

6.2.1 Paragraph 60 of the NPPF highlights the importance of ensuring ‘that a sufficient
amount and variety of land can come forward where it is needed [and] that the needs of
groups with specific housing requirements [including travellers] are addressed...”.

6.2.2 Planning Policy for Traveller Sites (PPTS) sets out how travellers’ housing needs
should be assessed. In this regard, the Strategic Land Use Team (SLU) have been
consulted on the application and their comments can be read in full in the attached
appendix. SLU advise that a new Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA)
was undertaken in November 2022, which covers the period 2021-2041; the GTAA
recommends that there is an accommodation need for 6 pitches within the 2021-26 period
and a further accommodation need of 3 pitches within the period of 2026-41. The Council
has a duty to meet this need.

6.2.3 SLU go on to note that two of the required pitches in the period 2021-26 could be
provided through the grant of a permanent permission on this site. SLU also highlight that
the GTAA recognises that there are no authorised Gypsy/Travellers sites within the
borough, and therefore it would not be possible for the current occupiers of the site to move
to other suitable accommodation within Cheltenham. Additionally, no other sites have been
identified as being readily available for such land use through the Council’s 2023 ‘Call for
Sites’ for Gypsy, Roma, Traveller & Travelling Showpeople. As such, there is no doubt that
there is an established need which weighs heavily in favour of the application. Indeed, the
most recent GTAA shows the need has increased.

6.2.4 In all cases, Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and
Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 require applications for planning
permission to be determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

6.2.5 In Cheltenham, the development plan comprises saved policies of the Cheltenham
Borough Local Plan Second Review 2006 (CBLP); adopted polices of the Cheltenham Plan
2020 (CP); and adopted policies of the Tewkesbury, Gloucester and Cheltenham Joint Core
Strategy 2017 (JCS). Other material considerations include the NPPF, and Planning
Practice Guidance (PPG).

6.2.6 In determining applications, NPPF paragraph 11 sets out a “presumption in favour of
sustainable development” which means:

c¢) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission
unless:
i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or



6.3

Page 16

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework
taken as a whole.

6.2.7 Adopted JCS policy SD13 states that:

Proposals for new permanent and temporary, residential and transit Gypsy, Traveller
and Travelling Showpeople sites will be assessed against the following criteria:

i. Proposals on sites in areas of sensitive landscape will be considered in
accordance with Policy SD6 (Landscape Policy) and Policy SD7 (The
Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty). In all other locations the
proposal must not have an unacceptable impact on the character and
appearance of the landscape and the amenity of neighbouring properties, and
should be sensitively designed to mitigate any impact on its surroundings.

ii. The site has safe and satisfactory vehicular and pedestrian access to the
surrounding principal highway network.

iii. No significant barriers to development exist in terms of flooding, poor
drainage, poor ground stability or proximity to other hazardous land or
installation where other forms of housing would not be suitable.

iv. The site is situated in a suitable location in terms of access to local
amenities, services and facilities, including schools, shops, health services,
libraries and other community facilities.

v. The site can be properly serviced and is supplied with essential services,
such as water, power, sewerage and drainage, and waste disposal. The site
should also be large enough to enable vehicle movements, parking and
servicing to take place, having regard to the number of pitches/plots on site,
as well as enabling access for service and emergency vehicles, including
circulation space along with residential amenity and play areas.

6.2.8 Therefore, in itself, there is no fundamental reason to suggest that the permanent
residential occupation of this site by a gypsy or traveller family would be unacceptable in
principle; the policy does not preclude permanent sites within the AONB.

6.2.9 The gypsy/traveller status of the applicant has been established through previous
appeals and decisions, and that is not in dispute.

Design, layout and landscape impact

6.3.1 As previously identified, the application site is sensitively located within the Cotswolds
National Landscape (former AONB) and therefore as per criteria (i) of JCS policy SD13, the
application must be considered in accordance with adopted JCS policies SD6 and SD7.

6.3.2 Policy SD6 seeks to ensure that developments protect landscape character “for its
own intrinsic beauty and for its benefit to economic, environmental and social well-being”
and requires development proposals to have regard to the local distinctiveness and historic
character of the landscape, and demonstrate how the development will protect or enhance
landscape character and avoid detrimental effects.

6.3.3 Policy SD7 goes on to state that “All development proposals within the setting of the
Cotswolds AONB will be required to conserve and, where appropriate, enhance its
landscape, scenic beauty, wildlife, cultural heritage and other special qualities. Proposals
will be required to be consistent with the policies set out in the Cotswolds AONB
Management Plan.”



6.4

Page 17

6.3.4 Additionally, NPPF paragraphs 180 and 182 require decisions on planning application
to contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment, with ‘great weight’ to be
given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in AONBs.

6.3.5 With reference to the above policy requirements, the concerns of the parish council
and the objectors in relation to landscape harm have been duly noted, as have the
comments of the Appeal Inspector in allowing the original temporary permission in 2011;
the Inspector finding that the change of use of the land to a Gypsy and Traveller site would
conflict with the primary purposes of conserving or enhancing the natural beauty of the
AONB, albeit that the “actual visual harm would be relatively limited”.

6.3.6 In this context, the Inspector considering a temporary personal permission to “be
appropriate and reasonable until such times as less harmful, alternative sites may be
identified and brought forward through the JCS process.” It can therefore be reasonably
assumed that the Inspector initially granted a temporary permission on the basis that by the
expiration of the temporary three year consent, there would have likely been a change of
circumstances, and the Council would have identified alternative sites within the borough
that would be available to the applicants; albeit, the JCS does not look to allocate specific
sites but to assess sites against the criteria set out within JCS policy SD13 (refer to
paragraph 6.2.7 above).

6.3.7 Furthermore, contrary to the views of the parish council and local objectors, the
Cotswolds National Landscape Board (CNLB), having considered the applicant’'s
submission and the previous planning history related to the site, on balance, raise no
objection to the application. Their full and detailed comments on the proposal can be found
in the appendix below.

6.3.8 That said, CNLB in their initial response did highlight the lack of information in relation
to lighting; NPPF paragraph 191(c) setting out the need for planning decisions to ensure
that development is appropriate to its location and limits “the impact of light pollution from
artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark landscapes and nature conservation”.
Planning Practice Guidance identifying ‘Intrinsically dark landscapes’ as those that are
“entirely, or largely, uninterrupted by artificial light” (Paragraph: 001 Reference ID: 31-001-
20191101). CNLB therefore recommended that, if minded to grant permission, the Council
should seek additional detail to mitigate any adverse impact; limiting external lighting to low-
level, down facing lights. In the board’s revised response, they continue to raise no
objection.

6.3.9 As such, officers are satisfied that only relatively limited harm to the AONB would be
caused by the development. Although the wider site covers some 2.4 hectares, the buildings
and caravans are relatively tightly grouped together and cover only a small portion of the
site. Indeed, as previously noted, the Inspector in the 2010 appeal decision found that the
actual visual harm was relatively limited. However, whilst limited, this harm should be
afforded moderate weight.

6.3.10 Details of all external lighting to be installed/retained can be suitably secured by
condition.

Access and highway safety

6.4.1 Criterion (ii) and (iv) of JCS policy SD13 require the site to have a safe and satisfactory
vehicular and pedestrian access, and be suitably located in terms of access to local
amenities.

6.4.2 The site is considered to have a safe and suitable access, and officer report to
committee in 2017 confirmed that the Highways Officer at that time raised no objection in
terms of highway safety. The entrance gates are set back sufficiently far back from the
highway to allow for vehicles to pull off the lane to avoid any obstruction of the highway.



6.5

6.6

Page 18

6.4.3 Notwithstanding the above, officers acknowledge that the site is not well served in
terms of access to local amenities, and that occupiers will likely be reliant on the use of a
motor vehicle; however, in an appeal decision (Appeal ref. APP/B3030/W/22/3304814) on
a site identified as being located away from facilities necessary for day to living, the
Inspector, whilst acknowledging that the occupiers of the site “‘would be permanently reliant
on the private car rather than sustainable transport to reach services and facilities. Walking
to the local bus stop would not necessarily be safe, given the absence of street lighting and
pavements” and that only a limited bus service was available, found that “Given the size of
the site and the number of pitches proposed, this would have no more than a moderate
adverse effect.” Officers are therefore satisfied that that same applies here.

6.4.4 It is also noteworthy that the Inspector in the 2010 appeal decision found the
application site to be “reasonably sustainably located”.

Drainage, flooding and servicing

6.5.1 In addition to the above, criterion (iii) and (v) of JCS policy SD13 advise that no
significant barriers to development “ should exist in terms of flooding [and] poor drainage...”
and the site must be “supplied with essential services, such as water, power, sewerage and
drainage, and waste disposal”.

6.5.2 Criterion (v) also requires the site to be large enough to enable vehicle movements,
parking and servicing, and access for service and emergency vehicles, together with
circulation space and residential amenity and play areas.

6.5.3 The site is located in Flood Zone 1, and at a low risk of surface water flooding
(Environment Agency long term flood risk service online); as such, there are no concerns
in relation to flooding.

6.5.4 With regard to sewerage and drainage, the site is serviced by a septic tank/soakaway
system. The concerns raised by the objectors in relation to the septic tank have been duly
noted; however, Environmental Health (EH) wrote to the applicant in March last year (since
the initial submission of the application) to confirm that, following dye testing to ascertain
whether any effluent was leaching on to the adjacent road, works carried out by the
applicant to rectify earlier drainage problems had been sufficient to prevent further sewage
leaks. EH have also confirmed that no further complaints have been received since their file
was closed in April 2023.

6.5.5 The site is also large enough to enable the necessary vehicle movements, parking
and servicing, and access for service and emergency vehicles, together with circulation
space and residential amenity areas.

Other considerations

6.6.1 It is noted that is it suggested in the objections that a permanent grant of planning
permission would have the potential to result in additional caravans on the site and that it
would set a precedent but officers dispute this, as there is no evidence to demonstrate this.
Any additional pitch provision would require the submission of a planning application.

6.6.2 In addition, the impact of development on neighbouring property values (a purely
private interest) is not a material consideration in determining an application for planning
permission.

Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED)

6.6.3 As set out in the Equalities Act 2010, all public bodies, in discharging their functions
must have “due regard” to this duty. There are three main aims:



Page 19

¢ Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected
characteristics;

e Taking steps to meet the needs of people with certain protected characteristics
where these are different from the needs of other people; and

e Encouraging people with certain protected characteristics to participate in public life
or in other activities where participation is disproportionately low.

6.6.4 Whilst there is no absolute requirement to fully remove any disadvantage, the duty is
to have “regard to” and remove OR minimise disadvantage and in considering the merits of
this planning application, the planning authority has taken into consideration the
requirements of the PSED.

6.6.5 In the context of the above PSED duties, this proposal is considered to be acceptable.

7. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

Whilst the development would result in some limited permanent harm to the AONB, and the
site is not particularly well served in terms of access to local amenities; the proposed
development does conflict with JCS policy SD13 to some extent. However, the identified
harm must be weighed against other material considerations; in this case, the ongoing
unmet need for pitch provision within the borough. Officers consider this unmet need carries
significant weight and therefore clearly outweighs the harm in this particular case.

The permanent grant of planning permission on this site would provide for two pitches which
would contribute towards the accommodation needs identified within the GTAA. The
Council has a duty to meet this need.

As such, on balance, the recommendation therefore is to grant planning permission on a
permanent and non-personal basis, subject to the schedule of conditions set out below.

Officers do not consider the granting of a further temporary permission to be appropriate.
Planning Practice Guidance (Paragraph: 014 Reference ID: 21a-014-20140306) advises
that it is rarely justifiable to grant consecutive temporary permissions “(except in cases
where changing circumstances provide a clear rationale, such as temporary classrooms
and other school facilities)”. It goes on to state that “Further permissions can normally be
granted permanently or refused if there is clear justification for doing so.”

That said, members must keep in mind that if this application were to be refused and
enforcement action taken, there is currently no alternative provision for the applicant and
their family within the borough; the Council having failed for some time now to bring forward
any long-term provision. Furthermore, the Inspector in the 2010 appeal decision stated that
“Eviction from a site which meets all of their requirements, with no prospect of anywhere
else to go, would amount to interference with their rights under Article 8 of the European
Convention of Human Rights (ECHR).”

With regard to issuing a temporary and/or personal permission by way of conditions there
are useful appeal decisions on applications elsewhere within England which are pertinent
to this application.

In one such appeal decision (ref. APP/T0355/W/22/3300618) within an area of Green Belt
(wherein gypsy sites are inappropriate development) the Inspector found “that the matters
in favour of the appeal scheme, namely the substantial and persistent unmet need for sites,
together with the ongoing failure of policy” would clearly outweigh the identified harm to the
Green Belt (which the Inspector afforded substantial weight); and as a result, determined
that a condition limiting the permission to a temporary permission was no longer appropriate
and that a permanent permission was warranted.



7.8

7.9

7.10

Page 20

In the same appeal decision, the Inspector goes on to state that as it was the circumstances
in respect of the need for sites and the failure of policy that justified the grant of planning
permission, not the occupiers’ personal circumstances, a condition restricting the
permission to a personal one, was not reasonable or necessary. Instead, they imposed a
condition which limited the occupancy of the site to Gypsies and Travellers in general. The
condition was not linked to Gypsies and Travellers as defined in Annex A of the PPTS, as
the Court of Appeal in Smith “held that the exclusion of Travellers who have ceased to travel
permanently is discriminatory and has no legitimate aim.”

The Inspector in the appeal decision referenced at paragraph 6.4.3 above also found that
circumstances existed which justified a permanent permission without a temporary or
personal condition; finding that harm in relation to location and access to services, and the
effect on the character and appearance of the area, would be clearly outweighed by the
significant weight afforded to the benefits of the additional pitches given that there was a
unmet need and a lack of alternative sites.

To reiterate, officers therefore recommend that planning permission be granted on a
permanent and non-personal basis, subject to the conditions below. To grant a further
temporary, personal consent would result in ongoing uncertainty to the applicant and would
also mean that the Council still has an unmet need.

8. SUGGESTED SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS

1

The planning permission hereby granted relates to the approved plans listed in Schedule
1 of this decision notice.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

The site shall not be occupied by any persons other than Gypsies and Travellers, defined
as persons of nomadic habit of life whatever their race or origin, including such persons
who on grounds only of their own or their family’s or dependants’ educational or health
needs or old age have ceased to travel temporarily or permanently, but excluding
members of an organised group of travelling showpeople or circus people travelling
together as such.

Reason: Planning permission has been granted to provide accommodation solely for
gypsies and travellers who satisfy the above definition in order to contribute towards the
Local Planning Authority’s identified unmet need for gypsy and travellers accommodation
within the borough. Any alternative occupation of the site requires further consideration
by the Local Planning Authority, having regard to the provisions of the development plan.

No more than 2 pitches comprising 2 mobile homes and 1 touring caravan shall be
occupied on the site, and no more than 2 touring caravans for travelling shall be stored
on the site, at any time, in accordance with Plan 2: Proposed Site Layout Plan.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. This is the
basis upon which permission is sought and the Local Planning Authority wishes to have
the opportunity of exercising control over any subsequent use.

Within 3 months of the date of this decision, details of all external lighting shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The lighting will be
limited to low-level, down-facing lights to minimise overspill and light pollution. External
lighting shall thereafter only be installed/retained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To preserve the landscape character, and conserve the dark skies, of the
Cotswolds National Landscape, having regard to policies SD4 and SD6 of the adopted
Joint Core Strategy (2017), paragraph 185(c) of the National Planning Policy Framework



Page 21

(2023), and policy CES5 of the Cotswolds National Landscape Management Plan 2023-
2025.



Page 22
CONSULTATIONS APPENDIX

Cotswolds National Landscape Board

1st December 2022

Thank you for consulting the Cotswolds Conservation Board (‘the Board’) on this proposed
development, which would be located within the Cotswolds National Landscape.

In reaching its planning decision, the local planning authority (LPA) has a statutory duty to
have regard to the purpose of conserving and enhancing the natural beauty of the National
Landscape. The Board recommends that, in fulfilling this ‘duty of regard’, the LPA should: (i)
ensure that planning decisions are consistent with relevant national and local planning policy
and guidance; and (ii) take into account the following Board publications:

» Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) Management Plan 2018-2023
(link);

+ Cotswolds AONB Landscape Character Assessment particularly, in this instance, with
regards to Landscape Character Type (LCT) 2 Escarpment and 7 High Wold;

» Cotswolds AONB Landscape Strategy and Guidelines particularly, in this instance, with
regards to LCT 2 (link), including Section 2.1 and LCT 7, including Section 7.1;

*» Cotswolds AONB Local Distinctiveness and Landscape Change;

» Cotswolds Conservation Board Position Statements particularly, in this instance, with
regards to The Keeping of Horses and Ponies, Tranquillity and the Dark Skies and Artificial
Light Position Statement and its appendices.

Having considered the applicant’s submission and the previous planning history related to
the site, the Board does not object to this application for the reasons outlined in Annex 1
below.

Without prejudice, if the local authority is minded to grant planning permission, we have made
some recommendations regarding planning conditions which the local authority may consider
to ensure the conservation and enhancement of the landscape and scenic beauty of the
National Landscape.

ANNEX 1 COTSWOLDS NATIONAL LANDSCAPE CONSULTATION RESPONSE IN
RELATION TO PLANNING APPLICATION

Paragraphs 174 and 176 of the National Planning Policy Framework (‘NPPF’) provide the
highest status of protection for the landscape and scenic beauty of AONBSs, including the
Cotswolds National Landscape. Paragraph 174 states that planning decisions should both
contribute to and enhance the natural environment by protecting and enhancing valued
landscapes in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in the
development plan. Paragraph 176 then outlines the ‘great weight' to be given to the
conservation and enhancement of the landscape and scenic beauty of AONBs.

Policy SD6 of the Cheltenham, Gloucester and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy requires
development to protect landscape character for its own intrinsic beauty and for its benefit to
economic, environmental, and social well-being. This reflects advice in the NPPF that
requires policies and decisions to recognise the intrinsic character and beauty of the
countryside. Policy SD7 of the JCS states that all development proposals within the setting
of the Cotswolds National Landscape will be required to conserve and, where appropriate,
enhance its landscape, scenic beauty, wildlife, cultural heritage, and other special qualities.
Proposals will also be required to be consistent with the policies set out in the Cotswolds
AONB Management Plan.

The Cheltenham Plan, adopted in 2020, states at paragraph 8.3 that because of its attractive
character, which derives from its built form as well as the landscape of the scarp edge, and
its location on the urban fringe, the AONB in the Borough is particularly sensitive to
development pressures. A restrictive approach is therefore necessary to conserve and



Page 23

enhance both of these elements. The Council considers it particularly important to protect
the scarp as the dominant feature of Cheltenham’s setting and is concerned at the cumulative
effect of even small-scale development and of development in new locations within the
AONB.

The Landscape Character, Sensitivity and Capacity Assessment of the Cotswold AONB
within Cheltenham Borough was published in April 2015 (updated May 2016). The application
site is situated within site reference LCA 10.11 (Greenway Wooded Pasture Slopes). The
assessment suggests that the character area has an overall landscape constraint score of
‘major’ and that the landscape capacity for development is ‘low’. However, we acknowledge
that the current application site was in residential use when the study was undertaken so
does not, in a sense, represent ‘new’ development.

The Board is aware of the previous planning history of this site, including both the current
(‘fall-back’) permission for stables and keeping of horses and the temporary consents for the
residential elements on site, including that allowed at appeal in 2011, though it is noted that
permanent consents were refused primarily for the reason that the development would not
conserve or enhance the National Landscape.

The applicant’s Planning Statement admits that the proposal would not conserve or enhance
the landscape and scenic beauty of the National Landscape and we share that view.
However, in making our overall assessment this is balanced against this is the fact that the
site has been occupied for more than a decade for the residential use applied for here and
that the equestrian use is already consented. We also agree with the assessment of the
applicant, the Council in determining previous applications and the Inspector in determining
the 2011 appeal, that any landscape and visual harm would be relatively limited owing to the
existing boundary screening, site topography and the positioning of the structures towards
the lowest part of the site.

We are also aware that the Council in making its decision will have to balance any assessed
harm to the landscape and scenic beauty of the National Landscape, with the ‘great weight’
this attracts in the planning balance, against the Council’s current inability to meet its housing
requirements, including those of Gypsies and Travellers. Bearing all of these factors in mind,
on balance we do not object to this application.

One matter we would wish to comment upon is the lack of proposals regarding lighting.
Paragraph 185c of the NPPF states that planning decisions should ensure that new
development is appropriate for its location and in doing so they should limit the impact of light
pollution from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark landscapes and nature
conservation. Paragraph 001 of the Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) on Light Pollution
(Paragraph: 001 Reference ID: 31-001-20191101) states that ‘intrinsically dark landscapes’
are those entirely, or largely, uninterrupted by artificial light. National parks ... can serve as
good examples’. As AONBs have the same level of protection with regards to landscape and
scenic beauty as national parks within the NPPF and PPG and dark skies are one of the
special qualities of the Cotswolds National Landscape, we consider it reasonable to treat the
National Landscape as an ‘intrinsically dark landscape’ in NPPF and PPG terms.

The Cotswolds AONB Landscape Strategy & Guidelines for LCT 2 (Section 2.1) identifies
‘the spread of lit elements up the Escarpment slope’ as a potential (adverse) implication for
development such as this. The guidelines also seek to ‘conserve areas of dark skies’, with
these dark skies being one of the ‘special qualities’ of the Cotswolds National Landscape.
This is particularly important in an area with relatively low levels of light pollution such as this,
as indicated in Appendix 1 of the Board’s Tranquillity Position Statement, referred to above.

As such, we recommend that the introduction of any lit elements should be designed to
adhere to this guidance and, by extension, with the policies of the Cotswolds AONB
Management Plan in particular Policy CE5 (Dark Skies) as well as the ILP Guidance Note for



Page 24

Reduction of Obtrusive Light and the CfDS Good Lighting Guide which form Appendices B
and C of the Board’s Dark Skies & Artificial Light Position Statement (linked above).

Without prejudice, if the local authority is minded to grant planning permission, planning
conditions should be imposed which seek to mitigate any adverse impact and ensure that all
lighting meets the standards outlined above and will be limited to low-level, down-facing lights
to preserve the landscape character of the Cotswolds National Landscape.

21st March 2024 —revised comments

Thank you for consulting the Cotswolds National Landscape Board (‘the Board’) on the
revised information submitted in support of this proposed development, which would be
located within the Cotswolds National Landscape.

In our previous response dated 1 December 2022, the Board did not object to this application
but made some recommendations regarding planning conditions which the local authority
may consider to ensure the conservation and enhancement of the landscape and scenic
beauty of the National Landscape should, without prejudice, the local authority be minded to
grant planning permission.

In our previous response, we outlined that the LPA had a statutory duty to have regard to the
purpose of conserving and enhancing the natural beauty of the National Landscape under
Section 85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. This statutory duty has since
been superseded by Section 245 (Protected Landscapes) of the Levelling Up and
Regeneration Act 20233 which came into effect on 26 December 2023 and introduces a new
statutory duty on LPAs to seek to further the statutory purposes of the National Landscape
as opposed to having regard to them. Natural England has issued the following advice in
respect of the new duty to seek further the statutory purposes of the National Landscape:

Section 245 (Protected Landscapes) of the Levelling Up and Regeneration Act 2023 places
a duty on relevant authorities in exercising or performing any functions in relation to, or so as
to affect, land in a National Park, the Broads or an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
(“National Landscape”) in England, to seek to further the statutory purposes of the area. The
duty applies to local planning authorities and other decision makers in making planning
decisions on development and infrastructure proposals, as well as to other public bodies and
statutory undertakers.

It is anticipated that the government will provide guidance on how the duty should be applied
in due course. In the meantime, and without prejudicing that guidance, Natural England
advises that:

o the duty to ‘seek to further’ is an active duty, not a passive one. Any relevant authority
must take all reasonable steps to explore how the statutory purposes of the protected
landscape (A National Park, the Broads, or an AONB) can be furthered;

¢ The new duty underlines the importance of avoiding harm to the statutory purposes
of protected landscapes but also to seek to further the conservation and enhancement
of a protected landscape. That goes beyond mitigation and like for like measures and
replacement. A relevant authority must be able to demonstrate with reasoned
evidence what measures can be taken to further the statutory purpose.

e The proposed measures to further the statutory purposes of a protected landscape,
should explore what is possible in addition to avoiding and mitigating the effects of
the development, and should be appropriate, proportionate to the type and scale of
the development and its implications for the area and effectively secured. Natural
England’s view is that the proposed measures should align with and help to deliver
the aims and objectives of the designated landscape’s statutory management plan.
The relevant protected landscape team/body should be consulted.



Page 25

Parish Council

1st December 2022

Objection:

The Parish Council objected to the previous application (for less development). The
development that has taken place has failed to comply with the previous temporary,
retrospective consent and is out of keeping for the area. With the large areas of hardened
surface and architecturally low-quality structures, it is detrimental to the Cotswolds National
Landscape (AONB).

26th March 2024 - revised comments

Objection:

While this application is retrospective, the Committee would object to the application if it was
not, on the following grounds, in particular with reference to the site being within the
Cotswolds National Landscape:

The development would be out of keeping and visually intrusive. The fencing & gate are out
of keeping for the rural location. The hard landscaping is visually obtrusive from higher
ground. The permanent structures are architecturally very basic and again not developments
that complement the high landscape value of the area. What appears to be the overflow for
a septic tank continues to discharge to the Lane. This is clearly not acceptable on amenity or
public health grounds.

Tree Officer

23rd November 2022

There appear to be no significant trees on site or adjacent affected by the proposal. No
comments necessary from Trees Section.

6th March 2024 - revised comments
The revisions do not appear to affect trees on or adjacent to the proposed site.

Contaminated Land Officer

29th November 2022

Please note that there are no comments/ no objections from Contaminated Land/
Environmental Health in relation to 22/01935/FUL, Castle Dream Stud, Mill Lane, Charlton
Kings.

5th March 2024 - revised comments
In relation to 22/01935/FUL for Castle Dream Stud, Mill Lane, Charlton Kings, Cheltenham
there are no comments or conditions to add from a contaminated land perspective.

Building Control

14th November 2022

This application may require Building Regulations approval. Please contact Cheltenham and
Tewkesbury Building Control on 01242 264321 for further information.

6th March 2024 - revised comments
This application will require Building Regulations approval. Please contact Cheltenham and
Tewkesbury Building Control on 01242 264321 for further information.

Strategic Land Use Team
7th August 2024
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

The application site is located within the Cotswold National Landscape, an Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty, therefore paragraphs 182 and 183 of the NPPF are relevant.



Page 26

Paragraph 182 states that “great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing
landscape and scenic beauty in Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty” (AONB), including
consideration of “the conservation and enhancement of wildlife and cultural heritage” in this
area. Furthermore, the NPPF states that “scale and extent of development...should be
limited”, whilst any development “within their setting should be sensitively location and
designed to avoid or minimise adverse impacts” on the AONB.

Paragraph 183 states that “when considering applications for development within AONB,
permission should be refused for major development other than in exceptional
circumstances”. It is considered that this application is not major development and as such
paragraph 183 does not apply.

The key consideration therefore is whether the scheme is sensitively located and designed
to avoid or minimise the impact on the AONB, when assessed against both national and local
policy requirements.

Joint Core Strategy (JCS)

Policy SD7: The Cotswold Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty states any developments “in
or within the setting of the Cotswold AONB will be required to conserve and, where
appropriate, enhance its landscape, scenic beauty, wildlife, cultural heritage”, as per the
requirements within the NPPF. The policy also states that proposals for development within
the AONB will be “required to be consistent with the policies set out in the Cotswold AONB
management plan”. Therefore, any consideration of this scheme will need to accord with
policy SD7 and will be key consideration.

Policy SD13: Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople, states that proposal for gypsy
and traveller sites “in areas of sensitive landscape will be considered in accordance with
Policy SD6 (Landscape Policy) and Policy SD7 (The Cotswold Area of Outstanding Natural
Beauty), as well as other additional criteria. The purpose of this policy is provide a criteria-
based policy to be used in the assessment of planning applications.

Gloucestershire Gypsy, Traveller and Travelling Showpeople Accommodation Assessment

In November 2022, the Gloucestershire local authorities of Cheltenham Borough Council,
Cotswold District Council, Forest of Dean District Council, Gloucester City Council, Stroud
District Council, Tewkesbury Borough Council, and Gloucestershire County Council,
undertook a new Gypsy, Traveller and Travelling Showpeople Accommodation Assessment
(GTAA). It will cover the period 2021-2041, and be used as an evidence base for policy
development in planning and provides an assessment of accommodation needs for Gypises,
Travellers and Showpeople. This requirement is established through national guidance
contained in Planning Policy for Traveller Sites (PPTS) 2015.

The GTAA 2022 highlights that the existing supply within the Cheltenham Borough for
authorised occupied, vacant and potential pitches was 0, whilst the supply of pitches without
permanent permission was 2. Three accommodation need figures have been provided by
the latest GTAA,; first, one based on the ‘ethnic’ definition; second, based on the needs of
families who have not ceased to travel (i.e. based on the PPTS 2015 definition); and third,
based on the ‘travel to work’ interpretation of PPTS 2015. The GTAA recommends adopting
the ’ethnic definition accommodation need figures as this will not only demonstrate
knowledge of the overall accommodation need of all Gypsies and Travellers, but also how
accommodation needs in relation to households not meeting the PPTS definition are being
addressed.

The GTAA recommends that there is a accommodation need for 6 pitches, based on the
‘ethnic’ definition, within 2021-26 period and a further accommodation need of 3 pitches
within 2026-41.



Page 27

It is acknowledged that the temporary planning permission granted for a change of use of
land for the permanent residential occupation by a traveller family (and other associated
structures) expired at this site in April 2022. The site is still occupied and therefore is
considered retrospective.

Two of the 6 pitches required within the 2021-26 period could arise from the continued use
of this site if planning permission were granted on a permanent status. The GTAA 2022
recognises that there are no authorised Gypsy/Travellers sites within Cheltenham Borough,
this has not changed as of August 2024, therefore it would not be possible for the occupiers
of the site to move to other suitable accommodation within the Borough. Furthermore, there
have been no other sites identified as being readily available for such land use through the
Councils 2023 ‘Call for Sites’ for Gypsy, Roma, Traveller & Travelling Showpeople.

Summary

The need for the Borough to provide pitches as identified in the GTAA 2022 weighs in favour
of the application. The need identified by the assessment relates directly to the site in
guestion because it currently does not have permanent permission. The Council has a duty
to meet this need and no other suitable sites have been identified in the Borough.

The contribution that the site will make will need to weighed against the impact of the
development on the Cotswold National Landscape, an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
and its landscape.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29

APPLICATION NO: 22/01935/FUL OFFICER: Miss Michelle Payne

DATE REGISTERED: 1st November 2022 DATE OF EXPIRY : 27th December
2022

WARD: Battledown PARISH: CHARLK

APPLICANT: | Ms J Cox
LOCATION: | Castle Dream Stud Mill Lane Charlton Kings

PROPOSAL.: | Material change in use of land for mixed use for the keeping of horses
with stables and the stationing of caravans for residential use with
associated development (hard standing, utility block, dog run, fencing
and gates) (retrospective)

REPRESENTATIONS

Number of contributors 19
Number of objections 19
Number of representations 0
Number of supporting 0

5 Ewens Road
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6JW

Comments: 1st December 2022

Further to the application to extend the castle Dream stud to incorporate more caravans.
Though | don't live near the location | do own 10 acres of land and stables very close and
have some reservations to the application. | do know the owner and have always been
on good terms with her and would wish that to continue. She has been friendly and, to
my mind, enhanced the exterior visual aspect of the property.

However my reservations are:-

1. The reference to the permanence of the application. It has always been the case that
this site was held on a temporary basis. One must make the assumption that this
condition was imposed to ensure that illegal use of the site such as siting more than the
permitted caravans would involve the permission being withdrawn. My stables, built
about 25 years ago, with planning permission, had a similar restriction further stipulating
that anything built had to be wood, a condition | have been happy to adhere to.

2. Use of the site:- Stating that the site has been used for the keeping of horses is also
spurious. There was a time, interestingly at the time of the first application, when horses
were kept there but they have not been a permanent feature.

3. The notion of family:- The definition of family can be interpreted quite loosely and great
care must be exercised when given permissions on that basis.



Page 30

I have no reservations on the current situation being continued and would sincerely wish
that this was the case. However the application seems to be a possible opportunity to
massively increase caravan usage on this site - an outcome forced almost by the
intransigence of the local council to perform responsibly. | sincerely hope this is not the
outcome of this application.

Glenfall Lodge
Mill Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL54 4EP

Comments: 5th December 2022

We are writing to express concerns about the application for a permanent site at the
above address. The specifics of our concerns are;

1. The septic tank is extremely smelly. For several years now it has overflowed across
Mill Lane making it unsafe and unpleasant for walkers, runners, dogs / horses etc. that
frequently use the road. We and others have complained on numerous occasions over
the years, but the problem continues and will likely get worse with additional dwellings.

2.  We have experienced few problems with the current owners but are very concerned
that the site is being over developed without planning permission, with the inclusion of a
swimming pool and additional accommodation and mobile home caravans. Besides
being out of character with AONB we are worried that this retrospective planning
application, should it be passed, will encourage continued development of the site and
yet more retrospective applications.

3.  Light pollution is also a considerable nuisance for us and the neighbourhood. The
powerful flood lights are frequently left on throughout the night, together with lights from
the dwellings. It floods one side of our garden with light and even reflects into our
bedroom. We are most concerned about the damage done to wildlife by such excessive
night lighting, and are also aware that it contravenes current environmental policy.

4.  The previous permission was for stabling for horses. However, since arrival of the
current owner several years ago, and despite the name of the property, we have never
seen any evidence of use of the field or stables for horses.

5. As an area of AONB we feel the current entrance design is completely out of
character for the location. It has also continuously been enlarged.

6. We are concerned that the precedent set here is already being flouted in
neighbouring fields, again where no planning permission having been sought,
retrospectively or otherwise.

In conclusion, taking account of all these concerns, we hope that the application is not
approved but in the event it is approved we request that our concerns are taken into
account.



Page 31

Yours sincerely

*kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk

298 London Road
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6YF

Comments: 21st March 2024

Reference 22/01935/FUL

OBJECTION TO ABOVE

Sewage permanently spilling on to Mill Lane, running into opposite field with Public
Access, this problem has increased because of more than one home on this site.
Additional entrance has now been introduced, causing parking issues on this narrow
lane.

The original entrance is not in keeping with the area Hedging and trees are being
destroyed around this site in a designated AONB, presumably for firewood.

There are no horses at Castle Dream Stud.

K*kkkkkkkkkk

298 London Road
Charlton Kings

Comments: 30th November 2022

An AONB, why are trees felled adjoining, surrounding and opposite this property ? This
unnecessary felling is ongoing.

The Septic tank has been leaking through the drain and bank for a considerable time,
causing flooding and a very bad smell. The discharge is causing the road to subside and
it runs into a field where there is a public footpath.

There are no horses on this site. The gold and black large metalwork horse heads
around the property advertising a Stud are not in keeping with an AONB.



Page 32

Hillview House

Hambrook Street

Charlton Kings Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL52 6LW

Comments: 12th January 2023

| am strongly against permission being granted for this land to be changed to residential
use. The current owners have been living on the land without permission for many years.
They allow their sewage to pour over Mill Lane and into the field opposite. This is
absolutely disgusting and a health hazard for all the walkers, runners and cyclists using
the lane. It gets into the local water system, and is therefore a health hazard to dogs and
the local wildlife.

The owners do not appear to have any horses on the land but | have witnessed two cars
being driven out of the property by young men in a very fast and aggressive manner,
which | found quite intimidating.

| have also noticed that the beautiful hedgerows along the lane have been cut down. This
is destroying the beauty of the local area, which is AONB, for what | can only imagine is
to be used as firewood.

| also object to the development of the entrance of the land. The owners have installed
two large, golden horses heads and large, high gates. This is not in keeping with the rural
feel of the area. It has also meant that the view is obstructed into the field from Mill Lane.
This has been deliberately done to hide the illegal development of the land.

15 Briarbank Rise
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6XR
Comments: 22nd March 2024

Well-made, detailed comments appear in other submissions.

We either have a planning process which means something and requires residents to
abide by it or we have a free-for-all. And we either designate areas as AONB and mean it
or give up and forget about the less tangible things which make life richer for everyone.

Comments: 7th February 2023

| object in principle to people riding roughshod over the planning process by developing a
site and then applying for planning permission retrospectively.

This site has come a long way since it was a simple stable block and it is surely against
the intentions behind the AONB within which it stands to countenance substantial
residential development there. Where will the development end? The land has already
been changed beyond recognition (and permission).



Page 33

4 Carisbrooke Drive
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6YA

Comments: 17th March 2024
| object to this proposal for the following reasons:

1. Incompatibility with the character of the area, which is a designated AONB. This is a
beautiful but very vulnerable area and, having fought off proposals in the recent past for
multiple house building and a 5G mast, this would be another undesirable addition ith no
enemies to the AONB.

2. Going ahead with plans first and then seeking retrospective planning permission is
very questionable. People living close to the site have suggested that this has already
happened in a number of cases in this area, and needs to be stopped.

3. I don't believe that the site in fact has anything to do with horses, and that this is being
used as a cover for providing sites for residential use. A somewhat intimidating notice on
the high gates discourages members of the public from venturing any nearer. | am aware
of previous council statements about the need for more Traveller sites within
Cheltenham, but this particular site is inappropriate for multiple occupancy.

4. Acceptance of this proposal would be likely to open the flood gates for similar, equally
unwelcome applications.

1 Ham Close
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
GL52 6NP

Comments: 23rd November 2022
Dear Miss Payne,

| strongly object to the application to change the use of land for the keeping of horses
with stables and the stationing of caravans for residential use with associated
development at Castle Dream Stud Mill Lane Charlton Kings.

This area of Charlton Kings is on the lower slopes of the Cotswold escarpment and is a
designated AONB. The Castle Dream Stud Site currently enjoys temporary status.

| would urge the Planning Committee to retain this status otherwise | fear once the AONB
status of this area has been breached we will have applications to build everywhere on
this AONB.

Yours faithfully



Page 34

4 Carisbrooke Drive
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6YA

Comments: 17th March 2024

| object most strongly to the above application. Mill Lane is part of an AONB and the legal
constraints surrounding such a designation should remain in place.

The proposed development offers no benefits to the AONB, and close neighbours have
already reported damage to trees and hedgerows, also sewage leaks and light pollution.
| also object in general to applications for retrospective planning permission, especially in
such a sensitive area as this. If permission is granted, it opens the floodgates for pretty
much anything to be built, without the apparent need for making a formal application and
doing things properly. In this instance it seems that past applications have requested
permission to keep horses with stables, yet according to nearby residents, no horses are
being kept in this location so how can we trust the integrity of the current application?

| note that the keeping of horses and stabling is stated once again along with the
stationing of caravans (plural) for residential use.

So how many caravans? And is there a limit on the numbers? It doesn't look like it, and |
wouldn't be surprised if this was the main objective here.

60 Horsefair Street
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL53 8JH

Comments: 3rd December 2022

| would like to register my objection to the change of use proposed at Castle Dream Stud.
| am not a direct neighbour but live locally and use Mill Lane regularly for recreation and
access.

1. The land has not been used for the keeping of horses for at least 8 years.

2. The number of caravans on the site has already increased and waste water now
routinely pours across and down the lane, causing a hazard.

3. Family and Extended Family are terms that are open to broad interpretation and could
include very large numbers of occupants, bringing more vehicle traffic, noise and
disruption in the AONB.

4. The appearance of the development is entirely out of keeping with its rural setting in
the AONB, introducing suburban timber fencing, huge metal gates, brick walling and
decorations. This is very detrimental to the character of the AONB.

5. Roadside trees on both sides of the lane around the site have been cut back beyond
recovery, again damaging the coherent rural character of the AONB and lowering
amenity for other road users.

6. The site is brightly lit at night, to the detriment of wildlife and amenity within the AONB.



Page 35

Wadleys Farm
Ham Lane
Charlton Kings
GL52 6NJ

Comments: 10th April 2024
Letter attached.

Comments: 2nd April 2024
Letter attached.

Comments: 22nd March 2024
Letter attached.

Comments: 13th December 2022
Letter attached.

Comments: 13th December 2022

Letter attached.

Hamfield House
Ham Road
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6NG

Comments: 2nd December 2022

| write to object to permitting the above application on a permanent basis for the reasons
set out below.

Background

As I'm sure the Council will be aware, there is a long history of attempts to change the
use of this AONB site away from agricultural use. A traveller family, then Mr and Mrs
Cox, acquired and started residing at the site in around 2010. Following an Appeal which
was decided in 2011, they were given temporary permission to continue residence at the
site as set out in APP/B1605/C/11/2149107 and 2149171 dated 6 September 2011.

In reaching his decision, the Planning Inspector concluded that: "the change of use to a
Gypsy and Traveller site has resulted in, and would cause further visual harm, to the
AONB. This is contrary to established local development plan policies and national
planning policy advice and guidance and is sufficient reason not to grant a permanent
permission.” His reason for giving permission on a temporary basis was because of the



Page 36

lack of sites allocated for gypsies and travellers. Permission was given, therefore, "until
such times as less harmful, alternative sites may be identified and brought forward
through the JCS process". The Inspector imposed a number of conditions to ameliorate
the harm, many of which have yet to be undertaken of fulfilled.

After the temporary permission had expired, a further planning application,
13/01459/COU, again sought permanent change of use. This was determined on 16
January 2014 when Cheltenham Borough Council extended the temporary permission for
Mrs Cox and any resident dependants for a further period of three years until 17 January
2017. Please refer to my letter of objection to the 2013 application dated 27 December
2013.

A broadly similar exercise took place three years later when application 17/00129/FUL, to
which | again objected on 21 February 2017, was similarly determined on 20 April 2017.
Temporary permission for occupation of the site was extended only for Mrs Cox and any
dependant relatives up until 21 April 2022 (now over 6 months ago).

Planning Context

After a lengthy period of consultation and examination, the Joint Core Strategy to 2031
for Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury was adopted in December 2017. This
requires Cheltenham Borough to contribute 2 gypsy and traveller plots up to 2021 with a
third by 2031. The detail of how Cheltenham was to provide these pitches was to be set
out in a subordinate Cheltenham Local Plan.

The Cheltenham Local Plan to 2031 was adopted in July 2020 following examination and
consequential modification. Whereas the submission draft Plan allocated Castle Dream
Stud to meet the requirement to provide gypsy and traveller sites, this was rejected by
the examining inspector, who in her final report found as follows:

"Gypsies and Travellers

113. In the submitted CP, it is proposed to meet the future needs of gypsies, travellers,
and travelling showpeople through the allocation of a site for 3 pitches at Castle Dream
Stud (Policy GT1). The site was granted a temporary and personal retrospective planning
permission as a Gypsy and Traveller (G&T) site on appeal in 2011. The CBC has
renewed the temporary and personal permission for this use, most recently in 2017.
114. The site is in an attractive rural location outside any settlement and within the
Cotswolds AONB. In reaching the decision in the appeal, the Inspector stated that the
change of use to a G&T site had already resulted in and would cause further visual harm
to the AONB contrary to local and national policies. The appeal was allowed because
there was no alternative provision and because of the appellants' personal
circumstances.

115. National policy is set out in "Planning Policy for Traveller Sites" August 2015
(PPTS). The allocation of private traveller provision such as Castle Dream Stud in local
plans is encouraged, but the need for the provision must be balanced against the
requirement to conserve the landscape and scenic beauty of the AONB as stated in
paragraph 115 of the NPPF. Furthermore, the site is poorly related to education and
other services since there are very few bus services in the area and access can only be
gained along a winding and narrow unlit country lane.

116. In the absence of any alternative and more appropriate provision, it may be
reasonable to allow the temporary and personal use of the site by its current occupants,
but in view of its very harmful location and poor relation to services and infrastructure, it
should only remain in such use until less harmful sites may be identified through the
development plan process.

117. The Council has indicated that no suitable alternative sites were put forward as a
result of their Strategic Assessment of Land Availability (SALA). However, | am not



Page 37

convinced that the Council has been sufficiently proactive in its search for sites to
conclude that there is no alternative to Castle Dream Stud.

118. The current need for traveller sites is met on a temporary basis and this provides the
opportunity for CBC to take a proactive approach to seeking a long term solution, having
regard to the policy set out in the PPTS. Meanwhile the criteria based Policy SD13 in the
JCS will provide the basis for the determination of future planning applications.

119. I recommend that Policy GT1 is deleted and the supplementary text is changed
through MMO025 in order to be consistent with national policy and for the CP to be sound."
The adopted Cheltenham Plan includes the above-referenced modification. | am not
aware that CBC has yet take 'a proactive approach to seeking a long term solution'.

The Current Proposal

With regard to the current application, | have the following observations:

a. The applicant's Site Plan covers only the lower SE corner of the site. An additional
mobile home has been sited on a flat area of open field higher up the site, although this
has now been removed. It is not evident what services were provided to support this or
whether it is likely to return. There is no mention of this in the application.

b.  The application makes reference to the breeding and selling of horses as a principal
occupation of the resident family. There has been little or no evidence of any horses on
this site for many years.

It is reasonable for the former temporary permission to be extended for a further 5 years
for Mrs Cox and her immediate family to continue occupying Castle Dream Stud on a
named basis.

However, as in the past, permanent permission should be refused for the reasons given
by the inspector examining the Cheltenham Local Plan. Essentially these are:

a. The site lies in the Cotswold AONB. The National Planning Policy Framework.
Paragraph 176 of the extant version states: 'Great weight should be given to conserving
and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in National Parks, the Broads and Areas of
Outstanding Natural Beauty which have the highest status of protection ... The scale and
extent of development within all these designated areas should be limited, while
development within their setting should be sensitively located and designed to avoid or
minimise adverse impacts on the designated areas.’

b.  The occupation damages the AONB, as is evident from an inspection of the site.
For example, the planting introduced by the temporary residents over the past 11 or so
years is alien to the AONB and is of a type often used as screening in residential areas.
It therefore detracts from rather than conserves the landscape and scenic beauty. The
situation is not improved by the erection of a permanent building.

c. Although the site is largely screened from Mill Lane, it is highly visible from public
footpath ZCK8 from Hewletts Reservoir to Northfield Farm, which | use on a frequent
basis.

d. Although the location is near to Cheltenham, it is outside the principal urban area of
the town and away from any area that has been either allocated or proposed for any
urban extension.

e. The site is rural and isolated and not close to other dwellings or any public
transport.

f. In consequence, the site is not allocated for permanent occupation in the
Cheltenham Local Plan to 2031.

g. There is no longer evidence that the site is being used for the keeping and breeding
of horses. For many years, there has been no sign of any horses on the site.

h. A precedent would have been set, encouraging further gypsy and traveller
settlements in the AONB.



Page 38

Accordingly, | urge the Planning Authority to refuse the application for permanent
residential occupation. Renewal of a five-year temporary permission under the same
conditions as before would be a reasonable way forward.

Yours sincerely,

Glenfall House
Mill Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL54 4EP

Comments: 21st March 2024

We write to object once again to the retrospective planning application at Castle Dream
Stud. The reasons why this should not be granted are numerous and founded in planning
law.

Even after the previous retrospective application was submitted there has been further
(unapproved) development of the site, which evidences and continuing disregard for the
planning process. The occupants have recently cut an access gate into the high fence on
Mill Lane, adjacent to another mobile home, and there is a green council bin stationed in
what remains of the hedgerow in that location. In addition, a van or car is often parked
opposite this unlawful gate in Mill Lane, creating a dangerous obstruction. The highways
and environmental issues are further compounded by a constant drainage problem
resulting from the occupation of the site which continuously floods the lane with waste
water.

The application also references the keeping of horses on several occasions as a
justification for the site. This site is not being used for the keeping of horses. Cynically,
after this was pointed out in the previous consultation period by a number of objectors, a
horse was put on the land very briefly but has now gone. The stables are not being used
as such and nor are the paddocks.

There really seems to be no point in having a designated AONB or any form of planning
process at all if this application is approved, what is there to stop the same process (build
first, ask permission afterwards) happening again? Should we all adopt this strategy and
have a flagrant disregard for any planning rules and the AONB?

The impact of this site on the AONB is extremely detrimental. The retrospective
application includes an enormous amount of hardstanding, obtrusive fencing and
significant built form. The scale and massing on the site is completely inappropriate
development for this area of outstanding natural beauty.

Further to the above, there seems to be no consideration for the impact on Dark Skies
within this area of AONB. This was an unoccupied site with no light spill but now, with the
additional unlawful residential accommodation, there is significant light pollution at night.



Page 39

This includes recent Christmas lighting placed on top of the 'Dog House' which could be
seen for miles.

The impact on the area is being further harmed by the extremely high fencing, large
incongruous bricked entrance, gates, lions and horseheads. Other evidence of a
complete disregard for the AONB was shown when the hedgerow in Mill Lane opposite
the entrance was completely destroyed overnight, in order to facilitate access for further
mobile homes to enter the site. This has detrimentally affected the character of the area.
We also note that there has been no ecology survey undertaken by the applicant nor is
there any quantification of the negative impact on biodiversity loss which will result from
the development of the site. What happened to development requiring a biodiversity net
gain!?!

Appropriate enforcement action should be taken here to return the site to the status it
held within the bounds of its original temporary permission. This temporary permission
should be renewed until a more appropriate site is found elsewhere. That is the only
justifiable response to this retrospective application.

Comments: 2nd December 2022
Ref: 22/01935/FUL
Dear Miss Payne,

| write to express my concerns regarding the application for a permanent site at Castle
Dream Stud, Mill Lane.

| am aware that this is a retrospective application and, having read the applicant's report
submitted with it, | have the following comments:

1. I understand permission is sought to "Retain two mobile homes and a touring caravan
occupied by the family together with a partially constructed utility block, the storage of 1-2
touring caravans for when the family go travelling and associated development (extended
hard standing, fencing, dog run and planting).” Whilst | do not object to this at face value,
| would ask how is this permission to be enforced? The site has grown unlawfully since
the last planning permission was granted. How is it possible to enforce that the site is
used by one family and in accordance with the permissions granted on this occasion?
How is it possible to ensure we are not in this same position in another 5 years where
there is a retrospective application for more caravans or developments to the site? Also, |
would like to question the presence of a swimming pool on the site which is not
mentioned in the application.

2. Little can be seen of the yard area from Mill Lane. This is largely true except for the
exceptionally bright floodlights that illuminate the site at night. | am aware of the dark
skies policy and strongly believe the lights contravene this and are harmful to any wildlife
in the area. Additionally, the entrance gates with ornamental horse statues on brick piers
are extremely visible, overbearing and the statues particularly out of keeping - not least
within an AONB.



Page 40

3. The site frequently pumps foul smelling waste water on to Mill Lane. This needs to be
addressed as a matter of urgency and | would urge no permissions are granted until it is
resolved. It is quite simply disgusting.

4. The report states that the site "Is where the 7 Applicants keep their horses [and] it
would reduce the need to drive to the site on a daily basis to check on their horses if they
were permitted to live on site." To be very clear, since we have been aware of the site,
there are no horses present and there never have been.

I understand the need for the family to have a site and | do not object to this being on Mill
Lane in principle. However, | would very strongly request that the permission, should it be
granted, is very tightly controlled using appropriate conditions and that these take into
account the points raised above.

Yours sincerely,

*kkkkkkkkk

Glenfall Lodge
Mill Lane
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL54 4EP

Comments: 2nd December 2022

We are writing to express concerns about the application for a permanent site at the
above address. The specifics of our concerns are;

1. The septic tank is extremely smelly. For several years now it has overflowed across
Mill Lane making it unsafe and unpleasant for walkers, runners, dogs / horses etc. that
frequently use the road. We and others have complained on numerous occasions over
the years, but the problem continues and will likely get worse with additional dwellings.

2.  We have experienced few problems with the current owners but are very concerned
that the site is being over developed without planning permission, with the inclusion of a
swimming pool and additional accommodation and mobile home caravans. Besides
being out of character with AONB we are worried that this retrospective planning
application, should it be passed, will encourage continued development of the site and
yet more retrospective applications.

3.  Light pollution is also a considerable nuisance for us and the neighbourhood. The
powerful flood lights are frequently left on throughout the night, together with lights from
the dwellings. It floods one side of our garden with light and even reflects into our
bedroom. We are most concerned about the damage done to wildlife by such excessive
night lighting, and are also aware that it contravenes current environmental policy.



Page 41

4.  The previous permission was for stabling for horses. However, since arrival of the
current owner several years ago, and despite the name of the property, we have never
seen any evidence of use of the field or stables for horses.

5. As an area of AONB we feel the current entrance design is completely out of
character for the location. It has also continuously been enlarged.

6. We are concerned that the precedent set here is already being flouted in
neighbouring fields, again where no planning permission having been sought,
retrospectively or otherwise.

In conclusion, taking account of all these concerns, we hope that the application is not
approved but in the event it is approved we request that our concerns are taken into
account.

Yours sincerely

k*khkkkkkkkkkkkhkhkhkhkkx

Ham Stud

Ham Road
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6ND

Comments: 2nd December 2022
Letter attached.

118 Ryeworth Road
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6LY

Comments: 12th March 2024

Objection reasons:

1) Impact on hedges/trees that have been cut back

2) Negative impact on environment with foul smelling water from the site flowing across
the road, alongise the risk of slipping/accidents from the flow of water

3) This is an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty

4) This is an increase in intensity of use on such land.

The concerns raised in the previous objections do not appear to have been addressed in
the resubmission.



Page 42

Old Ham House
Ham Road
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6ND

Comments: 2nd December 2022

OBJECTION TO PLANNING APPLICATION OF DREAM CASTLE STUD

REFERENCE:22/01935/FUL RETROSPECTIVE PLANNING APPLICATION CASTLE
DREASM STUD

I would like to object to this planning application for the following reasons:

1. This is a designated area of outstanding natural beauty, enjoyed by many for leisure
pursuits such as walking, cycling, running and horse riding, all known to be beneficial for
the community's mental and physical well being. It is a great pity to see the beautiful
blackthorn trees which formed a hedge, with blossom hanging over Mill Lane in spring,
has been harshly cut back and replaced with a close board fence and gates embellished
with golden horses heads. This is not in keeping with the area, and is neither conserving
nor enhancing the landscape and scenic beauty, and is urbanising a beautiful rural area.
And as such | object to it's presence.

2. As mentioned in other letters of objection, apart from when the applicants were
seeking planning permission some years ago, there have never been any horses on the
fields.

| have no objection to the family living there as such, but would appreciate seeing it
return to its former natural state of beauty, and neither increasing in size, nor becoming
more urban.

14 Pembridge Close
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6XY

Comments: 19th March 2024

The applicant has flouted the planning rules by building and developing the site without
permission, hidden by a high fence.

It seems that there is no respect for the Local Authority planning rules, therefore we
object to retrospective permission for these works.



Page 43

Permission has been given to the applicant in the past for the keeping of horses and for
one family to reside on the site. This has not changed so the need for further hard
standing and other structures cannot be justified.

If retrospective planning permission is given to these works, it will encourage further
development of the site, also without permission, changing the use of the land by stealth.

All other comments made by us on this application still hold.
Comments: 1st December 2022

Case No: 22/01935/FUL: Case Officer: Ms Michelle Payne
Castle Dream Stud. Ham. Cheltenham

We are writing to object to the change of use of the Castle Dream Stud site to permanent
usage because of the adverse effects on the Cotswold AONB in which it lies. This is a
protected area and if the site were to be given permanent status it could be developed in
a way detrimental to its surroundings. The owner, Mrs Cox has been given temporary
permission for the use of land for country pursuits including the breeding of horses. It
would be reasonable to renew the temporary permission so that the land could be put
back to the original state at the end of that time, if necessary. Some harm has been done
to the site by the addition of high fences, gates and hard standing. A site less harmful to
the green environment could be found in the meantime for travellers - the JCS review is
yet to completed. Other locations in the AONB have been refused permission for
residential development. This site should not be given special treatment as it does not
benefit the AONB and under the same criteria should be applied for the applicant as for
others, as per the recommendations. Regarding the inspector's conditions of a previous
appeal of temporary permission was given to Mrs Cox and not to ‘any gypsy or traveller
family' using the site.

The applicant has argued that permission be given due to a lack of suitable provision for
such sites in the borough. Whilst this may be the case, but under planning guidance for
PPTS, August 2015, paragraph 27, page 7, sites in the AONB are protected. We quote
from the document and the footnote to this effect below:

" If a local planning authority cannot demonstrate an up-to-date 5 year supply of
deliverable sites, this should be a significant material consideration in any subsequent
planning decision when considering applications for the grant of temporary planning
permission(9) . The exception is where the proposal is on land designated as Green Belt;
sites protected under the Birds and Habitats Directives and / or sites designated as Sites
of Special Scientific Interest; Local Green Space, an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty,
or within a National Park (or the Broads)."

"Footnote (9 ) There is no presumption that a temporary grant of planning permission
should be granted permanently. For further guidance please see:
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/use-of-planning-
conditions/what approach-should-be-taken-to-imposing-conditions/ (see paragraphl14)”

Other issues to be considered are the location of the site next to a narrow country lane,
not an urban road, with dangerous blind bends and impaired visibility to oncoming traffic.
This is also a route to the local primary school, which is already oversubscribed.



Page 44

The fact that there is urban development close to the site makes no difference to the fact

that the site is in the AONB. The national policy gives the conservation of landscape and

scenic beauty a particularly enhanced status in the AONB and the Council are required to
protect and preserve the specially designated Cotswolds AONB.

The AONB is an area of special beauty mainly for recreational use. If any kind of
residential development is permitted. it sets a precedent for more development. Then the
whole reason for being designated as a special place becomes pointless as the area
becomes urban. The approval of this application is therefore not in the public interest.

3 Natton Cottages
Ham Lane
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6NJ

Comments: 2nd December 2022

Re:- Development Proposal:- 22/01935/FULL - Mill Lane - Retrospective Change of Use.
- Objection

| refer to the above Planning Application which for this site - ONCE again - is
retrospective.

As the history detail for this site is well known and that there has been a failure by
planning both to enforce its decisions for NO development and also in the meanwhile not
stopping the obvious development which has taken place without planning consent, it is
about time that the original decision was enforced and the land vacated back to the
original stables only.

It does seem that there are now too many retrospective applications in the AONB in
particular and this is being used by applicants to get their way regardless of the suitability
or indeed the Planning Regulations which are

supposed to ensure the area is kept within certain bounds that makes it what it is
designated - natural as far aspossible.

If this application is granted, then in future how many more 'houses' - what has now been
put on cannot be classified as caravans - are going to be put on the site without gaining
Planning permission FIRST. The future

placing of more 'houses' on this site for more members of ‘family’ under a similar
retrospective cannot be ruled out.

Given that over the last few years, raw overflow sewage water has been running across
Mill Lane on nearly a continuous basis which is not a good thing for both walkers, bikes
and vehicles using the lane - the smell at times being totally unacceptable. There is not
the sewage system infrastructure to deal even with the previous level of occupation and
definitely not the current one.

The sewage that has and does flow into the field opposite the site, with puddling on the
side of the road due to poor drainage of normal rain water from the road has not, as yet it
is understood, from tests done by the Environment



Page 45

Agency, reached the stream across the field that runs eventually into the River Chelt. It
can only be a matter of time and adverse weather before Raw sewage does reach this
stream! It is also not a good hygiene situation for the food

animals grazing in the field to be allowed access to human sewage, which they must do if
grazing close to its the entry point from Mill Lane.

I make the following additional observations:-

1) The recurring presentation that horses have been, are or probably going to be kept on
this site does not stand up to the fact that no horses have been seen for quite a few
years since this area was occupied. In any case the keeping of horses does not require
on site living.

2) Failure by Planners to enforce their decisions against development on this site
demonstrates the failure of planning overall and especially in protecting the AONB. If
there were now a full scale raft of Retrospective Applications from the general population
- which does seems to have increased in recent years as a way of 'getting disallowed
development through', then to allow these and this one in particular is definitely failing
applicants and residents who follow the procedure properly within the law and accept the
decisions made by planners- especially where it concerns the AONB.

3) In previous years especially when ice and snow are about - the drainage of sewage
waste water has combined with existing rain water to make for a skating rink along the
lane for vehicles and pedestrians.In conclusion, this application must be taken back to
first base principles and not treated as anything different than an application to develop
on open agricultural fields within the AONB by any member of the public.Such an
application would fail and indeed has been shown to fail right back to the beginning of
this saga with the original owner.

Yours sincerely,

Glenfall Lodge

Mill Lane

Charlton Kings Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL54 4EP

Comments: 15th March 2024

We would like to take this opportunity to express our significant concerns regarding the
continued development at Castle Dream Stud.

In December 2022, we expressed concerns about the original retrospective planning
application pointing out this process could be continually repeated, resulting in a
continued flaunting of Planning regulations, and an ever-increasing eyesore to a
designated AONB area.

The proposed application is of grave concern to us for the following reasons;

- The development now runs down a considerable length of Mill Lane and virtually
halfway up what was once a beautiful field.



Page 46

- An additional gate to the lane has also been introduced, where cars are often seen to
park, restricting passing on an already narrow and relatively busy lane.

- Since the addition of further accommodation, there is now even more night lighting in
this once beautiful and peaceful location, intruding on neighbours and harming wildlife.

- There has been a considerable increase of vehicle noise, with powerful vehicles being
revved up at the site and accelerated down Mill Lane.

- Continued development of the site will be devaluing surrounding properties and
damaging further this ANOB.

- The entrance, which includes two lions on pedestals, appears totally out of keeping with
the location.

- While efforts have been made to prevent the sewage spilling onto Mill Lane, this has not
been totally successful, presenting a continued danger to walkers and animals.

If this retrospective application is passed for the second time, what protection is there
against further continuing development, thereby making the designation AONB a total
farce?

We have no personal Issue with the owner of this property, but in view of the

observations listed above we are strongly opposed to the granting of this retrospective
application.

Yours Faithfully



Page 47

F.A.O Miss Michelle Payne {Planning Officer)

REF NO. 22/01935/FUL

Retrospective Planning Application Castle Dream Stud

After looking at the photographs and documents regarding the above application | strongly object to
this development.

1. Itis notin keeping with the A.O.N.B e.g. the metal gates and brick built access wall both
containing gold metal art works.
2. The site has only temporary planning permission and any brick built buildings should be
removed
3. Asreported on many occasions to the Environmental Health Department the sceptic tank
cannot cope with one park home. There is a continuous stream of grey water running across
the public highway and any additional drainage into the sceptic tank would increase the
problem.
4. The boundary fence appears to be higher than the permitted height
5. It also appears that hedges and trees around the entrance to the site and on the opposite
side of the highway have been cut down

Ham Stud
Ham Road

Charlton Kings




WhNgys RO
Page 48 W LR

b\\\,mh “%3 2/ \C\%‘b) FOL. ORRV TR Wi
| Q 52 NI
12--00 .

Wi A \doX(tn, Yo B -\)&\\ WU
| |
)‘ \:\ 4'\ o ‘T\.'H‘ '\ Y ) 9 & \ e
TN e A\ Q)\m) cﬂm@m\ S A\a\m cx%p, ERNRUNNY \\"N-\\ N
. ss&ix\c\ M aedmsson Yo J O RNEQT ond Bt X dn &

R Al NW
‘50\\){&&\3 ysm\c&\q}&\w& e Qb N Sytars ‘)\é“\\ on e AF‘Q%K

rosn o, I 8 Y- Yol
| Q\\,\\ AR\ AR \R‘\M wy Q\%\“ ) )
WS, \W aaWond Ry sl oy \»td&m,k (), AN

Sy Xy %&\zmmﬁ\ b\t CRC '\C&:{ N ‘&.&W .&y‘&xm&\;\

(17 (QQ\lQ\{ FUL) _%\M o R m&ym@\ \m\@m‘(

ord. ety (XAB. B K ) Frermnek oot amlh
Ao o dngTow e Jhe NONG.

CRe m 3\ Q%\h@} QQ\\Q'C\&QE‘\/ JQQX('X\ QRN .:\\»\\Q}\



% . - - i
e s e, Yo AW Page 49 ) \w&i‘\xm NN
Yot Nsme s Ry QN SIS N Ql;’ s@m&\
Yo S mi&»@«\k Yo Serblsh T w\\ L RUINSNEN
SR s -ﬁsw\mﬁ- |
E\l\g&ak&xy&m\@%&wg Sean N v I I b Vs
%i:vig NN Qm@% .\m& NN 33\% M Q&% XN %‘d\
) o R 3K e T N Qe avryy e wisked o 2 fexnu
A A ﬁ‘\)’&ix‘\‘ : \\Q\,%\‘I, 0 ~ Iy
L0 i ORI fivng s o e oo Jeen Wpaaid
NERNRRNY %N*&\Qﬁs@ c&m\ aww A s (\m& -

/.
RAe & oA n«.\f&c&w\& o i
O RV Wi S %&‘Wﬁx & tes
Nﬁ\&\ mm\é B PRSP Q\\%\M, & R
Jawed, oo &Sb\\\\\m W e C\\mﬁé&&\ﬁd %:cm &3
W N s Qgﬁs& QWKW&\ _

2 wdp ik R Asquat o I 2 ndelifow ad o
Foodepy oo o s 1) Toas g Sy s,
%\meg\} D e o XY % ms\\m&m\ %\\ r Q,V\AQL\

Ry 0. N‘S&Q %ﬁi\\\s‘éﬁ@\w ; gkm\ N (rg ¥
SR \%\Xﬁ\}: ?R\'m i, AN Wi S &Q‘N\




G\Q} """ S %\%\*\M\ Q\\&\Q\QP;"S‘S &\ WQM
vt Wk \\QM *X% W&\{\&W VSX\ i m \. -
‘X\‘*\?\ ST ‘5\% &w% soor Mk\ﬁm&x v@\ w@&‘i %
Ar iwodacs s R \xeX A\\&;\\& \&\x o=
Ny &\Vﬂk&) U ) G QNW\@W\& Q\Q\‘X%\R
Red\ BUST vg\*\gﬁ\ RS Vo0 dy iy Q@i\&\i\\ﬁ\\
AW K"\\'Q\\\MQ\.\S x\t&\ \y\i&k S ‘“&\\ \Q\\ TR R AN

\ A Haead Baw )\\3&3 u\&\\\\\x SN Qndanasd, Q\\\\ R oy KWQQ
m&%\&v\ ; W\J\&\ \N\\\\\ s\ -\&\\\m&m\c\\f&




Ref zz}o. qas|FoL Page 51
' ‘)CWL\.%x ‘*‘Douw\

'l—"aul\:\, Lowne |
C/"\CU«VCOV\« mﬂ‘{;
GL52 onT .

O Apv ! 2u

U{VQOV\.\}Q)‘\t Q_)’kaw bg‘ o COU- MQ'Q quu . S
?Qﬁ&kﬁx(}q\, sCX.IQ\J Xl COL;E\S.,/ Do o gﬁko\, b @ by
hod Deen Mode wy Uag M":LBL"‘”W~ wOuned, |

Mf-u:u hod Wwo Cvaw\XZdu 4 mvmu\g VQ}VVLLSS v, ,
Tha, lens 12 hchsz)?ij Ny SENCIECIIN

%@’ 2 couns o poss gch&Qj RYV, Fow\:; bull oL Cov
PQWMQ T e "CGECL\_\;L) Lo e Q,‘)JC%‘DU« . A can
(‘.Ow’\au.v\,‘o) v Tha @PPosCfsu Aokt e s WAL hed Jo
wWal bm%@\QTw« Pqu:n,Q o,y eunch b Wek shanlEdd
wlo « b\;% pot hole w Thw <talg) og, The loag .
MU loome 18 wused \Dj nMRAoud koo
sk cﬁdag.%& deq coakkrs ound WO vy oy WJabkem
Ay con Pewk&@ v oE e O\w/\/ﬂyu b oAl
olli. ddad wsrt ound should wnet be allewol, hn wy
\L,,O T PLMmum 30& should be searoved v e
m&@& raplonsd . b seame do me Coulle Do St dees
qu:u) wWhal o L@(,g\,\,m,& bo do s s "discovec ol

Gf‘?‘/\&& :{.o«. Pl Qu\imm} Px}\,v\,\)\,ss oy wobvo SP‘LL.E»U%IS
chw\,& _§‘ cv;tox,:(l,guﬂ /




Page 52
wodl&:js Fovum
j’M L—Oq\&a‘
Reg . ‘Ll[o\c\gslz:m_ Clhiou oo k'«;gs)
G Stgaosa .
GlBa aNT .
22ud Meseh "7

(BQ/OJ\ Moclounm

|

Pleosc. XeoRe accounl WV Y
PICFENC,IVS TBycTV .%,a\ dns, o Ve aofbrenve -

M CLPPU;(‘/W 24N iy exocbly e
Soumz od  Submdiad un 022 whashy should
haus beon dealtc vady P&@W\fh\ﬁdﬂe\o & hon
becowe q&&TFLC)&PEC/‘T VB @u% o Lot 9,?
ku\\)awwcbﬁte) Ao, Wk, brung coud o on,
The M eount unia, ‘

T %V\Lcmip s \'NSK-\V\S '?GV
pomananty vse of T sdb %e&,’ wWhen She had
TWFG—\% PQA,ML.S&\:&W L sy MPU\W‘L ow 2Asbp 222
maxlﬁ ZJJQL\»; ago . \.%« Sha UL Buwﬁn\/ cune TS,
"{W\P@&mﬂ wwssim Shae s &b\;owlﬁ QVJM t
TR ok WMSSLN.T\-\L N s= SV @,S_ TEMPORARY
PER WM S2tons 1S v o becouise T mounbeuna
sowne. hold by C.B.Cz,o-v:}(x, whall dgoes on  own
o sl euncl miounbouuns PQAWS&CM\ o oNE
Namen  pason te. Mus.Coxe, 1E 1o pearniscion
e Dm\ﬁo\, ‘o AN -,%cwx/\,(‘/\-«j bl e o
‘Q_Hu:):\-% conGel ancl, & aleo 3{133 Cus MW oum
&@’L@‘&j"\/ CQMC:L 6\% e, Wook. o M J=
o o g [ o
bowuﬂ\m'

T s ol "«X‘ L\_w;w\j MOoRE Caatn and



on WMo 330 Was &bui&%e SSM k,\xbgcbu;j
Ocdianses),  Ladi duha CaymSeguencsh T
Soﬁmp anke {;jsmw Lsbaghe 1 oburansly
mmﬂﬁn\uﬁﬁ. ovnh hence X Ms‘m_-&m
2 Foon el haalkn \ﬁ Mg/\/@u&\v\g oSO
ML \Lounz .

{ Y Toa oaﬁ\&cmcvv be bs
Acteclad end TR 12‘,\,\,?@1% 5Jm ww&.&h&\
Fo be %"M“"Uﬂ o unstalid, duwang T
e e o M, Cons

“Yowas




Page 54 L) ol  Fosana
ch\j\f) Lows |
Cirnouvldoown kuxﬂt ‘

Cine \nimponns
Ret :Lz,\mq;ss\(:ut, GLDBZ 6NT
(™ Dec &2,
%‘l(}&. ‘\&QUD\—O‘-W\
T\ML WS\AQL thwvw\% 1 QJ\W\%%g”w

WAL E 9W Qm L\/\ukL ot Stobles (C@gﬁmw
\ soos. ool A :Qool vodan Te P,\@U\:gé) of o SUU\OL)
w\/wum NIIRA, 'V\w\s‘)\tmd CNo wersws hovse basin-

QoA _gu\w ot WJL\SWV W V\«% CXTGR

vm-go&d VR D,W\/P@‘»Oﬂv\) \>\Q&J\—MX\IZ§ PQJ»MLS&VG‘\'\/ ﬁmM

ok frok tene .
Hovozartn | mows S ok Pm&u\«u'LSSbeV\ i

S‘,M\/\b &rw \Qz;z,pu\;ﬁ okg hoeon d wubv\, staples v

) o~ btli)_» I avwaszA LA
W S&dmvath, COUDW) CUNS ( O ) =

o ' Ky, blodks
eI Cl?'\kj c;kdbcbfbtoi\—& g \rxo.&dsﬁud\,&u/\,j SM Ko

f\/\ﬁ).sﬁ.u\ Mn@sp@p‘cm
T Gevaannmagnd (vxs?e,ckc&% évr\qw\o& .U/P&\t/

o
bm\,muw\,& ot u&”"\@& U’\

o
\/ D,Q/Mj_opnxtux\-» Al [O\ C’

PN

“CND oL Tuoun 20

k(:CJLSx.C\—L_‘)c:'tuf\/ SCBL.& c,\x.md CO\/\YJVS\/ ©

@ $tOhLC.z
( ' M v One snedd, e
°3r COVWACAA, WO WA \

+— T T S




4. Page 55
h\%é,,v_, sho ull & N°Y

Lo T wWse all _ ool

TR

C oo LV AL 2 sl J& ('\vaw%
3 Corav AN eun A\

Qmwﬁm"& Cue. N s&Z o
C‘%Q%k, S l.t\'\l/ s, W% I TP v Q&_ T <y,
ISTEURTES SN

Rra Cotecosla Aowg ;\Oq\tl ok
{M%\m&u

oo fpa.@fsggexl L\md &’VC\.V\Q‘U/\% kAD‘N\:QLL\, \

h@f& :
- m&mﬂﬁdﬁom&&&ﬂaﬁ;awxMwaww'RM@%

nots &%Vu\c}bv\vfg %W&v b T ‘?ud?xk
The G\O\?'%’LHW\Q,&/\_:U |

)
o b

ASPeclson J\,SLPGLM "

hale NQ S w‘-CZc}\ :,«/\, oungl

% to Toa Acis
Tiole

W co \‘/\/C\.Qv\i'vj\ Yo locald QLQ@@LOPM,Q,A);

PLcw\,
9 ‘ ~ . !\ < AN s
goliugwg = N ona) A m\u%q& O@Li.cﬂ AgcsLuL‘tsq Uina)
SEE - > : .
P LQ&) o\ e SD\JV\—xDuu,\I‘i NDT" f 3¥—c~m«t’
Q~FEQMANENY ” |

P,Q/’\,V\JQSSL@\/\
NOM\% hoas

U‘r\_W\fﬁgd
o~ o pecmanet g )

ko _Oy;ﬂ% S deas o,
hi?\, PQU\/\/LtCUBl \\M \

Ly
Tbk% A(’)t\ f



3
Page 56 . N
Lo uldl ufkﬂv_/ e EL WB @{;&‘/\,Uﬂ o \)\_cszg\>

V/\_SLJ (;\o WVLVV\M \-\/\Js'\‘)%t@k)& MV)O\C | caun X NoT

: N n e s
BJ\ cun ‘Psa) N cm_;u,) (S \‘Y\T\Q\J bx& < \QA\ MS‘*L NUU\X .

o o sl proksgroph T Dosy Reony
hooke jﬂ;&/% N P%N\wxv\t = Goneoun us;it\w byl
Wwelle  ound o slol ool .| coold  hops— Thel
condufions be lond p o '&)mox & e ch\mj“
Asons, aech nat Lo be wsed @s gw o"\/«.uua\{
G CONA D S < haX e aneudd oo A ouesch
WOhan T %\,‘CQJ s o Lowaun weed \D‘\j \:\7\.9«-
Doy

%U‘#%w@ws. Tord 5wxnssunth T s N\c&ﬂ |
pok ouk fok wn W Aulme wohen SONY
| eouen %@AX) T onesy Lo wwSPuwm %\,&MT\'\L
?wb\}.c, Mg of oty X0 NM’UJ\%@X& Fom, ¥ 1e &

Blet ow o C/(\)\,u\‘[n\j W o un R AoNR- |

I - e
5;0 ba, <, d2REON *Qeu an PQ,\,M@\Q/V\:.U SJSGu e N\
X)Q/wv\\g_gtov\ oI euld S\x)—b cd/v\AzOSt Tl s SM%

Gk WOoAd, e %w\ AN cyuocedx‘a\fo\\kﬂxf un s AORNR



& Page 57

g%ﬁ"' C/@W\C\_)L Mc—\v{_‘ktj\w\_\lgc&;&tt\,sv\ GotA RS\EL

\/\DCLQ/\Q—J\AV» (‘_3 \‘J\JLO \,'\_(3 \\/\

olhan (g olkar o I e ase
N Qu\% S PRI PN ("&Q,Q g))\

e P hf\u\f\ S o wos &, PJLC\J\L\ bou ol koo

.‘)&Q@LCL LY. A= LR © Nj
Av@\? Lo ud&ym\ \%m Mol Ao la L«Q\J \W OMe A . \r‘/\*-&&
"o, peo Ph’L Ay e May

e k\,o.u,\gw , Wi cond <o MM‘:‘
beom besek b Y Yok woluwn

O \iV\Q\ C/Uk.&t\«g Docan sda :

Si(}k/ Lw. \ &
IR )\ Lt\% h-wz_, P (/Q;(y\,q/(/

l v /oL Whap Yo | Plreme , B0 conscla
m PQ’) wn =t \ (A e MT).,L_,SQ @\ 1Q,\Suc,ef\, 'ﬁeuttj\/h (Q_/v\ gt‘/\A_/j‘

A a

QEV\)&E e ' S

NV SO\

e

 foos

_ ; Lz dw\ ACCRes dalg, Fgwb (ﬁ\‘
e &/Qbi\,o@ﬂ/@\“g AOME\ = aV E\»\J 0&@23‘? u\j:& ®%~
QU\&QK&NL\&\A ‘

,H e 8 SN ;&2 (L\JtL\JM
SN




‘2/\)@,\.\@3 ':(EJ\W\/)
Page 58 Hown
Lowe
QU\/D\)\,‘;%@W WDX ,
GL52 eNnT
20 % Mepeinl 24
K«z,,{:s L 22 (ogzs{FoL 22 (0135 [FuL
lsb Moot 2024 17 Nov eaddoxa 22~

Daon Maldounr
| nioke, TiaX Ywg, chove, KOO

\D\WS AVPLLOQ:&\EWL& o Castin, Dreoumna STl |
MO bore Gnonlbouwy %Q ore tolemtico)

’\?‘SYMMU*”" cunCGo &%MLP&M of R Pxexooso\ls,
W Thes col it Lo al WO, Q) o¥ RETROLFLECTIVE

—

wn Yoo IO dedmd {go Mouen 20244 .

\’J”ft) Weunl ey ong, olid (FNew22
nemolbue v Losdaey, 7 e 2nabled He Wodn on TRe
W?L@CC&;&&V\, o be dene %& O A&E\DSW@&L&W
P‘W”‘ﬁ ?m$${,0\f\/ has vwew 31)\\&0/ SGW‘%W‘

| Weole. ok Lmj’ccv LA, %uxéi“fo%
Wity af s SI0 oo Tau opplicabion of 1WNe 22
Ave Wo kwsPsz,e/L‘ms a\.u(;@ud: 1\ knew Ooo Lo ,s\acm)\
bo wrolslan, ocuncl 5@5 b P&w\&j RPP\ALD.E\/@)V\,
seene o conluovwne wOhal e, LVMPQQ\:@)\ OXQ/OLLQQX,,

?

| wwedbal auske You X0 UEL Py MLEUV\OJ,
Wit <} 20220 Dol B e g applicobion eond
Concican okl Tl P&Cw(:& W buecin, ong. sl nelevouls
+to Wis OV\L(?_Qﬂ)q:.>
T = wos nlindaed Yo o Mg, Cox ond
O\R,PQA/\,CLW\X‘/\ @w&j\ms %‘TEN\P@RAR\/ PM«\/{@&Q"M,,
The Bwe huge o e howmer mow on. sdle



. Page 59 , .
O Gl oba)l  cem v entio Sﬁ_ r\f\s'\, \v\gfe.s:kér‘ \ MFWb

St ndead L Yme, peumesand b;\xmi\ (o owae 7)
mol e ad e .

Cos o, %c’“’“f)\”f Councl hos o |
rsponsinding bo provds o IR 5 MU
et net be « Sudx)\s./rtdlim Q% o\;

Plfdlong Wia oeguinament;

| wouwld, unge gew bo orfuse Bios ap pLieskion
Wb, st ng A oo e Lo.o.uhj
o e A& wn T oo,

Uouss %QMAJM .



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6b

Page 61
APPLICATION NO: 23/01424/FUL & OFFICER: Mrs Lucy White
23/01424/LBC
DATE REGISTERED: 19th October 2023 DATE OF EXPIRY: 18th January 2024
DATE VALIDATED: 19th October 2023 DATE OF SITE VISIT:
WARD: Battledown PARISH: Charlton Kings

APPLICANT: | Mr And Mrs D Bunner

AGENT: SF Planning Limited

LOCATION: | Glenfall House Mill Lane Charlton Kings

PROPOSAL: | Part change of use of principal listed building from hotel/event venue to single
dwelling (C3), including removal of extensions/alterations to principal building.
Demolition of coach house, stables and 20th century buildings and
extensions and replacement with new extension and outbuildings consisting
of a leisure building with swimming pool, garage/store, greenhouse and 5no.
new dwellings to be occupied as holiday accommodation. Alterations to
historic landscaped grounds and kitchen garden.

RECOMMENDATION: Refuse/Refuse



Page 62

This site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copyright. All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007



Page 63

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL

11

1.2

1.3

14

15

16

1.7

1.8

The application site comprises of the grade Il listed Glenfall House constructed circa 1770
and its curtilage listed outbuildings and structures. The majority of the garden curtilage of
Glenfall House is a grade 1l listed registered Park and Garden, listed for being a good,
representative example of both a picturesque landscape and an Arts and Crafts garden
which retain their layouts and reflect their original design and character. Nearby Glenfall
Lodge and the Gate Piers, Gates and Walls to Glenfall Lodge are also grade Il listed.
Overall, Glenfall House, the Coach House/Stables, the gate piers, gates and walls to
Glenfall Lodge and the several other curtilage listed buildings/structures, in combination
create a strong group value.

A two storey height garage structure is located within the front curtilage alongside various
smaller outbuildings. The site also accommodates more recently constructed buildings,
including Glenfall Garden Cottages which were originally sub-divided into three residential
units for hotel and staff accommodation in association with the established hotel/wedding
venue use of the site. In 2021 planning permission was granted for the change of use and
conversion of the Cottages from hotel accommodation to 3no. independent dwellings
(C3). A free-standing timber clad cabin is located within the far west corner of the
grounds.  This outbuilding contains living accommodation and appears recently
constructed, although its exact purpose in relation to the hotel/wedding venue is unknown.
There is also an enclosed, walled garden to the rear of the main house and TPO’d trees
within the site, including a large, mature Oak tree in close proximity to Glenfall Garden
Cottages.

The site is located outside of the Principal Urban Area of Cheltenham (PUA) in rural
surroundings and wholly within the Cotswold National Landscape (AONB).

The site is accessed via a long private track off Mill Lane, which also serves an adjoining
farm.

In terms of use, the site has a rather chequered history; the current, established use of the
site is a wedding venue with hotel accommodation. The site was previously used as a
religious retreat. The most relevant planning history is set out below which includes recent
pre-applications for the change of use of the main house and the demolition and
replacement of the remainder of the existing outbuildings.

The applicant seeks planning and listed building consent for the part change of use of the
principal listed building from a hotel/event venue to a single dwelling (C3). The proposals
also include the demolition of the coach house, stables and 20th century buildings and
extensions and their replacement with a new extension and outbuilding. These consist of
a swimming pool and leisure building, garage/store, greenhouse and 5no. new dwellings
to be occupied as holiday accommodation. Internal and external alterations to the listed
building, alterations to the historic landscaped grounds and kitchen garden, and the re-
instatement of a tennis court are also proposed.

In response to concerns raised by officers and consultees and subsequent protracted
negotiations, the scheme has been revised during the course of the application, with
changes made to the design, scale and layout of the proposed development and to the
number of dwellings and buildings proposed.

The final set of revised plans was received on 31% July 2024; the evolution of the various
scheme iterations is discussed later in the report. It is also important to note that, whilst
the proposed development has been reviewed by three different Conservation Officers
during the course of the application, the comments and concerns raised by each previous
officer were carefully considered by the conservation officer reviewing the final scheme
revisions submitted in July.



Page 64

1.9 \Various supporting documents accompany the application, including a Heritage Impact
Assessment, (AONB) Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment, Ecological Appraisal,
Energy Statement and Design and Access/Planning Statement; some of which were
updated in response to the final scheme revisions.

1.10 The applications were referred to the Planning Committee for determination by Councillors
Baker and Fisher. The reasons given for a Committee determination (should officers be
minded to refuse planning and listed building consent) are as follows:-

This application relates to a significant heritage asset but as with all such assets we must
consider how they can evolve in terms of their use and be enhanced in terms of their
carbon footprint and bio-diversity contribution at the same time ensuring the historic fabric
of the building is maintained and protected. In addition the application delivers potentially
significant benefits to our local tourism economy, any decision will be a balanced one and
| therefore feel if the officer is minded to refuse, the application is referred to the
committee.

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
Constraints:
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty

Relevant Planning History:

13/02186/PREAPP  3rd March 2014 CLO
Proposed re-modelling of house

15/01926/PREAPP  24th November 2015 CLO
Change of use from conference centre to hotel and events venue, with various internal and
external works

20/00792/PREAPP  8th July 2020 CLO

Change of use of event venue to a total of 9 residential dwellings. Conversion of (listed)
main Glenfall House building into three large dwellings and conversion of the Coach House
into four smaller dwellings

22/00947/PREAPP  31st August 2022 CLO
Demolition of outbuilding, alterations to existing house and new residential development

78/00036/PO  24th March 1978 REF
Glenfall House Harp Hill Cheltenham Gloucestershire - Outline Application To Erect 1 No
Detached House

78/00037/PF  24th March 1978 PER
Erection Of Building To House Cattle

79/00509/PF  3rd December 1979 PER
Change Of Use/ Conversion Of Private House Into A Convent; Construction Of Sacristy
And Cloister And Internal Alterations; Conversion Of Stable To Convent Accommodation.

86/00830/LA  28th August 1986 PER

Demolition Of Unwanted Chimneys And Rebuild Of In-Use Chimneys
In Accordance With The Revised Details Contained In Your Letter
Received On 13th August 1986

87/00116/LD  26th March 1987 PER



Page 65

Demolition Of Conservatory/Glass House

91/00400/PC  23rd May 1991 PER
Change Of Use To Diocesan Retreat House

91/00953/LA  24th October 1991 PER
Conversion Of Existing Outbuildings To Provide Warden/ Caretaker
Accommodation And Additional Guest Accommodation

91/01082/LA 21st November 1991 PER
Minor Alterations and Conversion Works For Use As Retreat House

92/00951/PF  19th November 1992 PER
Alterations To Existing Forecourt And Proposed Car Park

93/00587/PF  29th July 1993 PER
Erection Of Single Storey Extension To North Face Of South Wing

93/00590/LA  29th July 1993 PER
Erection Of Single Storey Extension To North Face Of South Wing

94/00492/LA  28th July 1994 PER
Conversion Of Ex Boiler Room In Basement To Quiet Room/Crypt Chapel

94/00577/PF  28th July 1994 PER
Part Conversion And Extension Of Stables Annexe To Provide Ensuite Bathrooms To
Guest Bedrooms

94/00581/LA 28th July 1994 PER
Part Conversion And Extension Of Stables Annexe To Provide Ensuite Bathrooms To
Guest Bedrooms

94/00735/LA  15th September 1994 PER
Dismantling Of Glazed Canopy To Existing Garage And
Formation Of Screen Wall To Garage Forecourt

95/00586/LA  11th September 1995 WDN
Erection Of A Garden Pavilion As Retreat Building

95/00595/PF  24th August 1995 PER
Erection Of A Garden Pavilion As Retreat Building

95/00970/PF 18th January 1996 PER
Conversion And Extension To Stables Annexe To Provide 4 No. Ensuite Bathrooms To
Existing Guest Bedrooms ***S.106 Obligation Completed 30 Jul 97***

95/00973/LA 18th January 1996 PER
Conversion And Extension To Stables Annexe To Provide 4 No. Ensuite Bathrooms To
Existing Guest Bedrooms

96/00261/PF  25th April 1996 PER
Erection Of Garden Pavilion As Retreat Building

98/01078/PF  10th December 1998 PER
Extension To Provide Accommodation For Management And Staff

14/00632/COU  21st July 2014 WDN



Page 66

Change of use of Glenfall House and adjoining coach house from hotel/retreat (C1) to one
single dwelling (C3) and separation of existing staff dwelling from main house to create an
independent dwelling (C3) including formation of new access onto existing driveway.
Various external and internal alterations to listed building including demolition of a storage
barn and removal of modern annex extension to listed coach house.

14/00632/LBC  21st July 2014 WDN

Change of use of Glenfall House and adjoining coach house from hotel/retreat (C1) to one
single dwelling (C3) and separation of existing staff dwelling from main house to create an
independent dwelling (C3) including formation of new access onto existing driveway.
Various external and internal alterations including the demolition of a storage barn and
removal of a modern annex extension to listed coach house, the removal of two internal
historic walls on ground floor to form new kitchen, removal of modern stud walls on the
upper floors and an external spiral staircase.

16/00391/CLEUD  11th March 2016 WDN

Currently property is registered as conference centre and hotel, we are in the process of
purchasing the property, and will be running it as a conference and banqueting venue, as
soon as the sale completes, we require to have permission to start certain works
immediately, due to the fact that the property has been empty for 2 years, and certain areas
are now in need of repair to stop any further deterioration of the properties. We will be
wanting to treat and repair the damp within the Coach house; and then redecorate internally
We will be wanting to repair the roof parapets and rainwater downpipes and hoppers on the
main building, along with redecoration of the areas where the repair work has taken place.
We will also want to re decorate the property inside and outside once the repair works have
been done

16/01389/LBC  4th October 2016 GRANT
Alterations of GF and FF of main house to make an events venue. (removal of
walls/addition of stud partition walls)

21/00656/COU  22nd July 2021 WDN
Change of use of Hotel letting rooms in Coach House to 4 residential dwellings

21/00656/LBC  22nd July 2021 WDN
Change of use of Hotel letting rooms in Coach House to 4 residential dwellings

3.POLICIES AND GUIDANCE

National Planning Policy Framework

Section 2 Achieving sustainable development

Section 4 Decision-making

Section 5 Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Section 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities

Section 9 Promoting sustainable transport

Section 11 Making effective use of land

Section 12 Achieving well-designed places

Section 14 Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Section 15 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Section 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Adopted Cheltenham Plan Policies

D1 Design

D3 Private Green Space

L1 Landscape and Setting

HEZ2 National and Local Archaeological Remains of Importance




Page 67

BG1 Cotswold Beechwoods Special Area Of Conservation Recreation Pressure
SL1 Safe and Sustainable Living

GI2 Protection and replacement of trees

GI3 Trees and Development

Adopted Joint Core Strategy Policies
SD3 Sustainable Design and Construction
SD4 Design Requirements

SD6 Landscape

SD7 The Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
SD8 Historic Environment

SD9 Biodiversity and Geodiversity

SD10 Residential Development

SD14 Health and Environmental Quality
INF1 Transport Network

INF2 Flood Risk Management

Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents
Cheltenham Climate Change (2022)

CONSULTATIONS

See appendix at end of report

5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

5.1

5.2

Number of letters sent 5
Total comments received 13
Number of objections 3
Number of supporting 9
General comment 1

Letters were sent to 5 neighbouring properties. In addition, site notices were displayed at
the site and within the local area and an advert published in the Gloucestershire Echo.
The neighbour notification process was repeated for the revised schemes submitted.

A total of 13 representations were received (3 in objection, 9 in support, plus 1 general
comment). The comments and concerns raised in relation to both the original proposals
and subsequent revised schemes, in summary, are as follows:-

Size, scale and massing of proposed development is out of character with the
current environment and setting

Impact on the operation and amenities of neighbouring farm — noise and
disturbance, ASHP plant noise, fireworks, excessive lighting, proximity of proposed
extension to stable block on adjacent land, impact on the welfare of horses within
the stable block

Impact of existing farm operations on the amenities of occupiers of the proposed
dwellings — noise, disturbance and odour pollution, leading to possible future
complaints against the farm owners

The existing stables, Coach House and motor garage should not be demolished as
they are evidence of the historic evolution of the site and have become part of the
landscape



Page 68

¢ De-cluttering and excessive tree and landscaping removal should be avoided to
protect the character of the site and AONB

¢ Proposed holiday lets could become long terms lets or sold as separate dwellings.
o Natural water well located under proposed area for solar panels

e Solar panels located adjacent to livestock route on adjoining land

¢ Historic stables could be undermined by proposed extension building

¢ Increase in traffic along access track which is used by livestock

¢ Bats within the site — trees and outbuildings — would be affected by construction
works

¢ Potential for less traffic using the access track

¢ Glenfall House in need of sympathetic restoration and modernisation. EXxisting
outbuildings detract from main house

e Proposals would result in much needed investment in this building for the future
¢ Drainage routes under the proposed garage/store outbuilding

¢ Proposals would support the local hospitality industry

6. OFFICER COMMENTS

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Determining Issues

The key issues are (i) the principle of demolition of listed buildings and other structures,
(i) principle of new residential development in this location, (iii) the design, scale and
layout of the proposals, including the listed building alterations, and their impact upon the
historic fabric and significance of the listed building; (iv) impact on the setting and
character of the listed park and gardens, (v) parking, access and any highway safety
implications, (vi) impact on the amenities of adjoining land users, (vii) drainage and
flooding, (viii) impact on existing trees within and adjacent the site and (ix) ecology,
protected species and recreational pressure on the Beechwoods SAC.

Principle of Development/Planning Policy Context

The relevant policy documents are the adopted Cheltenham Plan (2020) (CP), the
adopted Joint Core Strategy (2017) (JCS) and the NPPF (2023). Policies D1, SL1, BG1,
G12 and G13 of the CP and policies SD4, SD6, SD7, SD8, SD9, SD10, SD14 and INF2 of
the JCS are most relevant.

The application site is located outside of the Principal Urban Area (PUA) of Cheltenham
and wholly within the Cotswolds National Landscape (AONB); Landscape Character Type
2 (Escarpment) and Landscape Character Area 2c (Escarpment: Coopers Hill to
Winchcombe). Other than the site’s location within the AONB, the application site does not
fall within any other statutory landscape or environmental designations. The Environment
Agency’s (EA) Flood Map indicates that the site is at low risk of flooding (Flood Zone 1).

This is a brownfield site and therefore ‘previously developed land’ as defined by the
NPPF. The site is located outside of the PUA, some 4 kilometre distance from the nearest
local services in Charlton Kings where there is access to a wide range of day-to-day



6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

Page 69

services such as shops, schools, amenities and employment opportunities. The nearest
residential/built up areas are Ham and the Battledown Estate. There are also a number of
regular bus services serving Glenfall Road, Ham Road and London Road. However, given
the distance and otherwise remote location of Glenfall House, the site cannot be
considered a sustainable location for new residential development, in the context of the
NPPF.

Within the PUA the principle of new residential development on previously developed land
is supported by Policy SD10 of the Joint Core Strategy (JCS). Housing development on
other sites, will only be permitted where it meets certain exception criteria; one of which
relates to there being other specific exceptions/circumstances defined in district or
neighbourhood plans (Criterion 4).

SD10 Criterion 5 also sets out that proposals involving the sensitive, adaptive re-use of
vacant or redundant buildings will be encouraged, subject to the requirements of other
development plan policies, including JCS policy SD8.

Paragraph 11 of the NPPF sets out a ‘presumption in favour of sustainable development’
and makes it clear that development proposals that accord with an up to date
development plan, should be approved without delay.

Paragraph 11 of the NPPF states ‘Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in
favour of sustainable development....and for decision making this means approving
development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan’. Where policies
which are most important for determining the application are out-of-date, the NPPF at
paragraph 11(d) advises that planning permission should be granted ‘(i) unless the
application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or (ii) any
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits,
when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole’. This is referred
to as the ‘tilted balance’ in favour of sustainable development.

The protected areas or assets referred to at (i) above are, in this case, the listed
building(s) and park and garden and the AONB.

Footnote 7 of paragraph 11 of the NPPF explains further that for applications involving the
provision of housing, relevant policies must be considered out of date in situations where
the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing.

Cheltenham Borough Council is currently unable to demonstrate a five-year supply of
housing land and at the time of writing the latest published figure is 4.84 years.

The proposals include the creation of 1no. single dwelling within the main house and 5no.
units of holiday accommodation. In normal circumstances, holiday accommodation does
not contribute to the Council’'s 5 year housing land supply figures. The one proposed
single dwelling (although a small contribution) would go towards alleviating the current
shortfall and as such is a material consideration in the determination of this planning
application.

As mentioned above, the application site is designated land and lies wholly within the
AONB. Paragraph 182 of the NPPF states that ‘great weight should be given to
conserving and enhancing the landscape and scenic beauty in Areas of Outstanding
Natural Beauty which have the highest status of protection in relation to these issues’. The
scale and extent of development within the AONB should therefore be limited and
proposals for development considered carefully.

The above is consistent with Policy SD7 of the JCS which states that all development
proposals in or within the setting of the Cotswolds AONB will be required to conserve and,



6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

Page 70

where appropriate, enhance its landscape, scenic beauty, wildlife, cultural heritage and
other special qualities. Proposals will also be required to be consistent with the policies
set out in the Cotswold AONB Management Plan.

Policy CE1 of the Cotswolds AONB Management Plan 2025-30 requires:

1. Proposals that are likely to impact on, or create change in, the landscape of the
Cotswolds AONB, should have regard to, be compatible with and reinforce the landscape
character of the location, as described by the Cotswolds Conservation Board's Landscape
Character Assessment and Landscape Strategy and Guidelines.

2. Proposals that are likely to impact on, or create change in, the landscape of the
Cotswolds AONB, should have regard to the scenic quality of the location and its setting
and ensure that views - including those into and out of the AONB - and visual amenity are
conserved and enhanced.

Policy CE3 of the Cotswold Management Plan emphasises the importance of maintaining
local distinctiveness and respecting local settlement patterns through appropriate design.

Policy CE6 states that proposals that are likely to impact on the historic and cultural
heritage of the Cotswolds AONB should have regard to these features and seek to
conserve and enhance them. This should include respecting historical features, buildings,
sites, layout and context, including the relationship between the existing feature or
settlement and the landscape.

Paragraph 131 of the NPPF sets out that good design is a key aspect to achieving
sustainable places, and creating better places in which to live. Paragraph 135 goes on to
set out that development should add to the overall quality of the area, be visually
attractive, and be sympathetic to local character. Policy SD4 of the JCS and Policy D1 of
the Cheltenham Plan require development to be of a high standard of architectural design
that responds positively to and respects the character of the site and its surroundings.

Given the context and sensitivity of the site, regard must also be given to the legal and
policy context as it applies to heritage assets. Paragraph 16(2) of the Planning (Listed
buildings and Conservation Area) Act 1990 requires local planning authorities to have
special regard to the desirability of preserving the special architectural or historic interest
of listed buildings and their setting.

Section 16 of the NPPF sets out the importance of conserving and enhancing heritage
assets. Paragraph 192 of the NPPF advises that in determining planning applications,
local planning authorities should take into account:

- the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation

- the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable
communities including their economic vitality; and

- the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and
distinctiveness

Similarly, Policy SD8 of the Joint Core Strategy requires development to make a positive
contribution to local character and distinctiveness, having regard to the valued elements of
the historic environment. It states how ‘Designated and undesignated heritage assets and
their settings will be conserved and enhanced as appropriate to their significance’.

In summary, the site is located outside of the PUA and within the AONB. As such, the
principle of new residential development to provide residential holiday accommodation in



6.25

6.26

6.27

6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

6.32

6.33

6.34

Page 71

this location may not be acceptable within the context of Policy SD10. Furthermore, this
element of the proposals would not contribute to the Council’s housing land supply.
However, subject to the approval of appropriate and sympathetic works, there are no
concerns regarding the principle of converting the principal listed building to a single
dwelling, as Glenfall House was first constructed as a dwelling.

The impact of the proposals on the significance of the designated heritage assets, the
AONB, and the other merits of the proposals are discussed in full below.

Design, Layout and Heritage Impact

Scheme Proposals and Revisions

The proposals are extensive and include the part change of use of the principal listed
building from a hotel/wedding venue to a single dwelling (C3) and the demolition of all
existing, curtilage buildings and structures within the grounds of Glenfall House. The
timber cabin located in the far corner of the grounds and a number of smaller incidental
garden structures would remain. The existing historic curtilage buildings include a former
coach house, former stables and early c20th motor garage, along with remnants of the
walled garden and its associated garden structures, all of which are considered to be
curtilage listed buildings.

The July 2024 revised scheme shows that the existing curtilage listed buildings would be
replaced by a two storey extension to the main house, which would accommodate 2no.
two storey dwellings (1 x 3 bed and 1 x 2bed), 1no. 2 bed apartment, garages, leisure
facilities, refuse and ancillary storage facilities. A single storey, hipped roof swimming
pool building and associated plant would be attached to the end of the proposed
extension via a single storey link. The swimming pool building would sit noticeably forward
of the principal, north elevation of the listed building. This would result in a large S-
shaped building range attached to the listed building. A first floor overhang within the
extension would provide vehicular access to the rear of the extension for parking and
access to the proposed holiday accommodation and its parking areas. The proposed
extension would be faced in red brick under a slate tiled pitched roof with flat roofed
dormer windows to both front and rear roof slopes.

The ground floor of the west wing of the extension attached to the main house would
accommodate the garaging, refuse and recycling stores and plant room for the main
house. It would also provide the access for the upper floor apartment. The remainder of
the extension accommodates the 2no. two storey dwellings plus a ground floor gym.

A detached, pitched roof garage/store outbuilding positioned behind the south elevation of
the proposed extension range is also proposed along with a plant (ASHP) enclosure
adjacent to the swimming pool building and (east) site boundary. This element of the
proposals also includes a raised, walled garden terrace, presumably to be used in
association with the leisure facilities.

Various internal and external works to the principal listed building are proposed, including
the sub-division of the main house to provide 2no. two storey, 2 bed dwellings and the
removal of later c20™ additions, plant and other physical building alterations.

The erection of a greenhouse/orangery and tennis court with the landscaped gardens, in
the location of an historic tennis court, are also proposed.

The application details, and description of development indicate that the 5no. new
dwellings proposed would be occupied as holiday accommodation and not as
independent, separate dwellings. The applicant has confirmed that the other proposed
facilities i.e. swimming pool, gym, gardens and tennis court, would be used by both the



6.35

6.36

6.37

6.38

6.39

6.40

6.41

6.42

6.43

6.44

Page 72

occupiers of the main house and the holiday accommodation units. The application has
been determined on this basis.

Note that the total number of existing dwellings on site (excluding the staff
accommodation associated with the existing hotel use) is 3; 1-3 Glenfall Garden Cottages.

Heritage Impacts

The acceptability of the proposed demolition works to the listed building and curtilage
listed structures and the corresponding impacts on the setting, character and appearance
of the listed building(s) and registered park and garden are key to the considerations of
this application; since these drive the remainder of the proposals.

During pre-application discussions in 2022 (in relation to a similar scheme), the
Conservation officer (CO) concluded that, although the proposed demolition and internal
works to the main house were acceptable in principle, the proposed wholescale demolition
of the curtilage listed outbuildings would result in harm to significance, by virtue of
removing an element of the historic evolution of the estate. The proposed demolition of
the historic outbuildings was therefore considered unacceptable and the applicant advised
that the reuse of the historic parts of these service outbuildings should be fully explored.

Notwithstanding the above concerns, the CO recognised that the existing visual
relationship between the north elevations of Glenfall House and the outbuildings is
problematic due to poor separation distance, similar height and colour of facing materials.
As such, some suggestions for restoring the character of the outbuildings were given.

The location, scale and massing of the pre-application proposals for replacement
buildings were also considered unacceptable and resulted in an intensification of bulky
built form, lacking subservience to Glenfall House and competing visually with the
principal north elevation, regardless of the more open front courtyard setting proposed at
that time.

The CO also raised concerns from a heritage perspective, about the proposed units of
accommaodation and sub-division within the main house, which the CO considered should
remain ancillary only to the residential use of the main dwelling.

By contrast, having assessed the current application, the CO agrees broadly with the
findings of the applicant’s updated and more comprehensive Heritage Impact Assessment
in that the outbuildings are identified as having “a low level of significance, diminished
further as a result of the substantial alterations and extensions, which themselves now
adversely affect the setting the listed building”. The CO comments that the submitted
documents now provide a better understanding of the significance of the curtilage listed
structures and, on that basis, justification for the proposed demolition works in principle.
However, the CO makes it very clear that although all the existing outbuildings are
considered to have a low level of significance, the demolition of these outbuildings is still
considered to result in a degree of harm.

Paragraph 206 of the NPPF states, “Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a
designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its
setting), should require clear and convincing justification.” NPPF paragraph 208 states,
“Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance
of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of
the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.”

The applicant has identified the public benefits of the proposals (as required by NPPF
paragraph 208). The benefits in this case are considered to be securing the removal of



6.45

6.46

6.47

6.48

6.49

Page 73

modern interventions to the main house, returning it back to a private dwellinghouse,
repairs and renovation to the roof, removing the water tank, repairs to stucco and internal
architectural features, conservation of the registered garden and its garden structures.
These are recognised as public benefits (for the purposes of para 208) and must be given
weight. Members are reminded that the assessment of public benefits required by
paragraph 208 is a separate exercise to the overall planning balance considerations and
those of paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF.

Despite the various scheme revisions, and whilst the principle of demolition of the
curtilage listed buildings may be acceptable, the CO maintains their concerns over the
scale, massing and layout of the proposed development that would replace the curtilage
listed buildings.

The various earlier scheme submissions are summarised as follows:-

Original scheme received 5" September 2023

Roughly L-shaped, two storey extension from west elevation of listed building, continuing
south as far as the southern site boundary with Oakfield Farm. Stable block on adjoining
land located within 2 metres of the two storey side (south) elevation of the proposed
extension. Extension faced in brick under a predominantly pitched roof with slate tile
covering and dormer windows.

Detached, two storey swimming pool and leisure building located forward of the principal
north elevation near the entrance drive.

Various internal and external alterations to the main house, plus removal of some later
additions and plant. Erection of a greenhouse within the walled garden and tennis court
within the landscaped grounds.

5no. residential units proposed — 3 no. first floor apartments above ground floor garages
(1 x1bed & 2x 2 bed) and 2no. 2 bed converted dwellings within main house.

Revised Scheme received 2™ April 2024

Layout similar but the proposed two storey extension is shown rendered with a hipped
roof. Alterations made to fenestration and garage entrance features

Leisure/swimming pool building reduced in overall size/footprint and now single storey in
height. Relocated slightly further south away from entrance drive towards the Oak tree.

5no. residential units proposed — 2no. 2 bed first floor apartments, 1 no. 2 bed two storey
dwelling and 2no. converted dwellings within main house

The other elements of the proposed development were unchanged.

May/June 2024 Draft Schemes

Revised, draft schemes were also submitted and discussed in May 2024. The revisions
included a new courtyard layout, with L-shaped extension and attached swimming
pool/leisure building. Some of the ground floor garaging within the extension was
replaced by 2 storey dwellings. A first floor overhang allowed vehicular access to the
holiday accommodation and outbuilding. Red brick replaced the previous rendered
external finish, with dormer windows re-instated within the pitched slate roofs.

A detached, single storey pitched roof garage/store outbuilding adjacent to the southern
site boundary was also added.



6.50

6.51

6.52

6.53

Page 74

The above revisions had not been previously suggested by officers or discussed with the
applicant.

The location of proposed solar panels and design of the greenhouse and tennis court
were also amended.

An earlier draft iteration showed a detached, two and single storey swimming pool building
and two storey L-shaped range; the gap between opening up views from the main house
to the Oak tree.

Conservation Officer - Final Comments

The Conservation officer's comments on the final scheme submitted in July 2024 is set
out in full below. The revised scheme responds to some of the concerns raised by officers
during the course of the application and thereby incorporates some of the requested
changes. However, there are a number of aspects that have not been adequately
addressed.

The CO’s comments on all previous submitted schemes are set out in full within the
consultation section at the end of the report.

Glenfall House 23/01424/LBC

Drawings 13th May 2024

Greenhouse

Brochure details of the greenhouse have been submitted. The overall scale and design is
considered acceptable in principle with respect to scale design and materials,
notwithstanding the need for more detailed drawings including sections the profile of
glazing and samples of materials. The indicative elevations/site plan demonstrate the
greenhouse would be aesthetically acceptable and appear subservient within the overall
context of the group of heritage assets.

Proposed tennis court

The principle of reinstating a tennis court in the location of an historic tennis court is
acceptable. Details of the Pladex tennis court, in green, with mesh and obelisks post
fencing are acceptable. The proposed tennis court would be visually recessive (a
purple/blue surface would not be appropriate) and appropriate to the historic context.

Revisions made 30th July 2024

The proposed removal of the historic extensions to the main house are acceptable, as are
the proposed internal alterations to Glenfall House.

Garage Store Building

The garage /workshop is reduced in size by 1m and is now timber clad to ensure
simplicity and status of workshop building. The change to red brick is welcome, as is the
timber cladding.

Outbuildings



Page 75

Demolition of the existing outbuildings represents an opportunity to create clear hierarchy
of buildings across the site, with the main house retaining visual prominence. Whilst it is
accepted that the standing group of curtilage listed buildings are of low significance and
that as a result of change over time the current outbuildings lack cohesion, this does not in
itself justify the extent of the proposed footprint of the apartment range.

The existing outbuildings (considered curtilage listed), whilst of low significance, form part
of the historical significance of the Glenfall estate. Albeit that the standing buildings are
much evolved, visually they read as service buildings, set back from the south elevation of
Glenfall House allowing the listed building to retain prominence and are illustrative of the
evolution of the country estate.

The latest proposals comprise a substantial L-shaped two storey building to the east of
the listed building, with a single storey leisure building attached at the rear of the range
and a greenhouse and garage to the east of the south lawn.

There are several direct heritage benefits, as set out on page 24 of the Heritage
Statement, these are acknowledged and welcome. It would have been pertinent to update
the Heritage Impact Statement in light of the revised proposals, in line with paragraph 200
of the NPPF. An elevation of the swimming pool elevation is also required to assess the
scheme and officers await this drawing, in order to assess the proposal.

Timber cladding of the garage is welcome and the slight reduction in the scale of the
garage block, on balance, would be acceptable, on the basis that the attached range is
reduced in size as discussed below.

To create a sense of a ‘service courtyard’ the proposed apartment buildings should be
scaled back with the L-shaped service range reduced in length and, ideally, in height to
1.5 storeys, such that the range presents within the group of buildings as a visually
recessive element within the setting of Glenfall House.

The single storey ‘break’ between the main house and the new development is acceptable
and the introduction of hipped roofs and the arched garage openings is welcome. Brick
has been re-introduced as a contrasting material, which is also welcome. The Leisure
building would read better within the scheme if it was separated from the main range and
relocated back to the north-east but not linked. There is an opportunity to open-up the
view of the oak tree from main house by re-siting of the leisure building and/or removal of
the arch feature on the main range, this opportunity has not been harnessed under the
latest scheme drawings (although this was presented on an earlier version of the
proposals).

Officers previously advised that the proposed two-storey range should be reduced to 1.5
storey and that the overall design should reflect an ancillary building, with simple
fenestration and a less domestic appearance. This has been achieved, to a degree, and in
principle the thrust of the design and enclosing the courtyard could be supported.
However, the scale and length of the range cannot be supported. The overall footprint and
of the proposal, including the leisure building, would be larger than the listed building, this
coupled with the scale and minimal set back from the rear building line would result in a
set of buildings that compete visually and therefore would not be subservient to the
heritage asset.

The principle of demolition of the curtilage buildings has been accepted on the basis that
new development coming forward mitigates heritage harm. Whilst the scheme includes
direct heritage benefits, these would not balance out the level of harm to significance that
would occur as a result to an unacceptable impact on the setting of Glenfall House (grade
I listed), Glenfall lodge (grade Il listed), Gate Piers, Gates and Walls to Glenfall House
(grade Il) Rose Gate (grade Il listed) and Glenfall House Registered Park and Garden



6.54

6.55

6.56

6.57

6.58

6.59

Page 76

(grade I). As a group these assets relate visually to each other and their settings overlap.
The heritage context is therefore rich and all assets are of high significance.

The proposal cannot be supported in its current form. There are significant concerns
regarding the scale, massing, design and layout of the proposed attached outbuildings.
The main range of outbuildings component of the proposal cannot be supported, on the
basis that by virtue of an unacceptable impact on the setting of heritage assets, the
proposal would fail to preserve the special historic and architectural interest of heritage
assets. The level of harm would be at the higher end of the ‘less than substantial’ scale,
engaging paragraph 208 of the NPPF and contrary to policy SD8 of the Joint Core
Strategy.

The revised proposals July 2024 cannot be supported from a heritage perspective as it
stands.

Officers acknowledge that the proposals include the demolition of several, poorer
additions to the main house and some derelict structures within the grounds. Equally, it is
largely accepted that the footprint of the proposed new build elements does not differ
substantially when compared with the footprint of existing buildings to be demolished. In
this respect, the applicant has helpfully provided a site plan on which the footprint of the
existing curtilage buildings is superimposed. Furthermore, the area of proposed built form
does not extend significantly further within the site.

The applicants’ efforts in engaging with officers in seeking to address officer concerns is
fully acknowledged and appreciated. The application process has necessitated protracted
discussions and negotiation over a long period, plus a number of site visits accompanied
by conservation and planning officers.

Unfortunately, whilst there has been improvement to certain design and layout elements,
the revised scheme has not addressed the fundamental concerns over the cumulative
effects of the size, scale, massing, layout and subservience of the new build elements and
the resultant harm to the significance (setting) of the designated heritage assets. The
proposed two storey extension, which adopts a continuous S shaped footprint, extends
approximately 74 metres in continuous length and some 41 metres in length north/south
with a maximum height of approximately 8.5 metres. The proposed detached
garage/store outbuilding is located in close proximity to the rear, south elevation of the
extension and has a footprint of 75 sqg. metres and height of 5.2 metres.

Whilst the thrust of the design and enclosing the courtyard could be supported by the CO,
the scale and length of the range cannot. The overall footprint of the proposed extension,
including the leisure building, would be larger than the listed building. This, coupled with
the scale and minimal set back from the rear building line, would result in a set of
buildings that compete visually and therefore would not be subservient to the designated
heritage asset. On heritage grounds, officers are therefore unable to fully support the
proposed development.

The proposed works are not considered to sustain the designated heritage assets, and
cause harm to their significance. The extent of harm is considered to be at the upper end
of ‘less than substantial’, as defined by the NPPF (2023). It is not considered there are
meaningful public benefits that might outweigh this harm. The proposed works do not
therefore comply with Sections 16 and 66 of the Planning (Listed Building and
Conservation Area) Act 1990, Chapter 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework and
Policy SD8 of the Joint Core Strategy 2017.

Civic Society



6.60

6.61

6.62

6.63

6.64

6.65

6.66

6.67

6.68

Page 77

The Civic Society has raised an objection to the proposals. Although supportive of the
proposed internal works to the main house and re-instatement of the Arts and Crafts style
garden, concerns are raised over the wholescale demolition of the ancillary buildings,
particularly the historic stables and coach house, which would be replaced by ‘bland
modern buildings’.

Impact on neighbouring property

Section 12 of the NPPF highlights that development should promote a high standard of
amenity for existing and future users. This is further emphasised in policy SD14 of the
JCS and Cheltenham Plan SL1 which set out the requirement for development not to
cause unacceptable harm to the amenity of adjoining land users and the locality.

The nearest neighbouring property that has potential to be impacted by the proposed
development is Oakfield Farm, which has land and buildings adjoining the south and east
application site boundaries. Oakfield Farm is a working farm which houses cattle in close
proximity to the east site boundary. Representations have been made the occupiers of
the farm holding in respect of both the original and revised schemes. The concerns raised
focus on the proximity of the stable block on adjoining land, the welfare of livestock, noise
and disturbance affecting the future occupiers of the proposed holiday accommodation
and the potential for future complaints against the farm. These concerns have been
considered very carefully and the Council’'s Environmental Health team (EHO) consulted
on each of the submitted schemes. The EHO responses are set out in full at the end of
the report.

In summary, the EHO has no objection to the proposed development subject to the
imposition of a number of conditions relating to the type/model, location and predicted
noise levels of the proposed ground and air source heat pumps, a sound insulation
scheme for the proposed residential units and a construction environmental management
plan. A condition is also required to limit the use of the proposed leisure facilities by the
residents of Glenfall House and guests of the holiday lets only and not by the general
public or external hire. A condition preventing the use of amplified music within the leisure
facilities after 22:00 hours should also be added.

Subject to the above conditions, which are all considered reasonable and necessary in
this case, the proposed development (as revised) would not result in significant harm to
the amenities of adjoining land users. Officers consider that the revised layout (i.e. re-
positioning of the proposed two storey extension away from the site boundary and
adjacent stable block and the location of the additional outbuilding adjacent to the
southern site boundary address officers concerns in relation to any potential, significant
harmful impact upon the amenities of users of the adjacent stables.

Officers are also mindful that there are three existing separate dwellings (1-3 Glenfall
Garden Cottages) on site which are located closer to the neighbouring farm buildings than
the 2 nearest proposed dwellings (units 3 and 5). There do not appear to have been any
complaints made against the farm by the occupiers of the existing three dwellings.

Similarly, the (revised) solar panels on the southern roof slope of the proposed outbuilding
and the ground mounted solar panel array on the edge of the walled garden along the
southern site boundary do not give rise to significant amenity concerns in relation to
adjoining land users.

With all of the above in mind, the proposed development is considered to be compliant
with adopted CP policy SL1 and adopted JCS policy SD14 which require development to
protect the existing amenity of neighbouring land users and the locality and those of future
occupiers.



6.69

6.70

6.71

6.72

6.73

6.74

6.75

6.76

6.77

6.78

6.79

6.80

Page 78

Access and highway issues

Adopted JCS policy INF1 advises that all development proposals should provide for safe
and efficient access to the highway network for all transport needs. The policy identifies
that planning permission will be granted where the impact of the development on the
highway network will not be severe. The policy reflects the advice set out within Section 9
of the NPPF.

The proposed main vehicular access via Mill Lane would remain largely unaltered but with
some re-alignment of the main drive within the front curtilage. Dedicated parking areas
and some garaging are shown for both the main house and 5 proposed residential units.
Although not indicated on the site plan, there is no reason to suggest that EV charging
points could not also be provided for all proposed units.

The applicant sets out transport related matters within the covering Planning Statement,
albeit the information provided is brief.

The County Council Highways Development Management Team, acting as Local Highway
Authority (HA) was consulted on the proposals, including the revised schemes submitted.
In summary, the HA raise no objection to the proposed development. The HA offered no
comment on the revised proposals.

Notwithstanding the above response from the HA, officers have considered transport
matters more broadly. The application site is located over 3.5km from the nearest local
services. Access to these facilities is likely to be solely by car and there are no public
transport options available. The proposals do not therefore promote sustainable travel
choices or provide suitable access for all users. However, the proposed development in
this location is, on balance, considered acceptable from a transport perspective and the
proposed access and parking arrangements suitable. In reaching this conclusion, officers
have been mindful of the existing use of the site as a hotel/wedding venue which will
generate traffic movement (varying in intensity) and a reliance on a private car for site
access.

Although the use of the site as a single dwelling and holiday accommodation may change
the purpose and timings of traffic movements to and from the site, the level of traffic
movements would not be dissimilar to those associated with the current use of the site.

Furthermore, given the nature of the proposed holiday accommodation use, trips to a local
food store for example, are likely to be combined with trips to other destinations. Holiday
accommaodation, by its very nature, is often located in more remote, countryside locations.

Note that, given the rural location of the site, the use of the proposed holiday units as
permanent, separate dwelling houses would need further consideration, having regard to
the sustainable transport aims of the National Planning Policy Framework set out at
paragraphs 114 and 116.

Sustainability

The Cheltenham Climate Change SPD (2022), sets out a detailed strategy for
decarbonising homes over the next decade. For residential alterations and extensions
there is an opportunity to improve the environmental performance of a home through the
inclusion of technologies and features such as photovoltaics, replacement windows, heat
recovery, permeable (or minimal) hard surfaces, works to chimneys, insulation,
replacement heating systems (heat pump) and thoughtful kitchen design. This is reflected
in Policy SD3 of the JCS.

The application includes an Energy and Sustainability Strategy (relating to the scheme
layout as first submitted). Given the listed status of the retained, converted building, the



6.81

6.82

6.83

6.84

6.85

6.86

6.87

6.88

6.89

Page 79

document notes the modest scope for energy efficient improvements. However, there are
clear opportunities to reduce energy demand in respect of the new build elements of the
proposals. Various mitigation measures/statement of intent are proposed to
proportionately combat climate change. The measures to be investigated and
implemented include:

e Replacement of primary heat source (biomass wood pellet boiler system) with
electric heat pump system (site is not on the main gas grid) — resulting in 69.8%
reduction in primary energy demand and a 17% reduction in carbon dioxide
emissions

Installation of ground source heat pump and air source heat pump systems for
domestic heating

Roof mounted solar panels and ground mounted PV array

Removal of energy inefficient later additions to main house

Heat recovery system for swimming pool

Natural ventilation techniques (other than building regulation requirements for
bathrooms, kitchens and mechanical ventilation needs of the swimming pool)

Given the scale and nature of the proposals, which affect a listed building, it is considered
that the above demonstrates an acceptable and welcome response to climate change, the
Council’'s SPD guidance and the objectives of Policy SD3 of the JCS

Other considerations

Drainage and Flooding

The application site lies within Flood Zone 1 and therefore the potential flood risk is low.
There appear to be no water courses within the site.

The Local Lead Flood Authority (LLFA) has reviewed the submitted Flood Risk
Assessment (FRA). A number of queries and requests for further information were made;
in relation to the surface water discharge strategy, soakaways, discharge rates, climate
change allowances and exceedance flow plans. In summary, the information submitted is
considered insufficient for this type of development and does not meet the standards
required for sustainable drainage. The LLFA’s comments are set out in full at the end of
the report.

Unfortunately, the revised schemes submitted do not address the LLFA’s concerns and no
further drainage documentation was provided.

Holiday Accommodation/Residential Use

It is necessary to consider the proposed use of the new build element as holiday
accommodation; the application having been submitted and determined on this basis.

There is much case law on whether such a use falls within Class C1 or Class C3. This
will be a matter of fact and degree and dependent on the characteristics of the holiday
accommodation use proposed and site characteristics. In this case, the 5 new residential
units are considered to fall within Class C3 and range from a two bedroom apartment to a
two storey, three bedroom residential unit. As indicated on the site plan submitted, other
than perhaps unit 5, the proposed residential units would have no obvious separate
residential curtilage but would benefit from the use of the wider grounds and site



6.90

6.91

6.92

6.93

6.94

6.95

6.96

6.97

6.98

6.99

Page 80

amenities. The applicant has confirmed this arrangement. If the dwellings were to be
privately owned, the situation may be very different.

The site is located approximately 4km from the nearest local services and outside of the
PUA. There is no development plan policy that directly relates to the provision of holiday
accommodation outside of the PUA; although JCS policy SD10 (criterion 5) allows for the
sensitive adaptation of an existing vacant or underused building to residential use and this
policy is not location specific. Similarly, Policy L2 of the CP allows the conversion of rural
buildings to uses other than agriculture subject to various requirements.

It is therefore reasonable to conclude that the appropriate conversion or sub-division of an
isolated building in the countryside to residential use is likely to be supported, in principle.
The same support in principle would not apply to new build dwellings or new build holiday
accommodation within the countryside.

In this case and mindful of the policy context, officers have had to consider the existing
use of the site as a hotel/wedding venue, and thereby the existing use of the site for
similar holiday accommodation purposes. The planning history of site indicates other
similar recreation/hotel type uses of the property. There are also 3 existing separate
dwellinghouses on site (1-3 Glenfall Garden Cottages), plus some residential staff
accommodation associated with the existing hotel/wedding venue. The net gain in
residential units on site (including the change of use of Glenfall House) would therefore be
3 new dwellings/holiday lets.

Given the rather unique circumstances of this site and its planning history, the principle of
the proposed redevelopment of the site and provision of new build residential units/holiday
lets in an isolated, rural location outside of the PUA, on balance, is considered acceptable.

However, in accordance with the terms of the application submission and for the reasons
set out above, officers would consider it necessary and reasonable to impose a condition
restricting the use of the buildings as holiday lets. Should there be any future application
to remove or vary this condition, the suitability/use of the buildings in this location as
separate, permanent dwellings would be considered at that time.

In addition, the Conservation Officer has raised significant concerns about the further sub-
division of the site through the creation of distinct curtilages associated with the residential
use of the proposed new outbuildings. Similarly, there was concern raised by the CO over
the sub-division of the main house to create separate residential units.

Landscape and Visual Impact

The site is located wholly within the Cotswold National Landscape. Given the sensitive
location of the site the applicant has carried out a Landscape and Visual Assessment
(LVA) of the proposals. This document describes the landscape character and setting of
Glenfall House and gardens and identifies various viewpoints from which the potential
landscape visual impact is assessed.

The Cotswold National Landscape Board were consulted on the proposed development,
LVA and subsequent scheme revisions. The Board has no objection to the principle of the
change of use from a wedding venue with hotel accommodation to a private dwelling with
ancillary leisure uses and holiday let accommodation. No objection is also raised to the
re-instatement of the grounds and the proposed demolition works. However, some initial
concerns were raised regarding the proposed design of the replacement buildings, notably
the swimming pool/leisure building and their impact on the natural beauty of the AONB.

In summary, the Board concluded that the change to the immediate landscape character
would be low and would result in a beneficial landscape effect and any change beyond the
grounds is assessed as negligible. Views of the site are limited and filtered by natural



Page 81

vegetation. As such, the character of the site and immediate landscape would be
retained. The proposals would therefore result in a slight beneficial visual effect, where
seen. However the Board considered that there would be an adverse impact on dark sky
quality, having regard to paragraph 185 of the NPPF. The application lacks details on
internal and external proposed lighting and the swimming pool building incorporates
extensive glazing, leading to light spillage. The re-design of this building was therefore
suggested.

6.100In response to the above concerns the revised scheme(s) include changes to the
elevation and roof treatment of the swimming pool building. The Board subsequently
withdrew their objection, subject to the imposition of their suggested condition to secure
the subsequent approval of an external lighting scheme.

6.101Ecology, BNG, Environmental Impact and Protected Species

6.102The applicant has carried out a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA), including a bat
survey of the existing buildings and Great Crested Newt survey. These documents have
been reviewed by the Council’s Ecologist (EO).

6.103The EO comments that the bat surveys confirm that the roof of the main house and the
coach house provide roosting habitat for bats. These roosts would be disturbed and in the
case of the coach house, lost as a result of the proposed development. As such, an EPS
mitigation licence from Natural England would need to be obtained. Otherwise, the bat
mitigation measures outlined within the PEA, are considered appropriate.

6.104The survey recommendations for ecological mitigation and enhancement and sensitive
strategies for external lighting are therefore supported and could be secured by
appropriately worded conditions.

6.1051t is recognised that a minimum 10% biodiversity net gain (BNG) is now mandatory for all
major developments; unless certain exemptions apply. If a planning application for a
development was made before day one of mandatory BNG on 12 February 2024, the
development is exempt from BNG. In this case, the planning application was received in
September 2023.

6.106 Nonetheless, the submitted BNG report demonstrates that the development could achieve
over 10% net gain for linear and area habitats. Again, this could be delivered and
maintained as part of any subsequent approved landscaping scheme.

6.107GCER records also show that important species or habitats have been sighted on or near
the application site in the past, including bats. The submitted PEA is an appropriate
assessment of the impact on these protected species.

6.108Habitats Requlations Assessment/ Cotswolds Commons and Beechwoods Site of Special
Scientific Interest (SSSI) and Special Area of Conservation (SAC)

6.109Policy BG1 of the Cheltenham Plan relates to the Cotswold Beechwoods Special Area of
Conservation (SAC) — recreation pressure. It states that development will not be permitted
where it would be likely to lead directly or indirectly to an adverse effect upon the integrity
of the European Site network (alone or in combination), and the effects cannot be
mitigated.

6.110Therefore, in order to retain the integrity of the Cotswold Beechwoods Special Area of
Conservation (SAC) all development within the borough that leads to a net increase in
dwellings will be required to mitigate any adverse effects.

6.111The application site is within a zone of influence as set out in the Cotswold Beechwoods
SAC Recreation Mitigation Strategy (May 2022) for recreational pressure for the Cotswold



Page 82

Beechwoods SAC, which is afforded protection under the Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2017 (as amended).

6.112Without appropriate mitigation, the proposed development is likely to have a significant
effect on the Cotswold Beechwoods SAC (either alone or in combination with other
development) through increased recreational pressure.

6.113Therefore, the Council, as the responsible authority, has undertaken an Appropriate
Assessment (under the Habitats Regulations 2017) and considers the measures set out in
the Mitigation Strategy necessary to provide adequate mitigation to address the impacts of
the proposal. The applicant can therefore either enter into a s106 contribution of £673 per
new dwelling to contribute to the measures in that strategy or propose on or off-site
mitigation. There are no opportunities for on-site mitigation and the applicant has opted to
make the s106 contribution of £673. Subject to completion to the s106, the proposal will
not adversely affect the integrity of the Cotswold Beechwoods SAC.

6.114There is currently dispute between officers and the applicant as to the number of existing
dwellings on site. Discussions on this matter are on-going, but in any event, the minimum
net gain in dwellings would be one dwelling.

6.115A Unilateral Undertaking to secure appropriate SAC mitigation has not been signed and
completed by the applicant or the relevant monies and fees paid.

6.116Trees and Landscaping

6.117All trees on site are protected by virtue of a blanket TPO (TPO721). The Council’s Trees
Officer (TO) has therefore undertaken a thorough review of the proposed tree and soft
landscaping proposals and considered the Arboricultural Impact Assessment submitted.
His comments on the submitted scheme(s), are set out in full in the consultation section of
this report.

6.118No overriding concerns are raised, albeit a suitable method statement (conforming to
BS5837) to describe the resurfacing of the drive should be submitted, to avoid root
damage to TPO’d trees. The TO considers that the planting scheme, although generous,
lacks detail (species, tree size, pit details). A subsequent detailed landscaping scheme
could be secured by condition and should include the recommendations made by the
arborist to mitigate for the loss of T8.

6.119Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED)

6.120As set out in the Equality Act 2010, all public bodies, in discharging their functions must
have “due regard” to this duty. There are three main aims:

* Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected
characteristics;

» Taking steps to meet the needs of people with certain protected characteristics where
these are different from the needs of other people; and

* Encouraging people with certain protected characteristics to participate in public life or in
other activities where participation is disproportionately low.

6.121Whilst there is no absolute requirement to fully remove any disadvantage, the duty is to
have “regard to” and remove OR minimise disadvantage and in considering the merits of
this planning application the planning authority has taken into consideration the
requirements of the PSED.

6.1221In the context of the above PSED duties, this proposal is considered to be acceptable.



Page 83

7. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
applications for development must be determined in accordance with the development
plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The proposed internal alterations and removal of later c20th additions to the principal
listed building are considered broadly acceptable; other than some Conservation Officer
reservations about the further sub-division of the main house to provide separate
residential units. Whilst the principle of the demolition of the outbuildings is also
considered acceptable, this would cause a degree of harm to the significance of the
principal listed building, Glenfall House.

The applicant’s efforts in trying to produce a mutually acceptable scheme are
acknowledged. However, whilst there has been improvement made to certain design and
layout elements, the revised scheme has not addressed the fundamental concerns over
the cumulative effects of the size, scale, massing, layout and subservience of the new
build elements and the resultant harm to the significance (setting) of the designated
heritage assets. On heritage grounds, officers are therefore unable to fully support the
proposed development.

The proposed surface water drainage strategy is considered insufficient for the type and
scale of development proposed. The proposals do not therefore adhere to the design
guides and standards for sustainable drainage.

Subiject to conditions, there are no significant neighbour amenity or highway safety and
transport related concerns and suitable landscaping and tree protection could be secured
through the submission of a detailed landscaping scheme and method statement.

The use of the proposed residential units as holiday accommodation is, on balance,
acceptable. However, the use of all of the units as permanent, separate dwelling houses
is unlikely to be supported in this location and would require further consideration. A
condition restricting the use to holiday accommodation would therefore be necessary.

In carrying out an objective assessment of the proposals (in line with NPPF paragraph
11d), officers have had to balance any potential adverse impacts of the proposals on the
character of the site and wider locality (AONB) and the significance of the designated
heritage assets, the amenities of neighbouring land users and highway safety
implications, against any benefits that the scheme might bring. In this case, the benefits
include the one additional dwelling to alleviate the Council’s current housing supply
shortfall position and the various heritage benefits set out at paragraph 6.44, plus any
wider economic or social benefits that the scheme might bring in terms of the rural, tourist
economy and employment opportunities during the construction phase. The proposed
holiday let accommodation would not contribute to the Council’s 5 year housing land
supply figures.

Within the context of paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF, and having considered the impact of
the development on the significance of designated heritage assets and the AONB there
are identified clear reasons for refusing the application and the adverse impacts of the
proposed development would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits.

The recommendation is therefore to refuse both planning and listed building consent for
the following reasons.



Page 84
8. CONDITIONS / INFORMATIVES / REFUSAL REASONS

Planning — 23/01424/FUL

1 Glenfall House, Glenfall Lodge and the Gate Piers, Gates and Walls to Glenfall Lodge
are all Grade Il listed. The gardens of Glenfall House are also a Grade Il listed
registered park and garden. Overall, Glenfall House, the coach house/stables, the gate
piers, gates and walls to Glenfall Lodge, in combination create a strong group value.
The site is located outside of the Principal Urban Area of Cheltenham (PUA) and wholly
within the Cotswolds National Landscape (AONB).

Sections 66 and 16 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
require the local planning authority, when considering whether to grant planning
permission for development that affects a listed building or its setting, to have special
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting.

The proposed two storey extension, which adopts a continuous S shaped footprint,
extends approximately 74 metres in continuous length and some 41 metres in length
north/south with a maximum height of approximately 8.5 metres. The proposed
detached garage/store outbuilding is located in close proximity to the rear, south
elevation of the extension and has a footprint of 75 sq. metres and height of 5.2 metres.
By virtue of their overall size, design, scale, massing and layout, these elements of the
proposals are not considered to be subservient in scale or appearance to the principal
listed building and compete visually with it.  As such, their cumulative impact would
harm the setting of the principal listed building, Glenfall House, and thereby its
significance.

The proposed development is not considered to sustain the designated heritage assets,
and causes harm to their significance. Having regard to paragraph 208 of the NPPF,
the extent of harm is considered to be less than substantial, but there are not
considered to be any meaningful public benefits that might outweigh this harm.

The proposed development is therefore contrary to Policy D1 of the Cheltenham Plan
(2020), Policies SD4 and SD8 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017), Sections 16 and 66 of
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, Section 16 of the
National Planning Policy Framework (2023) and the Historic Environment Good
Practice Advice (note 2).

2 The proposed surface water drainage strategy is insufficient for the type and scale of
development proposed. The proposals do not therefore adhere to the design guides of
the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage and the CIRCA SuDS
Manual.

The proposed development is therefore contrary to adopted policy INF2 of the Joint
Core Strategy (2017) and Section 14 of the NPPF.

3 The proposed development, by virtue of resulting in a net increase in dwellings, would
result in an adverse effect on the integrity of the Cotswold Beechwoods SAC; however,
no mitigation has been is proposed to address the impacts of the proposal on the SAC.
Without appropriate mitigation, the proposed development is likely to have a significant
effect on the Cotswold Beechwoods SAC through increased recreational pressure.

The proposed development is therefore contrary to adopted policy BG1 of the
Cheltenham Plan (2020) and the aims of The Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017.



Page 85

Listed Building Consent — 23/01424/LBC

Glenfall House, Glenfall Lodge and the Gate Piers, Gates and Walls to Glenfall Lodge
are all Grade Il listed. The gardens of Glenfall House are also a Grade Il listed
registered park and garden. Overall, Glenfall House, the coach house/stables, the gate
piers, gates and walls to Glenfall Lodge, in combination create a strong group value.
The site is located outside of the Principal Urban Area of Cheltenham (PUA) and wholly
within the Cotswolds National Landscape (AONB).

Sections 66 and 16 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
require the local planning authority, when considering whether to grant planning
permission for development that affects a listed building or its setting, to have special
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting.

The proposed two storey extension, which adopts a continuous S shaped footprint,
extends approximately 74 metres in continuous length and some 41 metres in length
north/south with a maximum height of approximately 8.5 metres. The proposed
detached garage/store outbuilding is located in close proximity to the rear, south
elevation of the extension and has a footprint of 75 sg. metres and height of 5.2 metres.
By virtue of their overall size, design, scale, massing and layout, these elements of the
proposals are not considered to be subservient in scale or appearance to the principal
listed building and compete visually with it.  As such, their cumulative impact would
harm the setting of the principal listed building, Glenfall House, and thereby its
significance.

The proposed development is not considered to sustain the designated heritage assets,
and causes harm to their significance. Having regard to paragraph 208 of the NPPF,
the extent of harm is considered to be less than substantial, but there are not
considered to be any meaningful public benefits that might outweigh this harm.

The proposed development is therefore contrary to Policy D1 of the Cheltenham Plan
(2020), Policies SD4 and SD8 of the Joint Core Strategy (2017), Sections 16 and 66 of
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, Section 16 of the
National Planning Policy Framework (2023) and the Historic Environment Good
Practice Advice (note 2).

INFORMATIVES

1

In accordance with the requirements of The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the provisions of the NPPF, the
Local Planning Authority adopts a positive and proactive approach to dealing with
planning applications and where possible, will seek solutions to any problems that arise
when dealing with a planning application with the aim of fostering the delivery of
sustainable development.

At the heart of this positive and proactive approach is the authority's pre-application
advice service for all types of development. Further to this however, the authority
publishes guidance on the Council's website on how to submit planning applications
and provides full and up-to-date information in relation to planning applications to
enable the applicant, and other interested parties, to track progress.



Page 86

In this instance, having had regard to all material considerations, the authority cannot
provide a solution that will overcome the harm caused to the significance of the listed
building.

As a consequence, the proposal cannot be considered to be sustainable development
and therefore the authority had no option but to refuse planning permission.

CASE OFFICER: Mrs Lucy White

AUTHORISING OFFICER:

DATE:




Page 87

Consultations Appendix

Historic England

19th August 2024 -

Thank you for your letter of 14 August 2024 regarding further information on the above
application for listed building consent. On the basis of this information, we do not wish to
offer any comments. We suggest that you seek the views of your specialist

conservation adviser.

It is not necessary for us to be consulted on this application again, unless there are
material changes to the proposals. However, if you would like detailed advice from us,
please contact us to explain your request.

Heritage and Conservation 1
15th February 2024 -

Re: Conservation comments 23/01424/FUL & 23/01424/LBC - Glenfall House, Mill Lane,
Charlton Kings, Cheltenham

The proposed works are for a part change of use of principal building from hotel/event venue
to single dwelling (C3), including removal of extensions/alterations to principal building.
Demolition of coach house, stables and 20th century buildings and extensions and
replacement with new outbuildings consisting of garaging, holiday let apartments (C1),
leisure building (including swimming pool) and a greenhouse. Internal alterations to listed
building and alterations to historic landscaped grounds and kitchen garden.

Glenfall House is a grade Il listed building set within a grade Il listed registered park and
garden. The proposed works are for the demolition of various outbuildings, internal and
external alterations to existing house and new residential development.

There are main issues to consider are the impact of the proposed development on the grade
Il listed house, its associated curtilage listed buildings and the grade Il listed registered park
and garden.

Given the sensitivity of the site and its context, regard needs to be given to the legal and
policy context as it applies to heritage assets. The cornerstone of heritage legislation is the
Planning (Listed buildings and Conservation Area) Act 1990 of which para 72(1) states,
special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of that area and para 16(2), which requires local planning authorities to have
special regard to the desirability of preserving the special architectural or historic interest of
listed buildings and their setting.

A core principle of the National Planning Policy Framework 2023 (NPPF) is heritage assets
be conserved in a manner appropriate to their significance. Chapter 16, sets out the
approach to conserving and enhancing the historic environment. This assessment takes
account of the relevant considerations in these paragraphs, including paragraph 203 of the
NPPF, which requires the significance of heritage assets to be sustained and enhanced, with
paragraph 205 requiring great weight be given to the asset's conservation.

Advice regarding demolition was previously given under pre-application 22/00947/PREAPP.
The current application provides justification for demolition and shows a denser form of
development.

The existing historic outbuildings, which include the former coach house, former stables and
early c20th motor garage, along with remnants of the walled garden and associated
structures, are considered curtilage listed buildings. The submitted supporting documents
identify the low level of significance of these outbuildings, diminished further as a result of the



Page 88

substantial later alterations and extensions, which themselves now adversely affect the
setting of the listed building. These conclusions are agreed with.

While the outbuildings can be considered to have a low level of significance, the demolition
of these outbuildings is still considered to result in a degree of harm. Regarding harm
paragraph 206 of the NPPF states, "Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated
heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting),
should require clear and convincing justification." and paragraph 208 of the NPPF states,
"Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of
a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the
proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use."

The supporting documents are considered to provide clear and convincing justification for
demolition and directly address the public benefits of the proposal, they include:
Improvements to the setting of the listed Glenfall House; Securing the removal of modern
interventions to the house associated with its earlier commercial and institutional uses;
Returning it back to a private dwelling; Repairs and renovation of the roof, removing the
water tank, repairs to the stucco and internal architectural features; Conservation of the
registered garden and the various garden structures within it; Securing the long-term future
maintenance of the listed buildings on the site; Helping to secure a viable long term future
use for the place. It is recognised these are notable public benefits that need to be given
significant weight.

The proposed internal alterations to listed building, including removal of
extensions/alterations predominantly affect later, less sensitive areas of Glenfall House. The
proposed works are not objected.

The proposed solar panels to Glenfall House are considered prominently visible on the south
elevation from the South Lawn. It is advised these are removed because of their harmful
visual appearance. Alternative locations for ground mounted solar panels were discussed on
site and a location identified to the south of the existing hedge located to the south of Glenfall
on its southern boundary along the line of what appears to be an historic ha-ha. The
application should be amended to address this concern.

There are concerns over the proposed development, which are considered a backward step
over the submitted pre-application proposal, over which concerns were also raised. As
submitted there are concerns over the cumulative impact of the location, scale, massing,
detailing and creation of separate curtilages of the proposed outbuildings. It is considered
significant amendment is required to address these concerns. As submitted the development
proposal cannot be supported on heritage grounds.

Concern is raised over the location, scale and massing of the proposed Leisure Building. It
should be noted the existing garage building is considered to have a built form that is overly
bulky and visually intrusive within the setting of Glenfall House and its gardens. The
proposed Leisure Building insufficiently addresses this, it being considered to exacerbate the
impact of built form through its scale and massing and forward projection toward the Existing
Drive, with the result it is visually intrusive and therefore incongruous. It is considered it
needs to be more discreet, i.e. set away from the Existing Drive and have a meaningful
overall reduction in its scale and massing to address this concern.

One but not the only consideration is the bulk to the Leisure Building as a result of it being
one and a half storeys in height. The increased height of the fagade to accommodate
additional internal habitable floorspace adding additional massing to it. Consideration should
be given to the Leisure Building being a true single storey building with rooms in the roof. If
such an approach it taken it is not advisable raise the ridge height to create a steeper pitch to
accommodate additional floorspace as this will just transfer the massing to the roof.



Page 89

The proposed Garage Block / Holiday Let Apartment is almost an 'L' shaped building,
attached to north wing of Glenfall House and creating an enclosure to the Walled Garden. A
general concern is raised that, cumulatively with the Leisure Building, it creates substantial
built form within the immediate setting of Glenfall House. In trying to address the harm
caused to the setting by the existing outbuildings harm is created elsewhere.

While there is a general concern over the scale and massing of the proposed Garage Block /
Holiday Let Apartment, specific concern is raised over its width, which is wider than the north
facade of the south wing of Glenfall House. Its built form is considered to be insufficiently
broken up. This concern is exacerbated by its openness from the Drive and the Proposed
Courtyard, which results in it being highly visible. A concern is also raised over the visual
appearance of the Garage Block, the openings of which give it a modern character, out of
keeping with its historic context.

The proposed attachment of the Garage Block to Glenfall House needs more careful
consideration. As proposed the connection is too heavy and considered to detract from the
appearance of the listed building. If a physical connection to Glenfall is going to be
acceptable, the link needs to be lighter, through a reduction in its scale and massing such as
a more significant set back and set down, having a true single storey (not one and a half as
proposed), use of a hipped roof and/or use of materials such as a glazed link. It is advised
separation between is more desirable.

It should also be noted, any loss of the northern section of the existing hedge between the
South Lawn and the Walled Garden would raise concerns as it would result in the garage
block becoming more prominent in the context of the listed building and from the south lawn.
It is considered the existing hedge needs to remain unaltered to provide a strong edge
between the proposed Garage Block and Glenfall House.

The proposed use of gable ends on the ends of the proposed outbuildings result in a
prominent and bulky addition to the first floors/roofs. It is advised the scale and massing is
addressed through an amendment showing the removal or reduction of the prominence of
the gables, achieved through, for example, the introduction of hipped roofs to reduce
massing and to loosely reflect the hipped roof of Glenfall. The buildings need to appear as
discreet as possible. Two gables facing onto the courtyard creates a unwelcomely strong
visual feature

It is generally considered the fenestration to the outbuildings is excessive and overly
domestic in character, having a domestic appearance rather than service outbuildings that
are ancillary and subservient to the main house. It is advised significant revision of the
number and type of fenestration is required.

The proposed use of oriel windows as a feature on the gable ends is considered to be an
overly decorative feature that will draw the eye. It is important the outbuildings reflect their
low hierarchical status and not draw attention away from the main house. It is advised the
oriel windows be removed.

Concern is raised over the proposed use of powder coated aluminium windows. These are
considered to have a heavy appearance that would be out of keeping with the character and
appearance of Glenfall House. It is advised timber or lightweight steel window be used.

Little detail of the appearance of the Greenhouse has been submitted within the application.
It is therefore not possible to comment on this other than in generalisations. The principle of
a greenhouse in this location may raise concerns. It is prominently located within the Walled
Garden and its appearance is not characteristic of a greenhouse that would be found within
an historic walled garden.



Page 90

Typically historic greenhouses would be attached to buildings or garden walls. Further details
of the proposal will need to be submitted as part of this application to allow proper
consideration of its impact, although it is advised it is attached as a lean-to, to a building or
garden wall.

It is advised the amendments to the Drive be more carefully considered. The proposed
Realigned Drive leading to the proposed Courtyard should have a different surface treatment
to define it as a secondary access to avoid it competing with the drive accessing the Main
House Forecourt.

There appears to be proposed piers and what may be a barrier or similar such feature
located adjacent to the Main House Forecourt and the Drive Realigned. It is unclear what this
feature is. Clarification is required. Concern would be raised if it is some form of barrier or
gate as this would be an incongruous feature within such a location. If this is the case it
should be removed from the development proposal.

The principle of reinstating a tennis court in the location of an historic tennis court is
acceptable. However, it is difficult to comment on these aspects of the works as little
information has been submitted.

It was previously advised in pre-application 22/00947/PREAPP "A tennis court with, for
example, modern surfacing and a tall fence may appear out of keeping within the curtilage of
the listed building, which is comprised of a registered park and garden. Further details of the
historic tennis court and what is proposed to reinstated need to be submitted within any
application. Careful consideration will need to be given to how the works will affect the
heritage assets."

Further details have not been forthcoming and given the sensitivity of the site it is not
considered these details can be dealt with by condition. Further details taking into
consideration the above concerns will need to be submitted or this element of the proposal
should be withdrawn. As submitted the lack of information regarding the reinstated tennis
court is considered grounds for refusal.

As submitted it appears separate holiday lets with their own enclosed garden curtilages and
parking are being proposed. The subdivision of the site through the creation of distinct
curtilages associated with the proposed outbuildings raises significant concern. This
subdivision is unwelcome and considered to harm the wider curtilage of Glenfall.

It is advised the use of means of enclosures, including new hedges, gates and separate
parking areas to service the outbuildings is avoided. It is important there is a strong sense of
connection between the outbuildings and Glenfall House and that separate curtilages
subdividing the main curtilage are not created.

In conclusion, less than substantial harm has been identified as a result of the proposed
demolition of the existing outbuildings. The requirements of paragraphs 206 and 208 of the
NPPF need to be carefully considered. There are clear public benefits to the general
principle of the development proposal which need to be weighed against the harm that would
be caused as a result of the demolition of the existing outbuilding which have a low level of
significance, substantially compromised by later alterations.

Notwithstanding the issue of demolition, the proposed outbuildings are not considered to
sustain the affected designhated heritage assets as a result of cumulative concerns over their
proposed location, scale, massing, detailing and the creation of separate curtilages. The
proposed works do not therefore comply with Section 16 of the Planning (Listed Building and
Conservation Area) Act 1990, Chapter 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework and
Policy SD8 of the Joint Core Strategy 2017.



Page 91

Heritage And Conservation 2

26th April 2024 —

23/01424/LBC Part change of use of principle building from hotel/event venture to
single dwelling (C3), including removal of extensions/alterations to principal building.
Demolition of Coach House, stables and C20 buildings and extensions and
replacement with new outbuildings consisting of garaging, holiday let apartments
(C1), leisure building (including swimming pool) and a greenhouse, internal
alterations to listed building and alterations to historic landscaped grounds and
kitchen garden.

This a joint application with 23/01424/FUL
SITE

Glenfall House is a grade Il listed building and set within a grade Il listed registered
park and garden.

COMMENTS ON THE PROPOSAL

In May 2022 a pre-application enquiry was submitted, 22/00947/PREAPP for the
demolition of outbuilding, alterations to existing house and new residential
development, which was dealt with by a previous Conservation Officer who has now
left Cheltenham Borough Council. It was concluded that;

The principle of the proposed demolition works is considered unacceptable and
would not be supported should an application(s) be submitted. Similarly, and
notwithstanding the above, there are significant concerns regarding the design,
scale, massing, subservience, layout and use of the proposed new build elements of
the scheme. These elements of the proposals would also not be supported should
an application be submitted in their current form.

The applicant is urged to re-consider the adaptation and conversion of existing listed
curtilage buildings/structures to accommodate the ancillary uses proposed.

In August 2023 a full planning application 23/01424/FUL and listed building consent
application 23/01424/LBC were submitted, which are the current applications we are
now dealing with. In February 2024 comments were made by the previous
Conservation officer who was dealing with the scheme and has since left
Cheltenham Borough Council. Based on his comments and advice a revised scheme
has now been submitted for assessment.

Demolition of outbuildings
Comments made by the previous conservation officer were;

Advice regarding demolition was previously given under pre-application 22/00947/PREAPP.

The current application provides justification for demolition and shows a denser form of
development.

The existing historic outbuildings, which include the former coach house, former stables and

early c20th motor garage, along with remnants of the walled garden and associated
structures, are considered curtilage listed buildings. The submitted supporting documents
identify the low level of significance of these outbuildings, diminished further as a result of the
substantial later alterations and extensions, which themselves now adversely affect the

setting of the listed building. These conclusions are agreed with.



Page 92

While the outbuildings can be considered to have a low level of significance, the demolition
of these outbuildings is still considered to result in a degree of harm. Regarding harm
paragraph 206 of the NPPF states, “Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated
heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting),
should require clear and convincing justification.” and paragraph 208 of the NPPF states,
“Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of
a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the
proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.”

The supporting documents are considered to provide clear and convincing justification for
demolition and directly address the public benefits of the proposal, they include:
Improvements to the setting of the listed Glenfall House; Securing the removal of modern
interventions to the house associated with its earlier commercial and institutional uses;
Returning it back to a private dwelling; Repairs and renovation of the roof, removing the
water tank, repairs to the stucco and internal architectural features; Conservation of the
registered garden and the various garden structures within it; Securing the long-term future
maintenance of the listed buildings on the site; Helping to secure a viable long term future
use for the place. It is recognised these are notable public benefits that need to be given
significant weight.

| concur with the above, therefore the demolition of the outbuildings is acceptable.

Proposed internal alterations
Comments made by the previous conservation officer were;

The proposed internal alterations to listed building, including removal of
extensions/alterations predominantly affect later, less sensitive areas of Glenfall House. The
proposed works are not objected.

Again, | agree with this, therefore the proposed internal alterations are acceptable.

Proposed Solar Panels

It was previously advised that the proposed solar panels on the south elevation roof
should be removed from the application as they would be prominently visible from
the south lawn, due to the harmful visual appearance. It was also advised that an
alternative location should be sought for the ground mounted solar panels, which
was discussed on site with the previous conservation officer.

Revisions have now been made; with regards to the ground mounted solar PV
panels, it has been proposed to relocate them behind the walled garden hedge,
which is acceptable.

The panels that have been relocated on the west facing roof slope of the main house
will not be visible at all behind the high parapet, this is acceptable.

However, the revised proposed site plan 2682-2101 Rev C indicates that there are
still solar PV panels on a south facing roof elevation, which are also apparent on
Proposed main house elevations 2682-2123 Rev C where they are clearly seen on
south elevation section JJ drawing. These solar PV panels should be omitted from
the scheme.

Proposed leisure building
Comments made by the previous conservation officer were;

Concern is raised over the location, scale and massing of the proposed Leisure Building. It
should be noted the existing garage building is considered to have a built form that is overly
bulky and visually intrusive within the setting of Glenfall House and its gardens. The
proposed Leisure Building insufficiently addresses this, it being considered to exacerbate the



Page 93

impact of built form through its scale and massing and forward projection toward the Existing
Drive, with the result it is visually intrusive and therefore incongruous. It is considered it
needs to be more discreet, i.e. set away from the Existing Drive and have a meaningful
overall reduction in its scale and massing to address this concern.

One but not the only consideration is the bulk to the Leisure Building as a result of it being
one and a half storeys in height. The increased height of the facade to accommodate
additional internal habitable floorspace adding additional massing to it. Consideration should
be given to the Leisure Building being a true single storey building with rooms in the roof. If
such an approach it taken it is not advisable raise the ridge height to create a steeper pitch to
accommodate additional floorspace as this will just transfer the massing to the roof.

Revisions have been made to the leisure building following on from the comments made by
the previous conservation officer. The height of the building has been reduced by 2m on the
section which houses the pool, and over 1m on the southern end, which is now visually
expressed as a single storey building. The overall footprint of the building has also been
reduced in both length and width and it has also been positioned further south, which helps
to alleviate the intrusiveness on the existing driveway.

Further concerns raised by the previous conservation officer was the potential to light spill

from the leisure building. With the reduction is size and height, the amount of elevation
glazing and glazing within the roof any light spill should be reduced. However, one element
which is raising a concern is the amount of solar PV panels to the southern roof elevation,
which has been increased with the revisions made. Previously there was one row of panels,
now there are two rows which completely covers the whole of the roof elevation. Whilst the
principle of solar panels on the building is considered acceptable as this is a new build, there
will be a visual impact on the heritage asset where they can be viewed. To minimise this
impact the number of solar panels should be reduced to what was proposed previously, one
row. If the plan is amended indicating this the proposed leisure building will be acceptable.

Proposed greenhouse
Comments made by the previous conservation officer were;

Typically, historic greenhouses would be attached to buildings or garden walls. Further
details of the proposal will need to be submitted as part of this application to allow proper
consideration of its impact, although it is advised it is attached as a lean-to, to a building or
garden wall.

Little detail of the appearance of the Greenhouse has been submitted within the application.
It is therefore not possible to comment on this other than in generalisations. The principle of
a greenhouse in this location may raise concerns. It is prominently located within the Walled
Garden and its appearance is not characteristic of a greenhouse that would be found within
an historic walled garden.

Whilst there is no actual design / drawing submitted of the greenhouse, details are offered of
the proposed stye / design in the revised covering letter dated 28th March 2024. | can
comment that whilst | agree with the previous comments made by the conservation officer,
that greenhouses were often attached to a wall as a ‘lean-to’, | would not object to the
proposed, but this would be dependent on the size, style / design that is submitted and we
require these details in order to make a thorough assessment of the proposal.

Proposed tennis court
Comments made by the previous conservation officer were;

The principle of reinstating a tennis court in the location of an historic tennis court is
acceptable. However, it is difficult to comment on these aspects of the works as little
information has been submitted.



Page 94

It was previously advised in pre-application 22/00947/PREAPP “A tennis court with, for
example, modern surfacing and a tall fence may appear out of keeping within the curtilage of
the listed building, which is comprised of a registered park and garden. Further details of the
historic tennis court and what is proposed to reinstated need to be submitted within any
application. Careful consideration will need to be given to how the works will affect the
heritage assets.”

Further details have not been forthcoming and given the sensitivity of the site it is not
considered these details can be dealt with by condition. Further details taking into
consideration the above concerns will need to be submitted or this element of the proposal
should be withdrawn. As submitted the lack of information regarding the reinstated tennis
court is considered grounds for refusal.

| agree with the above comments, that in principle of reinstatement of the tennis
courts is acceptable. Details have been offered in the revised covering letter dated
28th March 2024, however this is just one example. Further details are required in
order to make a full assessment of the proposal.

Proposed driveway
Comments made by the previous conservation officer were;

It is advised the amendments to the Drive be more carefully considered. The proposed
Realigned Drive leading to the proposed Courtyard should have a different surface treatment
to define it as a secondary access to avoid it competing with the drive accessing the Main
House Forecourt.

There appears to be proposed piers and what may be a barrier or similar such feature
located adjacent to the Main House Forecourt and the Drive Realigned. It is unclear what this
feature is. Clarification is required. Concern would be raised if it is some form of barrier or
gate as this would be an incongruous feature within such a location. If this is the case it
should be removed from the development proposal.

Within the revised covering letter dated 28th March 2024, it is suggested that a cobbled
buffer strip and edging detail are proposed to delineate the service yard from the main
approach. | agree with the earlier comments made by the previous conservation officer that
there should be a variation in surface treatment between the driveway to the main house and
the courtyard, thoughts should be given to this, and revisions made to address this.

With regards to the comments made previously regarding the proposed piers, which may
accommodate some sort of barrier, the revised covering letter dated 28th March 2024 goes
on to say; “Only one gate is proposed at the entrance to the main drive, where there is a fork
to the adjacent farm. This is for security purposes as the primary gates at the entrance to the
estate are on a shared access and not secure. A gate to the house is essential as the
property has had several uninvited trespassers in recent months. Police references can be
provided, if required”.

This is acceptable; however, we will require a clear plan indicating where the gate is
to be located.

Proposed landscaping
Comments made by the previous conservation officer were;

It is advised the use of means of enclosures, including new hedges, gates and separate
parking areas to service the outbuildings is avoided. It is important there is a strong sense of
connection between the outbuildings and Glenfall House and that separate curtilages
subdividing the main curtilage are not created.



Page 95

As submitted it appears separate holiday lets with their own enclosed garden curtilages and
parking are being proposed. The subdivision of the site through the creation of distinct
curtilages associated with the proposed outbuildings raises significant concern. This
subdivision is unwelcome and considered to harm the wider curtilage of Glenfall.

Revisions have been made to address the above concerns, along with the proposed planting
scheme this is now considered to be acceptable.

Proposed development of garaging and apartments
Comments made by the previous conservation officer were;

There are concerns over the proposed development, which are considered a backward step
over the submitted pre-application proposal, over which concerns were also raised. As
submitted there are concerns over the cumulative impact of the location, scale, massing,
detailing and creation of separate curtilages of the proposed outbuildings. It is considered
significant amendment is required to address these concerns. As submitted the development
proposal cannot be supported on heritage grounds.

The proposed Garage Block / Holiday Let Apartment is almost an ‘L’ shaped building,
attached to north wing of Glenfall House and creating an enclosure to the Walled Garden. A
general concern is raised that, cumulatively with the Leisure Building, it creates substantial
built form within the immediate setting of Glenfall House. In trying to address the harm
caused to the setting by the existing outbuildings harm is created elsewhere.

While there is a general concern over the scale and massing of the proposed Garage Block /
Holiday Let Apartment, specific concern is raised over its width, which is wider than the north
facade of the south wing of Glenfall House. Its built form is considered to be insufficiently
broken up. This concern is exacerbated by its openness from the Drive and the Proposed
Courtyard, which results in it being highly visible. A concern is also raised over the visual
appearance of the Garage Block, the openings of which give it a modern character, out of
keeping with its historic context.

The proposed attachment of the Garage Block to Glenfall House needs more careful
consideration. As proposed the connection is too heavy and considered to detract from the
appearance of the listed building. If a physical connection to Glenfall is going to be
acceptable, the link needs to be lighter, through a reduction in its scale and massing such as
a more significant set back and set down, having a true single storey (not one and a half as
proposed), use of a hipped roof and/or use of materials such as a glazed link. It is advised
separation between is more desirable.

The proposed use of gable ends on the ends of the proposed outbuildings result in a
prominent and bulky addition to the first floors/roofs. It is advised the scale and massing is
addressed through an amendment showing the removal or reduction of the prominence of
the gables, achieved through, for example, the introduction of hipped roofs to reduce
massing and to loosely reflect the hipped roof of Glenfall. The buildings need to appear as
discreet as possible.

Two gables facing onto the courtyard creates a unwelcomely strong visual feature

It is generally considered the fenestration to the outbuildings is excessive and overly
domestic in character, having a domestic appearance rather than service outbuildings that
are ancillary and subservient to the main house. It is advised significant revision of the
number and type of fenestration is required.

The proposed use of oriel windows as a feature on the gable ends is considered to be an
overly decorative feature that will draw the eye. It is important the outbuildings reflect their
low hierarchical status and not draw attention away from the main house. It is advised the
oriel windows be removed.



Page 96

Concern is raised over the proposed use of powder coated aluminium windows. These are
considered to have a heavy appearance that would be out of keeping with the character and
appearance of Glenfall House. It is advised timber or lightweight steel window be used.

Revisions have now been made to the garage block and apartments based on previous
comments and advice. It is acknowledged that the recent revisions made have gone some
way to address the concerns raised by the previous conservation officer, in that, the
proposed new garaging and apartments have been broken up to an extent to alleviate the
mass and scale. The new development has also been set back from the main house by
introducing a single storey garage, which adjoins the two buildings. The openings to the
garage block has now been revised to a more traditional opening ‘style’ which is more in-
keeping and sympathetic to the surroundings, and hipped roofs have been introduced to
reduce massing.

Whilst the above revisions have been made, the proposed scheme has taken a step

back again. The revised proposals are now for a two-storey building that takes architectural
detailing and a style from the main house, with chimneys, parapets, traditional sash windows
and canopies over the entrance doorways. All of these elements form features from domestic
dwellings with the overall appearance being an extension to the main house. There is no
ancillary definition between the new development and historic building, apart from the garage
openings. Notwithstanding the design there is also no subservience, and the increase to two-
story has again increased the scale and massing.

It has been made clear throughout the pre-application process and the submission of the full
and listed building consent applications that there were concerns regarding the design,
subservience and the scale and massing. Again, cumulatively with the proposed leisure
building, substantial built form is proposed within the setting of Glenfall House, which cannot
be supported in its current proposal due to the ‘less than substantial harm’ that would be
caused to the heritage asset and its setting.

The principle of the proposed scheme has been accepted, however, the design of the
garaging and apartments will need to be revised again, for officer's support to be
forthcoming. The heritage team want to support the application and would be happy to
discuss a revision again. Looking at all of the proposed designs for this building, throughout
the pre-application process and the submission of full applications, | can confirm the
following;

* The break between the main house and the new development is acceptable.

* The introduction of hipped roofs are acceptable.

» The arched garage openings are acceptable.

* It would be preferable for the proposed materials for the garaging / apartments differs from
the main house to ensure a contrast. The previously proposed material was brick this should
be re-introduced.

» Whilst keeping the proposed layout for the new development, which is now acceptable, the
proposed two-storey development should be reduced to 1.5 storey.

* Dormer windows would be acceptable but kept to a minimum.

» The overall design should reflect an ancillary building, with simple fenestration / doors etc.

Heritage And Conservation 3
9th September 2024 —

Glenfall House 23/01424/LBC
Drawings 13th May 2024

Greenhouse



Page 97

Brochure details of the greenhouse have been submitted. The overall scale and design is
considered acceptable in principle with respect to scale design and materials,
notwithstanding the need for more detailed drawings including sections the profile of glazing
and samples of materials. The indicative elevations/site plan demonstrate the greenhouse
would be aesthetically acceptable and appear subservient within the overall context of the
group of heritage assets.

Proposed tennis court

The principle of reinstating a tennis court in the location of an historic tennis court is
acceptable. Details of the Pladex tennis court, in green, with mesh and obelisks post fencing
are acceptable. The proposed tennis court would be visually recessive (a purple/blue surface
would not be appropriate) and appropriate to the historic context.

Revisions made 30th July 2024

The proposed removal of the historic extensions to the main house are acceptable, as are
the proposed internal alterations to Glenfall House.

Garage Store Building

The garage /workshop is acceptable in size by 1m and is how timber clad to ensure simplicity
and status of workshop building. The change to red brick is welcome, as is the timber
cladding.

Outbuildings
Demolition of the existing outbuildings represents an opportunity to create clear hierarchy of

buildings across the site, with the main house retaining visual prominence. Whilst it is
accepted that the standing group of curtilage listed buildings are of low significance and that
as a result of change over time the current outbuildings lack cohesion, this does not in itself
justify the extent of the proposed footprint of the apartment range.

The existing outbuildings (considered curtilage listed), whilst of low significance, form part of
the historical significance of the Glenfall estate. Albeit that the standing buildings are much
evolved, visually they read as service buildings, set back from the south elevation of Glenfall
House allowing the listed building to retain prominence and are illustrative of the evolution of
the country estate.

The latest proposals comprise a substantial L-shaped two storey building to the east of the
listed building, with a single storey leisure building attached at the rear of the range and a
greenhouse and garage to the east of the south lawn.

There are several direct heritage benefits, as set out on page 24 of the Heritage Statement,
these are acknowledged and welcome. It would have been pertinent to update the Heritage
Impact Statement in light of the revised proposals, in line with paragraph 200 of the NPPF.
An elevation of the swimming pool elevation is also required to assess the scheme and
officers await this drawing, in order to assess the proposal. Gate location details are also
required to assess the proposal.

Timber cladding of the garage is welcome and the slight reduction in the scale of the garage
block, on balance, would be acceptable, on the basis that the attached range is reduced in
size as discussed below.

To create a sense of a 'service courtyard' the proposed apartment buildings should be scaled
back with the L-shaped service range reduced in length and, ideally, in height to 1.5 storeys,
such that the range presents within the group of buildings as a visually recessive element
within the setting of Glenfall House.

The single storey 'break’ between the main house and the new development is acceptable
and the introduction of hipped roofs and the arched garage openings is welcome. Brick has
been re-introduced as a contrasting material, which is also welcome. The Leisure building
would read better within the scheme if it was separated from the main range and relocated
back to the north-east but not linked. There is an opportunity to open-up the view of the oak



Page 98

tree from main house by re-siting of the leisure building and/or removal of the arch feature on
the main range, this opportunity has not been harnessed under the latest scheme drawings
(although this was presented on an earlier version of the proposals.

Officers previously advised that the proposed two-storey range should be reduced to 1.5
storey and that the overall design should reflect an ancillary building, with simple fenestration
and a less domestic appearance. This has been achieved, to a degree, and in principle the
thrust of the design and enclosing the courtyard could be supported. However, the scale and
length of the range cannot be supported. The overall footprint and of the proposal, including
the leisure building, would be larger than the listed building, this coupled with the scale and
minimal set back from the rear building line would result in a set of buildings that compete
visually and therefore would not be subservient to the heritage asset.

The principle of demolition of the curtilage buildings has been accepted on the basis that new
development coming forward mitigates heritage harm. Whilst the scheme includes direct
heritage benefits, these would not balance out the level of harm to significance that would
occur as a result to an unacceptable impact on the setting of Glenfall House (grade Il listed),
Glenfall lodge (grade Il listed), Gate Piers, Gates and Walls to Glenfall House (grade Il) Rose
Gate (grade Il listed) and Glenfall House Registered Park and Garden (grade II). As a group
these assets relate visually to each other and their settings overlap. The heritage context is
therefore rich and of all assets are of high significance.

The proposal cannot be support in its current form. There are significant concerns regarding
the scale, massing, design and layout of the proposed attached outbuildings. The main range
of outbuildings component of the proposal cannot be supported, on the basis that by virtue of
an unacceptable impact on the setting of heritage assets, the proposal would fail to preserve
the special historic and architectural interest of heritage assets. The level of harm would be
at the higher end of the 'less than substantial' scale, engaging paragraph 208 of the NPPF
and contrary to policy SD8 of the Joint Core Strategy. The revised proposals July 2024
cannot be supported from a heritage perspective as it stands.

The Gardens Trust
13th February 2024 -

The Garden Trust, as Statutory Consultee for Planning Applications that may impact on
Listed or Registered parks, gardens and landscapes, has notified The Gloucestershire
Gardens and Landscape Trust (GGLT) to respond on its behalf.

The proposal is of particular interest to GGLT, as it was through the action of the Trust that
the Arts and Crafts terrace and other key features were recognised, and resulted in its being
Listed.

It is considered that these proposals by Yiangou Architects should be welcomed as Glenfall
House and its immediate setting has had a rather chequered recent history. This proposal
which recasts the house and reinterprets the currently outworn associated buildings should
maintain the character, quality and presence of this heritage asset into the future.

The immediate garden setting and its impact and use of the wider landscape setting is being
refreshed and its quality in terms of materials and detailing maintained. However, one
observation that should be considered is moving the proposed replacement tennis court
further South and which could reduce its visual impact. This should include assessing the
impact of its surrounding netting (if used) and the view from the croquet lawn and the West
front of Glenfall House over the restored pergola.

Parish Council 1
8th November 2023 —
No objection.



Page 99

Parish Council 2

2nd September 2024 —

The Committee does not object to this application and notes its acceptance by the Cotswold
National Landscape Board and Natural England's comments on wildlife.

Cotswold Conservation Board (Cotswold National Landscape) 1

9th November 2023 - Letter available to view in documents tab.

Summary — no objection in principle but concerns raised over proposed internal and external
lighting and impact on dark skies

Cotswold Conservation Board (Cotswold National Landscape) 2
1st May 2024 - Response available to view in documents tab.

Cotswold Conservation Board (Cotswold National Landscape) 3

5th September 2024 —

Thank you for consulting the Board on the latest round of revised drawings for the above
application. The Board has no further comments on the revised drawings, but our comments
contained within our response dated 30 April 2024 regarding the conditioning of a site-wide
lighting scheme including the replacement of the non-directional floodlights agreed to by the
applicant still stand.

Natural England
25th April 2024 —

Our Reference: 473544
Application No: 23/01424/FUL

Proposed Development: Part change of use of principal building from hotel/event venue to
single dwelling (C3), including removal of extensions/alterations to principal building.
Demolition of coach house, stables and 20th century buildings and extensions and
replacement with new outbuildings consisting of garaging, holiday let apartments (C1),
leisure building (including swimming pool) and a greenhouse. Alterations to historic
landscaped grounds and kitchen garden.

Location: Glenfall House Mill Lane Charlton Kings.
Thank you for your consultation.

Despite the proximity of the application site to a European Site -i.e. the Cotswold
Beechwoods SAC, the consultation documents provided do not include information to
demonstrate that the requirements of regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) have been considered by your authority, i.e. the
consultation does not include a Habitats Regulations Assessment. Natural England advises
that a Habitat Regulations Assessment is required as the proposal has the potential to
impact the RAMSAR/SAC.

It is Natural England's advice that the proposal is not directly connected with or necessary for
the management of the European site. Your authority should therefore determine whether
the proposal is likely to have a significant effect on any European site, proceeding to the
Appropriate Assessment stage where significant effects cannot be ruled out. Natural England
must be consulted on any appropriate assessment your authority may decide to make.
Please note that the usual 21 day deadline will apply on receipt of the consultation.

Tree Officer 1
15th November 2023 —



Page 100

A suitable method statement (conforming to BS5837) to describe the resurfacing of the drive
should be submitted. These works will be within the root protection area of T9 and due care
should be given to avoid damaging the roots of these trees.

The planting scheme, although generous, lacks detail (species, tree size, pit details). A
landscape plan should be submitted to include such details and should include the
recommendations made by the arborist to mitigate for the loss of T8.

Foundations of new buildings should be designed to account for the proximity of retained
trees. Building Control can be consulted to provide further advice.

It should be noted that trees on site are protected by virtue of TPO721.

Reason: to protect the amenity value of trees in the Borough as per Policies GI2 and GI3 of
the Cheltenham Plan.

Tree Officer 2

30th August 2024 —

As before, the revisions do not appear to increase any impact on trees and the tree
protection plan previously submitted appears to still be valid. However, the documents
requested by the Trees Section previously are yet to be submitted. Without these
documents, the scheme cannot be properly assessed.

GCC Local Flood Authority (LLFA) 1

2nd November 2023 —

| refer to the notice received by the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) requesting comments
on the above proposal. The LLFA is a statutory consultee for surface water flood risk and
management and has made the following observations and recommendation.

Flood Risk

The Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) shows that the site is in flood zone 1 and is shown to be
at low risk according to the Risk of Flooding from Surface Water map.

Surface water management

Discharge strategy

The Application Form states that surface water will be discharged to a Main Sewer but the
FRAand Landscape Strategy (23029.101-E) suggest soakaways will be used. This should be
clarified.

The geology of the site is mudstone/siltstone, which is generally not conducive for infiltration.
If soakaways are being proposed then infiltration tests should be carried out and submitted to
show it will be viable.

If infiltration isn't possible or infiltration tests have not been carried out then an alternative
strategy to either discharge into a watercourse or a nearby surface water sewer should be
provided.

Discharge rates

If discharging surface water offsite, the rate should be given and should be as close as
reasonably practicable to the greenfield runoff rate for QBar.

Drainage strategy and indicative plan




Page 101

The Landscape Strategy plan does show the location of some soakaways but, as explained
above, no information has been provided to show that these will function. The surface water
drainage should ensure the development does not increase the rate and volume of surface
water leaves the site (and where possible reducing the discharge rate to as close as possible
to the greenfield runoff rate) in rainfall events up to and including the 1 in 100 year rainfall
event plus climate change and without flooding on site in a 1 in 30 year rainfall event. This
may require attenuation in the form of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS), which should
be shown on a layout plan and the capacity of any features given based on suitable
calculations.

Where required, water quality will need to be managed through passing surface water
through SuDS before being discharged off site.

Climate Change

It is estimated that climate change will bring a 40% increase in the peak rainfall intensity.
This will need to be incorporated into the drainage design.

Exceedance Flow Plan

Where surface water will flow when the design of the drainage is exceeded should shown,
however, this will depend on the final topography of the site and can be provided with a
detailed design condition.

LLFA Recommendation

While some information has been given on the drainage, it is insufficient for this type of
application and doesn't demonstrate the proposal meets the design guides of the Non-
Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage and the CIRIA SuDS Manual.

NOTE 1 :The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) will give consideration to how the proposed
sustainable drainage system can incorporate measures to help protect water quality,
however pollution control is the responsibility of the Environment Agency

NOTE 2 : Future management of Sustainable Drainage Systems is a matter that will be dealt
with by the Local Planning Authority and has not, therefore, been considered by the LLFA.

NOTE 3: Any revised documentation will only be considered by the LLFA when resubmitted
through suds@gloucestershire.gov.uk e-mail address. Please quote the planning application
number in the subject field.

GCC Local Flood Authority (LLFA) 2

22nd August 2024 -

| refer to the notice received by the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) requesting comments
on the above proposal. The LLFA is a statutory consultee for surface water flood risk and
management and has made the following observations and recommendation.

There does not appear to be any further information on the surface water drainage strategy
in the latest plans submitted. The LLFA has no further comments to make beyond those
made on 02 November 2023.

NOTE 1 :The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) will give consideration to how the proposed
sustainable drainage system can incorporate measures to help protect water quality,
however pollution control is the responsibility of the Environment Agency

NOTE 2 : Future management of Sustainable Drainage Systems is a matter that will be dealt
with by the Local Planning Authority and has not, therefore, been considered by the LLFA.



Page 102

NOTE 3: Any revised documentation will only be considered by the LLFA when resubmitted
through suds@gloucestershire.gov.uk e-mail address. Please quote the planning application
number in the subject field.

Environmental Health 1

22nd November 2023 —

In relation to 23/01424/FUL & 23/01424/LBC, Glenfall House, Mill Lane, Charlton Kings,
GL54 4EP, please find the below response from Environmental Health.

Environmental Health Conditions:

1. Details of the type/model, location and predicted noise levels of the proposed air
source heat pumps (ASHPs) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
Planning authority, prior to installation. Any ASHP installed shall be in accordance with the
details approved. The ASHPs shall be retained and maintained as such thereafter unless
otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

2. Details of the type/model, location and predicted noise levels of the proposed
ground source heat pump (GSHP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
Planning authority, prior to installation. Any ASHP installed shall be in accordance with the
details approved. The ASHPs shall be retained and maintained as such thereafter unless
otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

3. No development shall begin until a sound insulation scheme has been submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme should incorporate how to
protect the habitable rooms in the residential units of the proposed development from the
noise from the nearby working farm, which may include the use of equestrian stables, noise
from animals/workers, and weaning of cattle, for example.

The noise assessment shall be carried out by a suitably qualified acoustic
consultant/engineer and shall take into account the provisions of BS 8233: 2014 "Guidance
on sound insulation and noise reduction for buildings”, any acoustic attenuation scheme
designed for this property shall achieve at least the ‘reasonable' design range for living
rooms and bedrooms from the British Standard referenced. The approved scheme shall be
implemented prior to the commencement of the use and be permanently maintained
thereafter.

o] Bedrooms (night time - 23.00 - 07.00) 30 dB LAeq (individual noise events should
not normally exceed 45 dB LAmax,F by more than 15 times)

o] Living Rooms (daytime - 07.00 - 23.00) 35 dB LAeq
4. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a

construction management plan or construction method statement has been submitted to and
been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved plan/statement shall
be adhered to throughout the construction period. The statement shall provide for:

- 24 hour emergency contact number

- hours of operation

- parking of vehicle of site operatives and visitors (including measures taken to ensure
satisfactory access and movement for existing occupiers of neighbouring properties during
construction)

- routes for construction traffic

- locations for loading / unloading and storage of plant, waste and construction materials

- method of prevention of mud being carried onto highway - measures to protect vulnerable
road users (cyclists and pedestrians)

- any necessary temporary traffic management measures - arrangements for turning vehicles



Page 103

- arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles - methods of
communicating the construction management plan to staff, visitors and neighbouring
residents and businesses

- waste and material storage

- control measures for dust and other air-borne pollutants

- demolition method statement

- measures for controlling the use of site lighting whether required for safe working or for
security purposes.

5. All leisure facilities are for the use of the residents of Glenfall House and guests of the
holiday lets only and not for public use or external hire.

6. There is to be no amplified music within the leisure facilities after 22:00.

Informatives:

- For the construction phase to be kept within the times of work as follows: 07:30 - 18:00
Monday - Friday and 08:00 - 13:00 Saturdays with no works to take place on a Sunday or
Bank Holiday and to be mindful of noise when deliveries arrive at the site.

Environmental Health 2

23rd May 2024 —

I have no reason to object or be concerned by the installation of a solar array. They are silent
in operation and don't produce anything that would affect anyone living around the site. The
aesthetic appeal of such a facility is outside my remit.

Environmental Health 3

22nd August 2024 —

In relation to application reference 23/01424/FUL (and 23/01424/LBC) for Glenfall House,
Mill Lane, Charlton Kings, Cheltenham, GL54 4EP please can the following be added from
Environmental Health:

Conditions:

1. Details of the type/model, location and predicted noise levels of the proposed air
source heat pumps (ASHPs) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
Planning authority, prior to installation. Any ASHP installed shall be in accordance with the
details approved. The ASHPs shall be retained and maintained as such thereafter unless
otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

2. Details of the type/model, location and predicted noise levels of the proposed
ground source heat pump (GSHP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
Planning authority, prior to installation. Any ASHP installed shall be in accordance with the
details approved. The ASHPs shall be retained and maintained as such thereafter unless
otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

3. No development shall begin until a sound insulation scheme has been submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme should incorporate how to
protect the habitable rooms in the residential units of the proposed development from the
noise from the nearby working farm, which may include the use of equestrian stables, noise
from animals/workers, and weaning of cattle, for example.

4, The noise assessment shall be carried out by a suitably qualified acoustic
consultant/engineer and shall take into account the provisions of BS 8233: 2014 "Guidance
on sound insulation and noise reduction for buildings”, any acoustic attenuation scheme
designed for this property shall achieve at least the ‘reasonable’ design range for living
rooms and bedrooms from the British Standard referenced. The approved scheme shall be



Page 104

implemented prior to the commencement of the use and be permanently maintained
thereafter.

- Bedrooms (night time - 23.00 - 07.00) 30 dB LAeq (individual noise events should not
normally exceed 45 dB LAmax,F by more than 15 times)
- Living Rooms (daytime - 07.00 - 23.00) 35 dB LAeq

5. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a
construction management plan or construction method statement has been submitted to and
been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved plan/statement shall
be adhered to throughout the construction period. The statement shall provide for:

- 24 hour emergency contact number

- hours of operation

- parking of vehicle of site operatives and visitors (including measures taken to ensure
satisfactory access and movement for existing occupiers of neighbouring properties during
construction)

- routes for construction traffic

- locations for loading / unloading and storage of plant, waste and construction materials

- method of prevention of mud being carried onto highway - measures to protect vulnerable
road users (cyclists and pedestrians)

- any necessary temporary traffic management measures - arrangements for turning vehicles
- arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles - methods of
communicating the construction management plan to staff, visitors and neighbouring
residents and businesses

- waste and material storage

- control measures for dust and other air-borne pollutants

- demolition method statement

- measures for controlling the use of site lighting whether required for safe working or for
security purposes

6. All leisure facilities are for the use of the residents of Glenfall House and guests of
the holiday lets only and not for public use or external hire.

7. There is to be no amplified music within the leisure facilities after 22:00.
Informative:

For the construction phase to be kept within the times of work as follows: 07:30 - 18:00
Monday - Friday and 08:00 - 13:00 Saturdays with no works to take place on a Sunday or
Bank Holiday and to be mindful of noise when deliveries arrive at the site.

GCC Highways Planning Liaison Officer
17th November 2023 - Letter available to view in documents tab.
Summary - no objection raised subject to conditions

Ecologist 1

31st May 2024 -

We have reviewed the Ecological documents and our response with regards to Ecology is
provided below.

The bat surveys confirmed that the roof of the main house provides roosting habitat for
common pipistrelle (summer day roosts) and Myotis bats (maternity and satellite roosts);
and that the coach house provides roosting habitat for common pipistrelle bat (summer day
roost). The Myotis roosts will be subject to disturbance and the common pipistrelle roosts



Page 105

will be lost during the development proposals, Therefore works cannot legally proceed until
an EPS mitigation licence from Natural England is obtained as stated in the bat report. The
bat survey information in terms of bat activity across the site will be used to inform lighting
plans to ensure they are designed to minimise disturbance to roosting and foraging bats.
Appropriate bat mitigation is detailed in the bat report.

Precautionary measures for nesting birds, badgers, reptiles, amphibians and hedgehogs are
also outlined in the report.

The BNG report demonstrates that the development can achieve over 10% net gain for
linear and area habitats.

Requirements prior to determination:
none

Requirements prior to commencement/conditions to be attached to planning consent:
1. Bat mitigation and enhancement to be undertaken as outlined in the Bat Report of All
Ecology. Bat sensitive lighting plan to show lux levels and locations of bat roosting
features to be submitted to the LPA for review and approval prior to commencement.

A copy of the EPS mitigation licence for bats to be submitted to the LPA prior to
commencement.

2. Ecological Management Plan and Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP)
to be submitted to the LPA for review and approval prior to commencement to
demonstrate that the positive BNG predicted for linear and area habitats can be

achieved over the 30 year period. LEMP to show locations of wildlife features

including bat/bird boxes, log piles, hedgehog passes etc (These two documents can be
combined if preferred)

3. Other mitigation and enhancement recommendations for protected species (in
particular, nesting birds, badgers, hedgehogs, reptiles, amphibians) as outlined in the
Ecological Appraisal and Great Crested Newt Survey reports by All Ecology are to be
followed. In addition, any fencing is to have hedgehog access gaps fitted at base to
ensure that the habitat remains permeable to this species.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Local Plan Policy (Gloucester, Cheltenham
and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011 - 2031) (adopted December 2017)) Context:

- NPPF Para 180 - 194 (Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment), National
Planning Policy Frameworkl

- SD9 Biodiversity and Geobiodiversity

- INF3 Green Infrastructure

In England, biodiversity net gain (BNG) is mandatory under Schedule 7A of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (as inserted by Schedule 14 of the Environment Act 2021).
Developers must deliver a biodiversity net gain of 10%. For significant on-site gains, and all
off-site gains, the BNG must be maintained for at least 30 years. Responsibilities should be
set out in a legal agreement. Further guidance can be found at
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/understanding-biodiversity-net-gain

Cheltenham Plan, Adopted 2020.
- Policy BG1: Cotswold Beechwoods Special Area of Conservation Recreation Pressure
- Policy BG2: Cotswold Beechwoods Special Area of Conservation Air Quality

Wildlife legislation context:
- Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended)
- Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017



Page 106

- Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006
- Protection of Badgers Act 1992

Ecologist 2

27th August 2024 —

I have reviewed the revised Proposed Site Plan (dwg no: 2682-2105 REV E) against the
previous LPA Ecologist's comments (May 2024), the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (All
Ecology, April 2023), the Bat Emergence survey results (All Ecology, August 2023), and the
Great Crested Newt survey results (All Ecology, July 2023). I'm satisfied the changes shown
on the revised site plan do not trigger the need for further comment beyond the previous LPA
Ecologists recommendations. The conditions applied previously must still be applied.

Cheltenham Civic Society
17th November 2023 - OBJECT

We welcome the proposals for the main house.

In principle, we support the reconfiguring of outbuildings but not the wholesale demolition of
all the ancillary buildings. We are concerned about the potential loss some of the historic
outbuildings such as the coach house and stables, to be replaced by bland modern buildings.
The comments of the planning officer and conservation officer about the previous application
regarding these buildings are as relevant to this scheme too.

We echo the concerns raised by the AONB about the potential for light pollution.

We welcome the plans for re-instatement of the Arts and Crafts style garden.

Minerals And Waste Policy Gloucestershire
9th November 2023 - Letter available to view in documents tab.



Page 107

APPLICATION NO: 23/01424/FUL OFFICER: Mrs Lucy White
DATE REGISTERED: 19th October 2023 DATE OF EXPIRY : 18th January 2024
WARD: Battledown PARISH: CHARLK

APPLICANT: | Mr And Mrs D Bunner
LOCATION: | Glenfall House Mill Lane Charlton Kings

PROPOSAL.: | Part change of use of principal listed building from hotel/event venue to
single dwelling (C3), including removal of extensions/alterations to
principal building. Demolition of coach house, stables and 20th century
buildings and extensions and replacement with new extension and
outbuildings consisting of a leisure building with swimming pool,
garage/store, greenhouse and 5no. new dwellings to be occupied as
holiday accommodation. Alterations to historic landscaped grounds and
kitchen garden.

REPRESENTATIONS

Number of contributors
Number of objections
Number of representations
Number of supporting

OFrr Wk

Mulberry House
Daisy Bank Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL53 9QQ

Comments: 10th November 2023

I live on Leckhampton hill and Glenfall house is clearly visible from our garden. | have
also attended an event at Glenfall. Glenfall is an historic building that is in much need of
sympathetic restoration. The proposed plans will not only achieve this but will also
support the local hospitality industry with carefully considered holiday lets and leisure
facilities. | fully support this application.

1 Viburnum Close
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL50 2RL

Comments: 8th November 2023

We have visited Glenfell House a couple of times in the past. The plans presented here
look fantastic and will restore Glenfell house to its former glory whilst equally modernising
the property. The vision and thought that has gone into the plans submitted are to be
commended.



Page 108

15 Nicolson Close
Innsworth
GL3 1DN

Comments: 28th October 2023

I have visited Glenfall House in the past. Passionate about British buildings not going into
a state of disrepair, these plans provide an opportunity to restore it to a family home and
protect Glenfall House for the future. I am impressed with the plans especially the
changes to the outbuildings, so Glenfall House can continue to be enjoyed for future
generations.

57 Shaw Green Lane
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 3BS

Comments: 16th November 2023

| rent a stable and land adjacent to Glenfall House . Whilst | understand that property
needs to be maintained, | strongly object to the building proposal.

The site of the new buildings are against the stable building that | rent. The building
works will cause significant stress to my horse along with all the other livestock on the
farm.

If the buildings do go ahead, | can't imagine that any holiday makers would want to be
sited directly next to a working farm which includes cattle, goats, dogs, cats and horses,
farm machinery being used early in the morning and late at night along with the usual
dust/flies/excrement that are all part of farm life. This is before the nightmare of sharing a
single track entrance on horseback with the increase of construction vehicles during any
works and then the potential for extra traffic if the proposal goes ahead.

I would be willing to talk to a planning officer to share my concerns and point out just how
close the building would be .

Glenfall Lodge

Mill Lane

Charlton Kings Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL54 4EP

Comments: 5th April 2024

Having been a member of the family that previously owned Glenfall House, we strongly
support this application. Since owning this property and now living in Glenfall Lodge for
the last 44 years, we have sadly watched Glenfall House constantly deteriorate in
condition.

What is currently proposed will restore this property back to its former glory and more.
Much to the benefit of the surrounding neighbours and local area. The adjacent farm will
also benefit with far less traffic using the drive.



Page 109
Comments: 28th October 2023

The house was formerly owned and occupied by my family and we are still immediate
neighbours, living at Glenfall Lodge.

Homes like Glenfall are notoriously difficult to maintain so the focus on restoring the key
heritage assets, namely the main house and gardens, is wonderful to see. We are
delighted with the change of ownership and the commitment of the new owners to
overseeing the much needed investment in the fabric of Glenfall House.

In addition removal of the ugly, poor quality outbuildings and the grotesque asbestos
garaging, and their replacement with new more visually pleasing and in keeping
structures is very positive for the curtilage and future of the house. In our view the
submitted plans strike a necessary balance between returning Glenfall to its former glory
and providing a way for it to continue in 21st century.

5 The Old Marketplace
Andoversford
GL54 4AY

Comments: 28th October 2023

We have visited Glenfall House for events in the past and always thought it would be
amazing to restore it to a family home.

The plans look great, especially the changes to the car park and outbuildings.
5 Whalley Farm Cottage
Whittington
Cheltenham
GL54 4HA
Comments: 31st October 2023

Glenfall House is close to where | reside, and I've had the opportunity to work on and
around this premises for several years.

| commend anyone who is willing to spend the time and money to improve these large,
old properties.

The plans look very positive as they focus on restoring the main house, and removing the
much altered and run-down outbuildings which detract from the setting overall.

| wish the owners good luck in their endeavours.



Page 110

21 Princes Street
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6BE

Comments: 3rd September 2024

Having previously raised significant objections to the plans based around the treatment of
areas adjoining the adjacent farm, there are improvements in the design proposals.

The key items to seek consideration by the planners should be:

1. The are significantly more bat related activity in the areas around Glenfall House than
are captured in the survey. We understand there to be roosting in boundary trees and
hedges which would be affected by construction work.

2. There are drainage routes from the farm in front of the stables which would go under
the proposed new garage/store/bike shed. These are operating drains and will need to be
included in any plans by Glenfall House.

3. The Environmental Health report identifies that noise surveys around the boundary
and from the Heat Pumps will need to be assessed for the new buildings, the impact of
this plant running adjacent to a farm should also be included as the adjacent sheds
house livestock.

4. A condition to prevent fireworks use would be welcomed as this has been a significant
problem for the farm in terms of nuisance to livestock and horses when used in the past.
5. It should be noted that there is a natural well under the proposed solar panels running
along the outside hedge adjacent to the stables and that any solar panels that may be
located there do not have a detrimental effect of the livestock route immediately in front
of them.

Comments: 17th April 2024

Objection to the planning application.

Further to our previous comments on the applications, these are in relation to the revised
application.

1. Solar panels located to the south of the walled garden.

a. These appear to be an afterthought to the benefit of the applicant without due regard
to their neighbour.

b. The placement of these is immediately adjacent to a farm livestock route and will be
both distracting and detrimental to the livestock moving along the farm spaces by
reflecting light and shadows which will be likely to make them jumpy and liable to be
startled.

c. | believe that the sighting of these panels in this location will also result in a reduction
in efficiency due to shading and interference from bushes and trees on the farm side of
the boundary.

d. These solar panels should be located in an alternative location that will not cause harm
or distress to livestock or farm animals using the farm livestock route.

e. There is an open well in the space of the proposed solar panels and no mention of this
is contained in the plan.

2. The location of the proposed apartment 4 and garage workshop under.

a. The part of the development immediately adjacent to the stables and farm is a
significant increase in massing and bulk by the boundary of a working farm and its
adjacency, whilst reduced slightly still presents a significant change of use to the area
proposed for development.



Page 111

b. There should be protections at least put in place to protect the livelihood of the farm
and restrictions placed to ensure that the development use does not cause distress or
harm to the livestock and animals.

c. Whilst the building has been moved slightly, this is still a significant massing of what
was there previously.

d. As stated in the previous objection, there is drainage from the farm buildings that
crosses the boundary to Glenfall house that will need to be maintained in the new
development.

3. Air source heat pump location.

a. | could not see a background noise assessment in the application.

b. The location proposed is immediately adjacent to the boundary with Oakfield farm and
the noise generated by the heat pumps will be intrusive to the farm on a 24/7 basis. They
are very likely to have a detrimental effect on the farm livestock with the startup and
running routines. There is a significant amount of other wildlife like bats and hedgehogs
that will be also affected that are present in the spaces around Glenfall House and
Oakfield Farm.

c. There is no information with regards to the actual equipment proposed or attenuation
to be provided.

d. With the current proposed position, it appears to have been placed in the most
convenient space for Glenfall House with no regard for their neighbour.

4. Impact on wildlife and farm animals.

a. There are significant numbers of bats evident on the farm side of the boundary
particularly around the older structures on the farm side in the stables and other
outbuildings. They are regularly spotted at dusk by occupiers and visitors to the farm.
b. In the undergrowth and environs around the farm buildings there are wildlife that will
be disturbed and affected by construction activities in adjacent spaces.

c. The construction works will have a detrimental effect on the livestock and animals
during construction and a mitigation plan is essential to avoid distress and disruption to
the workings of the farm. This includes the construction traffic that will be using the
access route to Glenfall Farm.

Comments: 13th November 2023
We rent stables and land from Oakfield Farm.

We have significant concerns on this development and wish to strongly object to this
application.

1. There is a significant development on the boundary of Oakfield Farm both in terms of
proposed buildings and in terms of the nature of the development. The new buildings are
drawn as being constructed on the boundary between Glenfall House and Oakfield Farm
against the location of the historical stables (that were originally part of the Glenfall
Estate). Just the construction of these will cause significant risk of harm to the historic
stables as well as distress and potential harm to the animals and stock on the farm itself.
2. The new buildings proposed have significant massing and increase in size to both the
current and pre-application discussions and are completely out of character with the
current environment.

3. There is a bat survey that has been completed, it should also be noted that there is a
significant bat presence in the stables we rent and the adjacent historical building which
is used currently for housing goats on the farm.



Page 112

4. It is highly likely that there is drainage from the stables across the farm boundary onto
the Glenfall House land that will need to be maintained and consideration of this will need
to maintained.

5. There is farm machinery and plant that operates in the in the immediate adjacency to
the proposed development and we currently access and care for our horses anytime
between the hours of 0600 and 2200.

6. The stables appear to not be correctly located on the documents submitted on the
planning application and the gable end of the stable block sits on the immediate
boundary and is at significant risk of undermining by the proposed construction.

7. With the proposed units and use of the proposed buildings, it is an almost certainty
that if constructed, the occupants will seek to complain about normal farm activities which
is completely detrimental to the normal operations of a farm and be of a detrimental
nature to the livelihood of the farm.

We would welcome a visit from the planning officer to Oakfield Farm.

6 Leckhampton Rise
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL53 OAP

Comments: 7th November 2023

As frequent visitors to Glenfall House for various occasions, we wholeheartedly support
the proposed plans to restore the estate to its former glory. The thoughtful consideration
put into the design, emphasising sustainability, and preservation of the historic landscape
is commendable. We look forward to seeing this beautiful property thrive once again.

Belmont

102 Arle Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL51 8LD

Comments: 2nd November 2023

This is exactly what this property needs, having done work on this house I realise what is
involved in maintaining such a large old property. I'm delighted to see the plans that give
it much needed investment for the future and restore the most important historic
elements and features. Really is great to see that this isn't going to be left to fall into
disrepair as unfortunately so many do , when they are of this nature.



Page 113

10 Leckhampton Rise
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL53 0AP

Comments: 6th November 2023

We have visited Glenfell House a couple of times for parties and events in the past. The
plans presented here look fantastic and will restore Glenfell house to its former glory
whilst equally modernising the property. The vision and thought that has gone into the
plans submitted are to be commended.

3 Natton Cottages
Ham Lane
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 6NJ

Comments: 7th November 2023
Dear Sir / Madam,

Having read all that is proposed for the above property, there is quite a bit to commend
the plans for this historic building which does need further restoration. However, there are
a few things which in my view need further consideration both in terms of Environmental
concerns and to ensure minimum impact on neighbours of this business.

1) The demolition of the coach house, stables and motor garage is not acceptable both in
terms of the Environment where yet further resources are to be used as well as the
historic aspect of these buildings. Indeed part of the history of the house is that it has
been built up over the years and has reached where it is and should be left alone. It does
appear that incomers to the AONB and particularly where older properties are purchased
just want to urbanise the area which has already led to the destruction of some historic
bits in the immediate vicinity. The secret in moving to this area is to learn to work with
what is there and especially to maintain the outer appearance which has now become
part of the landscape. This comment also applies to garden walls which have also
become part of this building.

2) The proposal for building closer to the boundary with the farm is of considerable
concern especially for the farmer. Previous experience of allowing 'residential’ building to
be built closer to factories or commercial buildings or in this case a farm could no doubt,
lead in the future to complaints about natural farming smells and possible unwarranted
enforcement action to get these

reduced even though this is what occurs in the countryside. The livelihood of the farmer
must be protected from such future unwarranted actions and the applicant if they are
allowed to build must accept conditions that the location could be subject to the activities
of the farm and accept these are part of the rural landscape and activity. Indeed the use
of the term 'Farmyard Clutter' does

demonstrate a complete absence of knowledge of what does go on at a farm and in the
countryside. The use of the word DECLUTTER is also in terms of the greenery in the
grounds -does not bode well for what should be sympathetic restoration and working with
what is there.



Page 114

3) Noise from Events/ Entertainments - the previous owners caused considerable
nuisance especially during the summer with the playing of loud music and loud voices
coming through speakers. What is NOT realised for this area is that sound travels
exceeding well and even though trees are

supposed to dampen excessive sound - this does not work for music. On one occasion
when we and adjacent neighbours were trying to enjoy our gardens in the summer, the
'music' was such that at over half a mile away - it caused a vibration in our cloakroom
which is set in the middle of the house! People up and over one mile away were also
significantly disturbed. The repetition of

the music was patrticularly irritating. Due to this, Environmental Health had to be asked to
intervene - very much so that when the Glenfall Hotel was contacted - We were advised
that 'they had a licence and could do what they like! To save future problems occurring
and obviously future expense for enforcement - please can Environment Health be
consulted to ensure this does not happen in future and to ensure this business does NOT
Impose unwanted intrusion on the lives of its neighbours!

4) The Grounds - given that there has been unwarranted Clear Felling of trees and
shrubs at other locations in this AONB area and despite what appears assurances that
'sympathetic' restoration would be done - the use of the word DECLUTTER as above
does not instil one that a sense of responsibility will be applied when this is done. The
conditions surrounding this part of the proposal must be made as clear as possible of
what can and cannot be done. Indeed in the immediate area and beyond there is a
diversity of wildlife which uses all the areaand if 'over tidying' is done this will have a more
wide spread detrimental effect on the AONB environment. Indeed some trees which were
requested to be felled because they were not'natural’ but had been there for a long time -
60 - 100 years, are used by owls, hawks and other bird life. Happily, these are still in
place.

Finally, it is again of concern that the area AONB, is used, but then seems to be ignored
where convenient or inconvenient especially outside of this property (Glamping is not
acceptable in this respect). It must be asked though whether this is Development by the
back door as what happens if the business changes course - and whether the
apartments then become available for long term

rent or purchase. This particular aspect must be addressed by planners please who in
this case have largely got it right in terms of what would be most suitable for this area.

Yours faithfully,

Oakfield Farm

Mill Lane

Charlton Kings

Cheltenham

Gloucestershire

GL54 4EP
Comments: 3rd September 2024
Letter attached.

Comments: 28th August 2024

Letter attached.



Comments: 17th April 2024
Letter attached.

Comments: 15th April 2024
Letter attached.
Comments: 6th November 2023

Letter attached.

Page 115



Page 116

Carver

KnNnowles

PROPERTY CONSULTANTS

6 November 2023

Strensham Business Park

Cheltenham Borough Council Strensham
Planning Worcester
Municipal Offices WRS 9JZ
Promenade

Cheltenham T: 01684 853400
GL50 9SA enquiries@carverknowles.co.uk

www.carverknowles.co.uk

Dear Mrs White,

RE: PLANNING APPLICATION 23/01424/FUL AT GLENFALL HOUSE, MILL LANE, CHELTENHAM, GL54

4EP

APP 23/01424/FUL: Part change of use of principal building from hotel/event venue to single dwelling
(C3), including removal of extensions/alterations to principal building. Demolition of coach house,
stables, and 20" century buildings and extensions and replacement with new outbuildings consisting of
garaging, holiday let apartments (C1), leisure building (including swimming pool) and a greenhouse.

Alterations to historic landscaped grounds and kitchen garden.

| am writing on behalf oflMy Client, IIIIIINEEEEN of Oakfield Farm, Mill Lane, GL54 4EP.
My clients live adjacent to the Glenfall House and own the surrounding land and have instructed me
to write to OBJECT to the proposed development at Glenfall House on the basis that the
development is not appropriate development adjoining to their property which is an Agricultural
Unit.

I - an area extending to approximately 250ac from Oakfield Farm. The farm
surrounds Glenfall House and a map of the area is enclosed withing Appendix 1 of this letter.

I together with their family have been farming Oakfield Farm for 2 generations
and run both a beef suckler herd and commercial beef herd. Typical numbers on the holding are circa
20 breeding cows plus calves and approximately 100 store cattle which range in age and size."1ll

I onerates a commercial business on the site and makes haylage from the land whilst also
putting natural fertiliser (muck) back on the land.

IR i principle have no objection to the redevelopment of Glenfall house and they
would be in favour of the conversion of the main house back into a private residence. This is mainly
due to issues with the livestock welfare which was put at risk by firework displays completed by the
wedding venue. However, the proposed siting of the new leisure facilities and holiday lodges are
extremely close to the working farm yard and it is considered that the location is not feasible without
suitable mitigation to reduce the impact of noise and odours, without such mitigation it is considered
that the 2 uses will clash which undoubtedly will impact the leisure facilities and demand for the
holiday lets.

As is the nature of an agricultural unit, the work is unsociable and naturally causes odours and noise
and it is not considered that a leisure facility adjacent to this environment is suitable.

The applicant is aware that Glenfall House is currently used as guest accommodation with the
outbuildings used for ‘ancillary use linked to the predominant use of the property’. However, the

EST

AGRICULTURAL
VALUERS

AMC

AGENT



Page 117

principal house is significantly further from the livestock buildings than the existing or proposed outbuildings
and leisure centre.

Glenfall House is described on Tripadvisor as a ‘historic country manor on the outskirts of Cheltenham’. It is
reasonable to suggest that guests expect a level of luxury accommodation with such accommodation. By
returning the principal house to a single dwelling, the guest accommodation will be moved to the proposed
outbuildings and thus considerably closer to the farm. This increased proximity of the guest accommodation to
the livestock buildings is likely to be in direct conflict as guests will have an expectation of peaceful enjoyment.
They will not expect to be residing near to a loud and potentially smelly cattle barn or to be woken early by the
sounds of tractors or other large machinery.

The site elevations below are taken from the documents submitted with the planning application and
demonstrate that the proposed holiday let accommodation is shown directly adjacent to the ‘farm barns’, with
the bedroom to Apartment 4 adjacent to the barn.

DT T
EEEEE g!h& &

Leisure Buikding

Farm Bams

Field

Eas! Elevation/ Seclion G-G

The ‘farm barns’ referred to above are used both as equestrian stables and for the breeding of pedigree goats.
Typically, the goats and horses will be cared for outside of typical working hours (9-5), which can mean that
there will be activity on site between 6am and 8am daily. Typically, animals will be mucked out, fed, let out and
in the case of the horses, possibly ridden. All of this is likely to cause considerable noise and odour at a time
when guests, who would be approximately 5m from the stables would be expecting quiet.

The proposed leisure building is due to be located further west closer to the commercial livestock barns. The
livestock barn is approximately 7m from the boundary between the two properties. Whilst during the summer
months, cattle will predominantly be out grazing, all cattle will be housed during the winter (typically October —
April). When cattle are housed daily activities include cleaning of cattle houses, bedding, feeding and welfare
checks and all of these activities create considerable noise, odour as well as potentially being undertaken at
unsociable hours.

In addition to the regular activities, throughout the yearmwill have other significant events;

e Weaning of cattle — this is a number of times throughout the year and is from both stock purchased
from the agricultural market or from within the Suckler Herd. Typically this creates noise which can be
throughout the night and for a number of days.

e Calving — Calving will predominantly be undertaken in the spring but involves unsociable checking of
cattle and can involve vets visits throughout the night if there is a requirement for difficult calving.

e Manure Spreading — during the summer/ I i spread the manure from over winter
housing on the land at Oakfield Farm. This is often over a number of days (potentially a week) and can
result in considerable odour.

Whilst it is acknowledged that these factors have no bearing on the site where the development is proposed, it
is considered that the proposed use of the site is not suitable given the surrounding environment which does
not lend itself to guest accommodation and leisure facilities.

Further to this, the use of the leisure facilities does not appear clear within the application. The application
does not appear to clarify if the Leisure Facilities will be open to the general public or restricted to use by
Residents at Glenfall house guest houses. The potential use by the general public would have an increase in the
quantity of traffic which uses the access track (shared with my client) and it would be favourable if the use was
clarified and conditioned.



Page 118

In addition to this, there is no mention of the hours of use for the leisure facilities, as with the use, | think this
information would be useful and if conditioned could mitigate against potential conflict as a result of
unsociable agricultural work undertaken on my client’s land which may clash with use of the leisure facility.

Furthermore, having reviewed the Application and the pre-application advice it is noted that within the pre-
application advice it was stated that ‘The proposed demolition works would not be supported if submitted as
part of an application’ and that ‘consideration should be given to restoring part of the character of the coach
house, stables and motor garage.’ Despite this advice, the applicant appears to have submitted an application
to demolish the entire range of outbuildings. The proposed buildings have been moved and located extremely
close to the boundaries of a working agricultural farm and we do not consider that the intended use of these
buildings is sustainable in the proposed location. If the existing outbuildings were to be redeveloped, they
would be located further away from the agricultural yard and the impact of noise and odour would be
mitigated by the distance. The redevelopment of these buildings is also supported by the pre-application
advice the applicant received.

In conclusion, the demolition of the existing buildings and moving the guest accommodation and leisure
facilities adjacent to a working farm is considered to be unsustainable with the two uses being in conflict.
Whilst my client is happy to support the restoration of Glenfall House into a private residence, it is felt that
the redevelopment of the existing outbuildings would be favourable and would mitigate against the impact of
a leisure facility against an adjoining agricultural unit. It would also be requested that there is clarity over who
will use of the proposed leisure centre and the hours of use. We would request that these would be
conditioned to ensure that the use does not result in the intensification of the access track.

Yours sincerely

Josh Balsdon BSc (Hons) MRICS FAAV
CARVER KNOWLES
email: joshbalsdon@-carverknowles.co.uk

Encs.



Page 119

APPENDIX 1

./’4 T

o

" Dakfiéld Farm

vy



Qaference  NaMbrs ‘ ' Oaicfladd Lo

S o i i\'u\un&w ,
23] Ol fou Page 120 Cinowrldrmn g

/)’)},‘@\W(L\‘// LB Cingie Wneupa
) Glowes @it
GLow aef

o (
D&N’ \A)\L\,\ \N\(\r%(, rl“\‘rb«,\gw@st U
f \(mme\) oo o el defed MCB w200t . Endased (g

O o\no*t’* »u‘buD\m c,ﬁ o bedt ek Lel\ auds of an \\m covered {rea

e OakLUchk Lo pmpertu., 3ot by the L@L W tho

%\?Q\*;\Q,\AOAC}\ on A% 20620, TNk ‘DQ(;@“Q Yhe  hovse

Ladiin  wese \ﬁ«L\\BUf\c\ ot % \Som. e Eiciced e i¥e)

and b Slad C\\AM

The® Do Lu\c‘\r\u\ of \O.wi%&re\ke, ‘bcdtg o ol el badke

\owuké\u\c‘) _wnere ol cgccc"t%

Ci\)a, st .{0( buW\W\Q\f Q\i'tklu'\% T!r\a&
WS c\c\c’x&uu} o Al u\%\ckg L,L 4o teol  and s \ma;u”\

st Yaedd Lo over 20 %egxff) ond u\g\,\ nd . Hhere -

ot oue (0 enlirance. \\a\jb;r al\ \;3\3({/\ ’\(, Celowelod on.

We ﬂng\w\u See Hhean  Com . and %& o Qoo -%'ln/U)

bwldiirg . We Seo  batS  all 4he tuve W\ tha Q\be/fluxo:z)ﬁ
Spm‘\oj.&:sw%“ and ol - |

Se .‘i\r\m) \?‘Q}“\f.) \,Lksz\u coudd e i Al hel Ku treon  and Mj

all Ground tihe S’ECL‘DLQU\ o ok pruNd ey, tc{u) ou\c\ wWul cd

. D) JYy
S ounding  OSRe ~t*c> G\,Q,\Lcd\ Howne and ows FC\WVL

& aks, Vuc\,cpe \/\C\u Salallows N o\l Hhese Mamivald s

oA \owc\S M,uk Yeru  Coceful\ Con S derakian .

TR Aadele \0 ‘\"Y\.Qn’\]ﬁ W tLL have  AASS Vt \,{V\,()CKC:E

on Hho eny wwwvw’\t e w\f&c\/\w{, ek Loe b\wa_

o> wel A \c‘\r\ci\y:m umpack G Uh, and ol

aUeAS  and \;k\&n\k\m cod ,C oV

\5@ Y A Comel -

Mows cncorelu




Page 121




Rolesence Mawbes @@&Hﬁm (ot
03] oluay “FUL ' MUL Lane

| 5
sad ___Page 122 Choctton 18
03] eluiy | LBL iptepi
| GLsu UEP
Deee Lty Lty gt 2ok

As Yo 0 0MOIe.  wWR. oue. O u&ovkm'f\) (westocte.  Corm.

We ore \\ei‘iqr(u/\n +0o H,(‘ZW\LL MumbperS  alnowe

\dhak 18 %ou\u +o \oe done. T h)lS"cquh dxdmmge

’S%Stom ek aces  past  ond *'Hr\\”?)U\G\\r\ our  Steblo Wleek vt

e npall Aowsex laend (¢ RS d.wu Lup or dmnaoed f\O'Hr\U\ia)
ot weorn  Stated abouk Wuykavrie &mmu«% o M Plang .

How  wdl nls ‘\94 addressed ,

ngoakm’g the repovoel  of \-\ol\uT 208 and the wue, fence

oktached to ke s 1 chms —*0 lhave. e dmuvxodlg

Visuwal WV\O&& on U and ow  Lafm bm\g&u\s& for U\UQMS

4o Come B e ook Hhe b\ol\u o0y provide

&MQ;LX&U_ Sc,wp,r\ma .

“Twere ore. \oetS (‘mgﬂr'\& U (\;3 ond \o\ixkc\uxg& ALTUNd

e Rocpa -

Clase ooard fencidg needs 4o lse pub Lip while. trean

6 U\mu\\u\cx e Wl take Ueals Lo \(\0\3 to grow.

N
\Amé\o\,&& o e ho\ulcw\ \rQJrS need to lbe on\u —chgm\a)
Glenpoll Houses Side . NM’ THE SIDE To OLE @ﬁm\« AND

CALM BUILDIN &8, ’rms could CauSe @ PRMUSHIOND , Nowe, Smglh e4¢ -

There \;\\\,UL bo oo dapnalud CS/\Ov‘(\%G to tho \W\A%QCLPQ.'

oo Maone toeen ose wanoved,

Tl st nek cause  Lonancial uwpack o wH

ax all (eX “Hhils (S N6t Oux CUL\/&LOP/YLQIDE'

wWe  Lve ond Warke  hore-

Youl SU’\C(‘M‘QJ |




Oedefedd Lo |

o o
——Page 123\ quv(hm
~-Page | Sy L ik
s o Gloutatorchuse
SERVICES GLSy Lep
KL 5226 579;; 568 ‘ ibTL\A prk LUy
| / I IllHlllllllmllllHllmHHHHlﬂlﬂ
Den LMB wWhite

‘anl;m lettor
lc[,rﬁoytal, and condin i
“Tiun Wo:j) CLf;Mac e il ﬁPZ:L(Z(D#
revi
s uz nunbers 13/01@'74/@(. and B/ﬁ“ﬁ;}ggg
men . |
Rff)arduﬂﬁ @lmf\mj proposals ot GLQ‘“GQ GLS P
conSent
geflore \\jm JO cJ\,an( and gwke. p\cmnmj

C(— 0“""3 [/Lme\ «Gmr GLQJ\FO\M Houpo and Ll')
Proposaln, and the

eX| SMB bwo\w\ss

ploumu\
oUuMoLLhav\, o{ o Lot O)C LVJ—(ZOL

LY Lrcmn

A5 Yo owe AW, We o o Wovkine wcctu m

ONA holen. Have conGiceied. Haak o hocin or

O et o cmg +0o bé ot Wlc }«QWW\ Smcmm and

> Fncbmcx v bf\ﬁ‘“'efk b‘% " L D2 c\\
Cm%u&m Wevle  and firom -the nsige o[ -he Prof

JIVASXVE Sy SRR Rovic Aoen  olead .

As «-c‘l:uoﬂ‘l,ark e Ow prey \Cfu& Latler e;aprcgsuvj
ws conCarn

%\
O ti~e QreO\C’W) we&du\cs SenuQ s
Whet Went own -

ed  theus act on
ladelopess Cmgcohz;e o
Houre —H'\SL Co\ﬁ,}\ ecum(/) Wl thare \i&d\dm qd
AUV waU‘LQ\/:iQ\N ’UZWLQ‘—Q& cswmaly oy ,Gve, l UMM:‘M\
(V) C |
ww\SlC;‘w\zco Showdd not be lot off o %Q\chc\g@“w
fie L hue/)‘{“o(‘t(_ cad alne cuow\ Ry
Norsen  Ane \Md\ cw\‘t&% 0 Usentoci,  We cue
btildinas W | |
of the 8é m \j oo e im(\cy&‘ Rshf nQxt dcsc\:\’
We are
“ e S\V}\r \/EZ 4;\\\:& 1S SN \\\rQ%:\'O(k,\ v\ bang c,\d‘c‘zfi’fb
: , . > A(0i T .
,H \éi\é\CQA( CN(\(\ SN\M\N\W\(,S POO\/ NnNSL Qf_ ?L’LMPS ,((‘0‘]/\
AN




SUMV\.W\Q\B ?O(:\ ‘ Page 124 _ : :
Thae \/chj\\ \QC\,\SB (Lﬁf’c.\s’—k WE;QJ\t wc\ —tc:, Do u\_@?\f M
of tha  Secoardy qacke tnstalledtion,.. \,3& At Cone
b wf of TofRen 1B e \%'o:*@\ Lol Yo oean -

We need L& / T occesd 4o ax’ Only entence
Lov ous SQ\\}&S’ \hovsSe clherdts S CLQL\{,\Q‘L/) lov © L;O/)’ cadtle lovian
AN RN servieen AN Uets . ‘

™ 3e the ’U‘*n{(f\c. o boulde wP c\lof\c) ‘e CLF\UQLDCtj
b\oqtcuf\ occessS to 4dhae  olthaer eeo PLQ A he =) VSTAY
o {:ULL Wit hovsen, Ck\c\'\% ‘o GLDJ\-QC&\\ Dnve. -
Thare Lc'\d\c\ be o« back. \(_)(> of T orpte Ao
foad o ML Lane 5 N o sb\w() bend. Twin Toad D

R Ge ey 'bwy-v% AN Can'‘A N(\JJ,M) ‘ol o anmeunt
o % Y. G N .

| ,, e alena W O - Lot alme g
the  propered LR o\ ebhar buidd uf\’f;& RS adngad.

N q e 1 ¥ P \ " .

[N S\c‘ \'\'\)'r\‘c > c‘g \Sc\c%r pc\n{\S could  comnt LMNPB
‘O ow hovSe L/bkbf\.)QD LWV\/\G\,\/), ‘ol bee N P\/TJC RCJ\'\*—
o tha OO C\C\FB 0-\1 Glenfa\  Howne an\ ow _(,’Q(\Q&Lum
Wnare \(\N&EJS are \ic\ ouck ox“. ,H,\&'\( Sl ‘!@’\’O %0
vk TS Hhews R\AS,  and back i ag "y |

We adne e ACCoSY *‘9‘3 N umc*\(f\@o .
V\‘;M can-o Wk J\A;’Tt be ured wn a V\oi&t\ U\,m \b\\mr\
e Didtene of Glmcestler el 1. : -
Tew ddate  knew  we. were here and we dadatl kenowd
N[N S W\c\th) me(\‘&e&\ c\ﬁ»ﬁ&opﬂ\m\t/) C\C)&Qf
Aa e LWedYetic ,
Please CON Vo COML and\ e (NI R_ L 4re

We \Uck-ﬁﬁ\(\sm&‘i’o ‘\.O.C{'\J\\ g{Z'YV\ Ol -




LJM.W,LCL, (r(M LA
MUl Lane

TPageizs | ey Ko
GlowaSlarshue
—~\/ | GLsu Wel
| (LsppsTrosee  SGNEDFQ 12" Apnk oL
Deac Lucy wite | TINMUNGHNONSP |
| am one of the thuee  farmerd Hfot hve OJC'- Oakpreld {ar W

MU Lane Chadbm Kings, Chetanbean,  Gloucestrshue , GLSE WeP,
and  am whﬂ&hf) on behalf of the rost of My 'g‘a,mw\)'-

| am wettin 10 yole (\Q_BO\[CILLI\ tlhhe ptanru/\s PVDPOSC\/L
at Gleafall House, MUl Lane, charlbon Kings, Cheflendon,
Glowcestorshwee,  GLste LEP
Reperente. munlber  22/014AL | Ful

i 23)01 0 | LRC

M 1 B APR 8% O

Py

!(“\.

| Ar-m
\

Oalfreld o O/LLJCLLJS been a l/\)O\kaf'?\g hvestock. farm and
We feep and  breod  bobh caMle and So(d“/) ok EhAS PFQM'(SQS;
We oo  have  horse  (veries. |

ow Lvestode and  horsed e hotned, and kept L Feldn
Jo Wiy very close 4o the proposed new development of
Glengalle LBC e hoawe concermd, dhat Sald clevelopment
(s too  cloSe to Lwestock and w LLc\LL'(-Q»

[ o F{qlkw’t‘fllfjtthLL €0 Come ohoL See for @M'Sdc
exactly  Where que WueStocic anel horseS are kepb: AS cortacn
ameds  are b e prrmoanent Leldy, etc and cannet be
Meoved to other Faalities.

In 201S when  Glonfall Hnne Changed hands, tt pecome.

o Wedding venue | wote to the  counud  expressulg o
Concerrys for owr hwestocic andt heysed., Re — LoUDd /-VIUS(CL,Q‘tC
No one Lrorm -t  Cowncid Coma 0 Sez WA

TTHEW 1v QoA TTHE venue HAD THE FAREWRKS ,

LTUTTe previons ownerS had o Lowd Lve band  ployng
ML, it Wan exreviely loud, | went out to peed Fiey
doatd, e showld have only faken  1S- 2O monudid.

( 'S-taﬂﬁd Hrore For dh hetird IJDBC_CLLV)/@., one 9cvc‘\it el i
Jumped owt of his pen Uro the next pen. ket hin fund
on i oon ol four  aumaly  Fhat  wee Fhere wee PQ‘tn(&Ei-

| Staged Wik +he single SOCCt to leoef hume Lrom lm,b?ttf}ﬂ humsedf.

They are howsed Un the Stable blodk thad (3 2 ~3ffaeat
oo fom Glenfelle Red Brele Bowndery Wall, of haWalled Graaly«



) -
O % 2\ %Nzrﬁ WAS  the 9\&wwk i dent . We lhad o §
\'\‘ k\, v ‘)\ — WSQ{S
ook Bredung  StenAourd S Page 126, oad  when 3 .
o\ e ('\PQNO‘F&S Set U\.P ey dk%)\cx ’H\Q.\B Qou,\e& Seo ouU

codtle | N Ahe LR\AS Hhat  Surcound \e_;\fﬁ\\\ House MC\S)C’\RM

wWe couddnt  more o cedlle  becomse ol budl wed I

U We ek o be veg()cms\\om he \C_QSLDU\LS o an e '

GQV\)% " QLQ,X.C\S Akt were U\\-OO\\S “QV‘O\\/\ oYWne [ MS\/\\UULU—W\)
Loy Cattlo -

When  the furewovics went  off , e wWad everu/ng anchk & WAS
DARIL.

/"13 Socd:s and theu /,cuw resC gt of ﬁ«w’ stable anel
fled “up Hhetr  paddeeic. The cecttle  started <0 stam peed and
rw:ui3 w~enk ’Ulmmud‘/\ Some  hevse paddc’Ck (»J\wf\j

("(3 hwband.  manageed o clemb o Hhe P([(,nc range
i Glenealls  lower  govdan. He shoutod et Hwom +0 STO ¢l

I+ was  hoviendows, 'l nowts fovgret 1t Neo amumal showdel be
put ’th,musb\ that  lene of STess-
Tl nast MO rmMane [ P(d&;L wp ur ol Swrrotendun
Frelds S COL\"cUooa/(\cL' ttdoes »{erYY\ $he \PM\:\)WIC 515‘9 [C&\s'
Two dags (eder +he fueworlc  gye cvf%m came wp to G- H
ancl  Lfunk of el Hhey anleecl & L we wonted G H o

hawe furewWorlea  agaun.  We  Sawel n/ O and we i%a/ﬂaﬁﬂ\(
o get themto come and  See. how close oo candmal)
e 40 Hhin  Venue s Thay were suepnsed how close Wiestotk. Were 0 Jefud
Ao Lhen  Gleneel Houne wan oo Wdding yenne, wre
hed to 9o and i -thent to tiun daeon or “tun off tatr

lod MuSie, as they had  gene oies heir tune (wie of Hwpy

one OLCCUD((N\ e wWoes 40 P, Ap petime the owner
of Qenfall Houne Wan never dure Gheon a function

Was o, The music W veekend afbe  weeleend after
whee beend -

R,LTHCCLWU) of eyent mMusie of oy Ifo/\oL Uve band ov

cthaur wne  muat pbe  put LA Place and +the wse of
Pt Wovien  PROMIBITED  for this proposed  dovelopmert

and  daelopments -that May  ouise i the fubire
PO AU ALL THE RUILDINGY ot Gengedl Houne and S
LOC Whether for entertaunment ov for residential whe -



our ooumadd, owe Wy ery clunty

YN C W (R A .QO\’ Lihae b&{L\ﬂmu\C‘\S 70(, ‘ ‘
hovses and. owr Wu(dLLéQ thokPage 127 oaBUNA Fhe oM (¢ Carbaun
o ‘VJL\()\LJ’L'%S oce  denolnhed «  Glengall Houwng .
were. gue é\éﬁstreL botnr ot hewe peen herd evudSine  we
ot \noont ot Q)ov],d‘,&(({' (e lhad one ot on g loaclk (‘}Gv\f,
so | wred ouxr ot doer HUW s elow auwd C\% "ﬂ»u\s\\r( \pewn v ij
dchene , e one  came dawon e Clue  of ﬂM)' Qé\ﬁbt-wcf\ and |\
resaued ik and ek ik 9o |
T baty e cuk tne Eelouovw by yeow o A U Sea TUhame onc
o ‘“U\)\«bbh’ bonins ot Ak g amund owe {k\\fw\.
e 0O o abandongd  red bl oiuldang, Withe o lack @ ¢,
'\PM‘“B maw oo oS Una u~ thaere, Theks Q’(‘o\oc\_\o\\ P Qoaec\ Lo
(\Q:W\QLC\'\.O«'\' S \cg)) Noxk ‘o Yty S\\QQ(\\A(W)-‘L \ kA batsS ose (Pm—tQCtQ <(
“There o oo \a:\e,ech,fxs Colones o MC\%&\\C, oS ONn Ous
‘Q‘\(W\ and  Stable \L\C/\Pd\ Ao, T stalola \Q o{d. oseoc vy NexEto
There  coudide 9@%%\\0\\3 ba M«\%ﬁ \1\0%% A areald of
RSV odocndaniod around o Sl LBC cea
The Okt B wi e proposed  LBL has o prenenvadion
oder M LE, Aok owdd ane b oo home 4o oty
U e to belwe  Glenfall Haur wahy o lusted budClulj)

and so are ot \DU,LLC\L/'\S% A e The metoy howse o
Wsled

| hepe He  LBC s oproved 13 adag Lm‘m‘j St
Pmcqc—eft/ s When +he mMotor howse Wy wped ﬂpmr
Qo , Hae  MaC way  extre e loewd an | dont
taunde tHhat o Ny Sownd va’m"cj- |
'm Concarnog that +hon
Weentodc %\ML. When  Glenpell
wWos o Wedd Lﬂg Venue -

LAC (s even closer 4o g
Howre ey, an when it




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 129

APPLICATION NO: 23/01424/LBC

OFFICER: Mrs Lucy White

DATE REGISTERED: 19th October 2023

DATE OF EXPIRY : 14th December
2023

WARD: Battledown

PARISH: CHARLK

APPLICANT: | Mr And Mrs D Bunner

LOCATION: | Glenfall House Mill Lane Charlton Kings

PROPOSAL.: | Part change of use of principal listed building from hotel/event venue to
single dwelling (C3), including removal of extensions/alterations to
principal building. Demolition of coach house, stables and 20th century
buildings and extensions and replacement with new extension and
outbuildings consisting of a leisure building with swmimming pool,
garage/store, greenhouse and 5no. dwellings to be occupied as holiday
accommodation. Internal alterations to listed building and alterations to
historic landscaped grounds and kitchen garden.

REPRESENTATIONS

Number of contributors
Number of objections
Number of representations
Number of supporting

ROFLDN

Oakfield Farm
Ham Road
Charlton Kings
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL54 4EP

Comments: 28th August 2024
Letter attached
Holly Blue House
Daisy Bank Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL53 9QQ

Comments: 30th October 2023

| have looked at the plans for restoring and enhancing Glenfall House. As a local resident
and frequent visitor to the property in its present form - a run down, muddled collection of
unimpressive buildings that pay no attention to the primary house's obvious original
charm and historic value - I'm delighted to support this application. The only building of
genuine note is the house itself, which is in need of substantial restoration, care and
attention. The various outbuildings are of little practical use and stand in the way of




Page 130

restoring the house to its former glory. | consider that this town, and county, needs
owners with the vision and means to restore genuine residential gems that raise the bar.
Part restored, part modernised, in a sensitive way, they add considerable value to this
area as a whole. And will only attract further investment in preserving and enhancing
residential stock in need of considerable work. If this plan is approved - with all
reasonable safeguards - we can expect more buildings of architectural and historic value
to be restored. If not, it sends the contrary message and dis-encourages people to
restore and modernise - without which there can be no progress. Each new generation
must be able to add to the history of any building.



Rolesence Mawbes @@&Hﬁm (ot
03] oluay “FUL ' MUL Lane

| S
and ___Page 131 ngj\m
03] eluiy | LBL iptepi
| GLsu WEP
Deee Lty Lty gt 2ok

As Yo 0 0MOIe.  wWR. oue. O u&ovkm'f\) (westocte.  Corm.

We ore \\ei‘iqr(u/\n +0o H,(‘ZW\LL MumbperS  alnowe

\dhak 18 %ou\u +o \oe done. T h)lS"cquh dxdmmge

’S%Stom ek aces  past  ond *'Hr\\”?)U\G\\r\ our  Steblo Wleek vt

e npall Aowsex laend (¢ RS d.wu Lup or dmnaoed f\O'Hr\U\ia)
ot weorn  Stated abouk Wuykavrie &mmu«% o M Plang .

How  wdl nls ‘\94 addressed ,

ngoakm’g the repovoel  of \-\ol\uT 208 and the wue, fence

oktached to ke s 1 chms —*0 lhave. e dmuvxodlg

Visuwal WV\O&& on U and ow  Lafm bm\g&u\s& for U\UQMS

4o Come B e ook Hhe b\ol\u o0y provide

&MQ;LX&U_ Sc,wp,r\ma .

“Twere ore. \oetS (‘mgﬂr'\& U (\;3 ond \o\ixkc\uxg& ALTUNd

e Rocpa -

Clase ooard fencidg needs 4o lse pub Lip while. trean

6 U\mu\\u\cx e Wl take Ueals Lo \(\0\3 to grow.

N
\Amé\o\,&& o e ho\ulcw\ \rQJrS need to lbe on\u —chgm\a)
Glenpoll Houses Side . NM’ THE SIDE To OLE @ﬁm\« AND

CALM BUILDIN &8, ’rms could CauSe @ PRMUSHIOND , Nowe, Smglh e4¢ -

There \;\\\,UL bo oo dapnalud CS/\Ov‘(\%G to tho \W\A%QCLPQ.'

oo Maone toeen ose wanoved,

Tl st nek cause  Lonancial uwpack o wH

ax all (eX “Hhils (S N6t Oux CUL\/&LOP/YLQIDE'

wWe  Lve ond Warke  hore-

o S




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6¢

Page 133
APPLICATION NO: 24/00631/FUL OFFICER: Miss Claire Donnelly
DATE REGISTERED: 13th April 2024 DATE OF EXPIRY: 8th June 2024
DATE VALIDATED: 13th April 2024 DATE OF SITE VISIT:
WARD: Pittville PARISH: n/a

APPLICANT: | Mr Bradley Jacklin

AGENT: n/a

LOCATION: 3 Pittville Crescent Lane Cheltenham Gloucestershire

PROPOSAL: | Proposed wooden garden shed, and retention of new boundary fence (part
retrospective)

RECOMMENDATION: Permit

Care Centre /|| /

),

e

-

|
le

AL
|

/ s
: W 3
f N T
i - A\“@l K,<\\ " L /g !I 1T

—

L r_[ | s -
o] qﬁjﬁ# )

J J / ;

mw}ﬁ-\hf rer ] ok

This site map is for reference pu-rposes only. OS Crown Copyright. All rights reserved Cheltenham Borough Council 100024384 2007



Page 134

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

The application relates to 3 Pittville Crescent Lane; a two storey, detached, residential
dwelling located within a residential area. The application dwelling has been recently
updated and extended including alterations to the western boundary. The site falls within
the Pittville Ward and is not in a conservation area, however falls just outside of the Pittville
Character Area of Cheltenham’s Central Conservation Area.

The applicant is seeking planning permission for the siting of a garden shed and new
boundary fence.

During the course of the application, the applicant added the proposed boundary fence to
the application already submitted for the shed. The proposed fence has already been
erected and therefore is seeking retrospective planning permission for this element.

Planning permission is required for the shed as it is sited forward of the principal elevation
of the main dwelling. The fence requires planning permission as it exceeds the height of the
existing fence is higher than the limits set out within the limits of permitted development.

The application is at planning committee at the request of Councillor Tooke, for the following
reasons:
- The fence is not compliant with the fence agreed in the original planning permission.

- Lack of enforcement action on retrospective works.

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Constraints:
Principal Urban Area
Residents Associations

Relevant Planning History:
99/50290/FUL  18th November 1999 PER
Single storey domestic extension

22/02122/FUL  10th February 2023 PER
Two storey side and rear extensions and new vehicular entrance with dropped kerb

23/00359/FUL  21st April 2023 PER
Two storey/single storey side and rear extensions and new vehicular entrance with dropped
kerb (revised scheme following grant of planning permission ref. 22/02122/FUL)

3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE

National Planning Policy Framework

Section 2 Achieving sustainable development

Section 4 Decision-making

Section 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities

Section 12 Achieving well-designed places

Section 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Adopted Joint Core Strategy Policies
SD3 Sustainable Design and Construction
SD4 Design Requirements

SD8 Historic Environment

SD14 Health and Environmental Quality




Page 135

Cheltenham Plan Policies

D1 Design
SL1 Safe and Sustainable Living

Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents

The Cheltenham Climate Change SPD (adopted June 2022)

Residential Alterations and Extensions (2008)

Central conservation area: Montpellier Character Area and Management Plan (Feb 2007)

4. CONSULTATIONS

Building Control
7th May 2024
No comment

Tree Officer
19th April 2024
The Trees Section has no objections to this proposal.

5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

5.1

52

5.3

54

Number of letters sent 6
Total comments received 23
Number of objections 15
Number of supporting 6
General comment 2

The application has been advertised by way of letters sent to six neighbouring addresses
and a site notice has been displayed near to the application site given the sit falls just
outside of the conservation area. Following the statutory consultation period, twenty-three
responses have been received.

Of the twenty-one responses, fifteen are objections, six are in support, and there are two
general comments.

The objections have been summarised below:

Height of fence has impact on street,

- Height of fence is unacceptable,

- Materials used for the fence are not appropriate,

- Fence not in-keeping with surroundings,

- Fence has a negative visual impact on, and detracts from the area,
- Fence has intrusive design,

- Fence is higher than previous fence,

- Fence exceeds height of permitted development,

- Relocation of Leylandii and impact on neighbouring property in terms of loss of light to
garden therefore impact on plants to grow, and impact on foundations of boundary wall,

- Varies from original planning permission.

The comments in support have been summarised below:
- The works have enhanced the property,
- Fencing is in-keeping given different styles in the area,



5.5

Page 136

- Lots of different heights of fence/boundaries in the area
- Smart/contemporary fence design,

- Section where the boundary has been removed has improved visibility and wider area.

The neutral comments received have been summarised below:
- No objection to shed however would rather it was relocated,
-  Fenceis in situ,

- Works have improved the property.

. OFFICER COMMENTS

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

Determining Issues

The application proposes a new shed, and the retention of a front boundary fence; the key
considerations for this application are design and impact on the adjacent conservation area,
impact on neighbouring amenity and sustainable development.

Design

Policy SD4 of the JCS and policy D1 of the Cheltenham Plan require development to be of
a high standard of architectural design that responds positively to and respects the
character of the site and its surroundings. This draws from paragraph 135 of the NPPF
which seeks development to be visually attractive and sympathetic to local character.

Shed

The proposed shed would be of a typical shed design and would have a footprint of 2.3
metres by 3.5 metres, with a pent roof of a maximum height of 2.5 metres. The shed is to
be sited to the eastern side of the property; permission is required as it is to be sited slightly
forward of the principal elevation of the main dwelling. However, its siting would not be
forward of surrounding buildings and therefore sits comfortably and appropriately within the
plot and in the wider street context. The shed is considered to be of an acceptable scale,
form and design, and siting within the plot.

Fence

As set out in the introduction, the proposed fence has been erected prior to seeking the
relevant consents. As such, the fence was added to this application and is seeking
retrospective consent. Permission is required for the fence as it has been erected at a height
higher than the previous fence, and also exceeds the limits of permitted development, which
allows a 1 metre high fence to be built without the need for planning permission.

The application property occupies a corner plot on Pittville Crescent Lane; the site itself is
not within the Conservation Area, Pittville Crescent Lane forms the boundary of the Pittville
Character Area of Cheltenham’s Central Conservation Area. The site is relatively prominent
being on a corner plot however Pittville Crescent Lane is a small road serving a small
number of properties. To the south, a service lane serving the rear of a number of properties
runs from Albert Road to the application site; to the north, the road widens serving a number
of residential properties.

The proposed fence replaces an existing 1.4 metre high fence on the southern (front)
boundary, which increases in height to 1.8 metres on the western (side) boundary. The
property has recently been extended and upgraded (planning permission ref. 22/02122/FUL
and revised scheme ref. 23/00359/FUL). As part of the upgrades to the property, the
western part of the existing fence has been removed. The proposed fence now extends on



6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

Page 137

the southern boundary, halfway along the existing detached garage. The proposed fence
has been erected to a height of 1.8 metres at a length of 19 metres, including a pedestrian
gate along the southern (front) boundary. The material of the fence is brown composite
panels, hung as horizontal slats.

The proposed composite material is not a ‘traditional’ material used for fences; normally
boundary fences would be a feather edge type, timber design. However, there is a variety
of materials used for boundary treatments in the vicinity of the site; brick walls, rendered
walls, and timber fences. The proposed fence material could be considered as relatively
harsh due to the composite nature of the material; however, officers are mindful that this
material could have been used to replace the existing 1.4 metre high fence without the need
for planning permission.

With regards to the height of the fence, officers acknowledge that the fence is higher than
the previous fence, therefore has a greater visual impact; furthermore, the proposed use of
material contributes to its impact. As set out above, the existing fence could have been
replaced with a composite material to the existing height, and therefore in this instance the
main consideration is the additional 0.4 metres height of the fence. It is also acknowledged
that the width is also greater, as a previous vehicular access point has been closed and
replaced with a pedestrian gate.

The surrounding area lacks a uniform site layout, property style or property design. It is also
noted that there are examples of high boundary treatments along Pittville Crescent Lane
which face the highway; these examples vary in type and design. As such, the principle and
design of the fence is considered to be acceptable in this location given that the boundary
would not be out of character with the surrounding area.

On balance, whilst it is acknowledged that the fence has changed the character of the
property visually, however given the improvements that have taken place on the site by
removing the western fence and opening up and improving the design of this corner, the
relevant permitted development fall-back position when considering material use, and the
location of the site and the surrounding character, the proposed fence is considered to be
acceptable in terms of design in this instance. Furthermore, as the site falls outside of the
conservation area, and given the location of the site, the proposal would not harm the
character of setting of the conservation area in this instance.

Impact on neighbouring property

Policy SD14 of the JCS and policy SL1 of the Cheltenham Plan require development not to
cause unacceptable harm to the amenity of adjoining land users; this echoes section 12 of
the NPPF which requires development to be of a high standard of amenity for existing and
future users.

A number of neighbour comments have been received following the public consultation
period; a summary of comments received are set out above. The main objections raised
relate to design and visual impact.

The impact on neighbouring amenity has been assessed; it is considered that there would
not be an unacceptable impact on amenity in terms of a loss of light or loss of privacy as a
result of the proposed development.

One neighbour has raised an objection to the relocation of planting shown on the proposed
plan with regards to a loss of light and impact on an existing boundary wall foundations. The
proposed planting does not require planning permission, and therefore whilst the comments
are noted, officers cannot control the planting of vegetation.



6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

Page 138

As such, with regards to an impact on neighbouring amenity, there are no concerns that the
proposed fence or siting of the garden shed would impact upon the amenities of adjoining
land users.

Sustainability

Given the nature of the proposed development, officers acknowledge that there is little
opportunity to include low carbon features or technologies as part of the application. As
such, in this instance, officers have not requested that a sustainability statement be
submitted.

Other considerations

Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED)

As set out in the Equality Act 2010, all public bodies, in discharging their functions must
have “due regard” to this duty. There are three main aims:

- Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected
characteristics;

- Taking steps to meet the needs of people with certain protected characteristics where
these are different from the needs of other people; and

- Encouraging people with certain protected characteristics to participate in public life or
in other activities where participation is disproportionately low.

Whilst there is no absolute requirement to fully remove any disadvantage, the duty is to
have “regard to” and remove OR minimise disadvantage and in considering the merits of
this planning application the planning authority has taken into consideration the
requirements of the PSED.

In the context of the above PSED duties, this proposal is considered to be acceptable.

7. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

7.1

7.2

Taking all of the above into consideration and duly noting the comments raised by
neighbouring residents; it is acknowledged that the proposed fence has a greater visual
impact than the previous fence due to the increase in height and material used; it is
considered however, that improvements have been made to the site and the proposed
fence, given its location and character of the site and its surroundings, is considered to be
acceptable. No concerns are raised with regards to the proposed siting of a garden shed.

Officers recommendation is to therefore permit this application subject to the suggested
conditions below.

8. SUGGESTED CONDITIONS

1

The planning permission hereby granted shall be begun not later than the expiration of three
years from the date of this decision.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The planning permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans listed in Schedule 1 of this decision notice.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.



Page 139

INFORMATIVES

1

In accordance with the requirements of The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the provisions of the NPPF, the Local
Planning Authority adopts a positive and proactive approach to dealing with planning
applications and where possible, will seek solutions to any problems that arise when dealing
with a planning application with the aim of fostering the delivery of sustainable development.

At the heart of this positive and proactive approach is the authority's pre-application advice
service for all types of development. Further to this however, the authority publishes
guidance on the Council's website on how to submit planning applications and provides full
and up-to-date information in relation to planning applications to enable the applicant, and
other interested parties, to track progress.

In this instance, having had regard to all material considerations, the application constitutes
sustainable development and has therefore been approved in a timely manner.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 141

APPLICATION NO: 24/00631/FUL OFFICER: Miss Claire Donnelly
DATE REGISTERED: 13th April 2024 DATE OF EXPIRY : 8th June 2024
WARD: Pittville PARISH:

APPLICANT: | Mr Bradley Jacklin

LOCATION: | 3 Pittville Crescent Lane Cheltenham Gloucestershire

PROPOSAL.: | Proposed wooden garden shed, and retention of new boundary fence
(part retrospective)

REPRESENTATIONS

Number of contributors 23
Number of objections 15
Number of representations 2
Number of supporting 6

Brook House

49 Pittville Crescent Lane
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL52 2RA

Comments: 16th July 2024

The work done at the property has positively enhanced an existing 'out of character"
property. | have no objection to the height of the fencing which is in keeping with many of
the garden boundaries along the road. The boundary is clean and smart. The improved
visibility along re-opened boundary is an enormous benefit to cyclists and drivers and the
new driveway is a great improvement to an area where parked cars repeatedly
encroached upon the junction.

56 Prestbury Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 2DA

Comments: 30th June 2024

The new fence is not appropriate for the area in terms of height and materials used. The
location borders a conservation area with many listed buildings. The frontages of houses
in the adjacent streets are subject to strict controls which maintain a character of the
area. The new fence does not fit this character. The previous fence was lower wooden
construction and should be restored.



Page 142

66 Prestbury Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 2DA

Comments: 14th July 2024

| have seen the posted notice regarding the fence at this address, my property is one of
the only properties to directly overlook this address and what has been erected gives me
no cause for concern, | support the property owner with the application.

2 Windsor Street
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 2DE

Comments: 24th June 2024
| have two ares of concern with this application

Firstly and most importantly the retrospective application for the fence. This varies from
the original planning in that it is a composite material which is not in keeping with the
area of historic buildings and detracts from the aesthetic of the conservation area that it
abuts. The fence is 1.8 metres tall and is within 1 metre of the footpath therefore is
outside the permitted size. This is a flagrant disregard of planning policy in the UK.

The previous boundary was in compliance with planning rules and in keeping with the
surrounding area.

My second objection is the relocation of the Leylandii - these fast growing trees are likely
to grow quickly and to remove water from the surrounding soil. This will directly lead to a
deterioration in the light levels in my garden and the ability for both myself and my
neighbour to grow successfully in our own garden area. My garden is surrounded by a
brick wall which exists on the plans | have from pre-1900 and | am concerned that
dehydration of the surrounding soil will damage the foundations of the walls. If these are
currently planted in the position of the proposed development they should be removed
rather than moved to an area where they will cause loss of light and possible subsidence
of a historic garden wall.

Kingston Cottage

7 Pittville Crescent Lane
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL52 2RA

Comments: 7th July 2024

Living opposite ,im not to up to date with all the laws of heights and colours but without
doubt the current owner has improved the property since taking it on.It might not suit
everybody but sometimes you have look at before and after.I believe the property has
been upgraded for sure.



Page 143

Laburnum Cottage

11 Pittville Crescent Lane
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL52 2RA

Comments: 18th July 2024

(Neutral ) No objections to the proposed garden shed . If it could be seen from pavement,
it could be hidden behind some screening and planting .

Before the property was sold ,the perimeter fencing was replaced with timber .

| do feel that this did look more unobtrusive , but the composite fencing is here now , and
, In the scheme of things , we've all got worse things to worry about .

I'd prefer not to have the shed located, alternatively, along our garden boundary , as we
already have 2 garden buildings along 2 of our boundaries, and after the extension built
by the applicant , we are feeling really quite hemmed in .

I'm sure that a common sense solution can be reached .

1 Pittville Crescent Lane
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL52 2RA

Comments: 23rd July 2024
Letter attached.
Comments: 2nd May 2024

Letter attached.

12 Windsor Street
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 2DE

Comments: 23rd June 2024

The previous fence was low and subservient to the existing building whereas the new
proposed (but in actual fact already built) fence and additional entrance with gate and
new pillars are very high and above the threshold requiring planning consent. In addition
they are on one of the principal elevations of the property - which detracts from the
property and is both unsightly and also not in keeping with the proximate conservation
area.



Page 144

97 Elm Grove Road
London
SW13 0BX

Comments: 24th July 2024

Having grown up in the neighbourhood it is sad to see that the character of the area has
been compromised by such an unsightly fence. The cheap plastic looking materials used
are ugly and totally inconsistent with those used at surrounding properties. The fence
needs to be a natural wooden construct to be in keeping. The material used combined
with its disproportionate height gives the impression of a "compound” rather than a
peaceful walkway towards Pittville Park. It is extremely sad to see that the aesthetic
value of the lane has been destroyed by the construction of this fence.

36 Windsor Street
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 2DE

Comments: 8th July 2024

The new composite fencing structure and concrete posts to the realigned boundary of the
property is much higher, and more intrusive, than the original low timber fence.

It is not sympathetic to the established local character of the road and the surrounding
period properties of the nearby conservation area.

The new gate and posts situated in the original driveway obscure the original front
entrance and elevation. Moving the main entrance to the main part of Pittville Crescent
Lane has led to loose gravel on the road and a reduction in the number of public parking
spaces. This has added to the difficulties of football fans, park users and now-since the
new nearby parking zone was introduced- also commuters, when trying to find
somewhere to park.

18 Windsor Street
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 2DE

Comments: 17th July 2024

The fence that was previously there was significantly lower and the materials were in
keeping with those used in other properties in the area, i.e. not garish composites. As a
result, the new fence stands out like a sore thumb as soon as one enters Pittville
Crescent Lane from Windsor Street. In addition, the gate and new pillars are very high
and above the threshold requiring planning permission. The overall effect does not
integrate with the 'feel' of the area, and on these grounds | object to granting
retrospective planning approval.



Page 145

26 Windsor Street
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 2DE

Comments: 30th June 2024

The fence erected at this property on its main frontage is above the height permitted. In
addition the vast majority of houses in this area and the adjoining conservation area have
open front gardens marked either by railings or a low wall. The green and open
impression this gives is in contrast to the height, design and materials used here.
Something like the previous lower wooden fence should replace it.

2 Little Cleevemount
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 3HT

Comments: 30th June 2024

My daily walk takes me past this property,l find the fence to be totally out of character
with the area and my fear is that if action is not taken by the planning authorities a
precedent will be established.

The material used is not what is permitted and the height is beyond the permitted
measurement for a boundary fence facing the roadway.

31 Brookbank Close
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL50 3NN

Comments: 4th July 2024

Pittville Crescent Lane was a modest suburban street until the re-orientation of no 3 was
changed, whereby the original frontage became the rear garden. This garden has now
been bordered by an extraordinary boundary fence, the composition of which is unnatural
and matches absolutely nothing, by way of colour, or materials to the general landscape.
It looks more like the boundary of a prison yard and certainly nothing of a domestic
nature. The pavement is now uneven and unsightly.

As planning permission was flouted over the fence | am concerned now about the shed
sitting on the boundary with No 1. although the height is correct | am concerned that it will
be heightened when built to use as another of the owners airb&b rentals. The shed's
closeness to their wooden fence could constitute a fire hazard, and cause dampness as
well as noise for its other immediate neighbours



Page 146

The Lodge

19A Pittville Crescent
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 2Qz

Comments: 10th July 2024

No problem with application for a shed at the property. Most people have one and in fact
there is a chicken coop next door which is lovely. Wish | could have some eggs. The
Fence in question | also have no problem with as its brown and looks like wood. There
are numerous different styles of fence, hedge and walls in our neighbourhood. Some are
much higher than this fence. Mine dates back to 1861 and is much higher. The family
who renovated this house have done a fantastic job with it. The new drive replaced an
old and dilapidated boundary fence which was bigger than the current replacement
around the corner. The result is better visibility and safety all round for pedestrians and
drivers. Parking is better too and the drive can accommodate 3 vehicles which previously
would have been on the road. It disappoints me when neighbours choose to look at the
negative instead of the positive. Lets make Cheltenham a better place for us all to live
together peacefully.

58 Windsor Street
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 2DE

Comments: 23rd June 2024

The fencing has already been erected and is not the height nor style in keeping with all
the surrounding properties and is in effect an eyesore.

3 Pittville Crescent Lane
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL52 2RA

Comments: 1st August 2024
A neat wood colour fence, lower than most rear walls in the same road ( classified as a

Highway) and only marginally higher than fence and wall erected in same road based on
plans passed last year by Council



Page 147

8 Windsor Street
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 2DE

Comments: 16th July 2024

| wish to lodge my objection to the ill considered 'proposed’ fencing at 3 Pittville Crescent
Lane. | say 'proposed’ as the unauthorized fence has already been in place for some
time, thus the retrospective application.

In my view the excessive height of this fence, and the use of unsightly composite
materials wholly detract from the general character of this area.

The vast majority of houses in Windsor Street, Pittville Crescent Lane and general
surrounding areas are fronted with either iron railings, low walls or timber fences and in
some cases hedging. While we accept the property at No 3 is not necessarily in keeping
with the primarily Victorian properties around, a similar form of low boundary treatment
would at least not only be subservient to the building but also offer some form of
continuity with the neighbouring properties.

The dominant current /proposed plastic fencing appears inappropriate to the property and
the area, giving the impression more of an industrial compound than a residential
boundary.

57 Pittville Crescent Lane
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

GL52 2RA

Comments: 7th July 2024

The property is greatly improved which our street has needed Support as great to see
investment in our area and this wood-look fence blends with other 1.8m fences but will
remain in good appearance due to its make up

No objection to shed

Delighted that original driveway was removed as cars going in and out of this corner
property always caused conjecturing and traffic issues on this short narrow stretch of
Pittville crescent lane

2 Evesham Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 2AB

Comments: 8th July 2024

| walk this way most days - the owner has done a great job of updating this house and
tidied up the corner with a smart new boundary fence - the development design is
contemporary and smart - and this property adds the general ambiance of the area - a
definite improvement over the tired look previously



Page 148

62 Windsor Street
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 2DE

Comments: 18th July 2024

The request for a retrospective retention of the fence is unacceptable: the fence is higher
than the original plan and it is made of a composite material vs wood as originally stated.
Welcome upgrades have been made but most of this build has been 'retrospective' and
in keeping with that is a further application for moving the garden shed which prompts the
question to the council: is it ok to build anything and then ask for permission after?
Leylandii are a principal cause of neighbour disputes, strains the water table and should
not be encouraged in a city environment.

14 Windsor Street
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 2DE

Comments: 23rd June 2024

The new boundary fence to no 3 Pittville Crescent Lane is extremely ugly and not in
keeping with the area. Made of a composite material, it differs from the original planning
application which was for a timber fence, which would be more harmonious with the
surrounding properties. To meet the various highway laws, it should also be lower. On
these grounds, | wish to make an objection to the retrospective planning application for
the fence.

54 Windsor Street
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 2DE

Comments: 28th June 2024

The fencing arrangement as completed, unlike original proposal,completely alters the
orientation of the house to face the main part of the lane, (unlike the original house which
faced the link road joining the main part of the lane to Windsor Street). It has created a
private parking area for the property including garage open onto the main lane which
prevents that stretch being used as public street parking.

Given the lane is heavily used for street parking during football matches and races, this
can only add to parking pressure outside other properties as well as there being greater
safety risks due to the occupiers cars reversing out on the corner.

| suspect there was a reason when the initial planning consent for the property was
granted that it was orientated to include generous off street parking which had minimal
impact on the highway. That surely would still apply



Page 149



| Foltnlle Ceocent Fapy
Pa W@/&m
9e 150 G52 apa
, , , ;
ltead of ﬂw@éc;zw@;d /‘/M@%;Wﬂ’/ 1" My Zolh
//b,ﬁ()é“&/ Woooln W[en Shed at g ﬁ/[ivi//() Cevand ban
Rel ! 24jook3 | [£us.

1wk 1o state o fSowiy vhyeclionsts o covelpment.

[ Yo eppmard to be an ambiiows pigect fir @ 1 &§hed
5576’(’6@“ an (e Al st hap Deen Px%/@%aﬁfﬁ? @W{L}’
Nt m Q@fo{el’l space.

2. Given the adverlomends on Hir BB for Lheo piepery
U fear that Gus cb Will b Made avad pble
P Papeg Guens |

3 dn e plannipy @Wticchwh b states po electncel
Wstalalion p;mposfa/ in the shed. | far Ghal Furthel
walhonged dovelopmend will lake plae  ofter
ﬁ&wn@ WWS‘%& on bRk been WJ (

b The prxinuly of e shed to the boun fenciy,
ruses Che W&&éw Whe Ther Icentt Space
RS oY Pulyle  Mainlen ;ZW

0. IF w uortant that %t’fg//{/’@ stould 1 provicled
6 prevend overspill onts Ui Rnce, o thence te
ey jrperty

Would Yo b Yand QMW@%} e do tent Yy /O@Wé/fﬂ




/ PJ%W{/@ Crenc
Page 151 Chotlen ﬁw,.j%@ﬂf hare
Gla2 2 A
Head of Pevelopment Napapement 215t guly 2024
Retwospeclive  plannipig app Lication Lo Lo
f”i /f f dul : c;méw Rard Bt 2n1 b el
Fuythel Te ny et of [ Mg 202l he |
phatogrephic “en olonee, which 1 i, ?%ow
Vath i plannipg apoticidion.

[ wiah ﬁo shpect te the plannqig application {or
Femu@ﬂ at G W@f@. Yo o @ guuet revy dorlial
ca and G geems no MEasonN /4’7\/ a fenw of 1he
/A@(W, wivich 1 Pndemntand han breached plannyg
reg U cions ,/, fear tha prperty will Pecre c Come recal
MWW/@Z it v a means of Pudiiy fusthy chonges
te te site foom public goze fuyller more, bhe guals

: ,. - e qualdy
Gf thwy fence V) CﬁYLUCu% te e of%&na( de”m{l/ Consent
Letuch g?&eu%w/ wWoodlen ﬂuﬁ | |
“the fen ey af Chu /w? ht dependn tpon the ereclion
of Pllown” te support the galengy which o of «
concrele constclion and v again tola lly out of lespg
with o renq C@//QL a/ envuoment,

In malnyg Chere ofbﬁétcéms' t the Tocal authonty
| &M ,Q(O;(j\uq up&naﬁ; a&/f@/ “+ Mh?/d ﬁ@a/\/«u{v
LQW[CJAO% usduch @(;gto te p»/o’éecé Ehe {n\/WDmeﬂi
wivch 4 and 8thed have @Weé/ Y Napy Year,

Would ou be Kuid emough 1 clalent my 1 deritity

for puhi ¢ vieand L




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6d

Page 153
APPLICATION NO: 24/01323/FUL OFFICER: Miss Claire Donnelly
DATE REGISTERED: 7th August 2024 DATE OF EXPIRY: 2nd October 2024
DATE VALIDATED: 7th August 2024 DATE OF SITE VISIT:
WARD: Hesters Way PARISH: n/a

APPLICANT: | Cheltenham Borough Council

AGENT: Adapt Architects Ltd

LOCATION: 1 Howell Road Cheltenham Gloucestershire

PROPOSAL: | External wall insulation to properties, rendered finish with brick SLP to
provide quoins and soldier course to front window at Howell Road,
Numbers: 1,3,5,7,9,11 and 17, Lipson Road, Numbers
2,4,6,8,16,20,22,26,30,32,34,36,38,40,42,44,48,
50,52,54,56,58,60,62,64,68,70 and 72.

RECOMMENDATION: Permit

m/sm%uﬁ Park
/!\ A%

O

i/
iy Al

B S,
L

SN LT s L
- .
Y S NS

This site map is for reference purposes only. OS Crown Copyright. AI] rig




Page 154
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL

1.1 The application relates to a humber of addresses on Lipson Road and Howell Road,
specifically twenty-eight properties on the Western side of Lipson Road and seven
properties on the eastern side of Howell Road.

1.2 The applicant is seeking planning permission for the addition of external insulation to the
identified properties with a render and brick slip finish. The submitted drawings also include
the proposal of the replacement of the front canopies to all properties.

1.3 The application is at planning committee as Cheltenham Borough Council is the applicant
and the landowner of the properties the application relates to.

2. CONSTRAINTS AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Constraints:
Principal Urban Area
Smoke Control Order

Relevant Planning History:
There is no relevant planning history that relates to this application.

3. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE

National Planning Policy Framework

Section 2 Achieving sustainable development
Section 4 Decision-making

Section 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities
Section 12 Achieving well-designed places

Adopted Joint Core Strategy Policies
SD3 Sustainable Design and Construction
SD4 Design Requirements

SD14 Health and Environmental Quality

Cheltenham Plan Policies
D1 Design
SL1 Safe and Sustainable Living

Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents
The Cheltenham Climate Change SPD (adopted June 2022)
Residential Alterations and Extensions (2008)

4. CONSULTATIONS
There are no consultation responses for this application.
5. PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS
5.1 The application has been publicised by way of 4 no. site notices displayed on Lipson Road
and Howell Road. Following the statutory consultation period, no responses have been

received from the public.

6. OFFICER COMMENTS

6.1 Determining Issues



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

Page 155

The key considerations for this application are design, impact on neighbouring amenity and
sustainability.

Design and sustainability

Policy SD4 of the JCS and policy D1 of the Cheltenham Plan require development to be of
a high standard of architectural design that responds positively to and respects the
character of the site and its surroundings. This draws from paragraph 135 of the NPPF
which seeks development to be visually attractive and sympathetic to local character.

Policy SD3 of the JCS requires development to demonstrate how they will contribute to the
aims of sustainability and be expected to be adaptable to climate change in respect of
design, layout, siting, orientation and function. The Cheltenham Climate Change SPD
(adopted June 2022), sets out a strategy for decarbonising homes over the next decade.
For residential alterations and extensions there is an opportunity to improve the
environmental performance of a home through the inclusion of technologies and features.

The application proposes the installation of external insulation with a rendered finish and
brick slip detailing to the front corner and above the front ground floor window of all
buildings. Details of the materials have been requested, however unfortunately specific
material details have not been submitted, and therefore details of the brick slip have been
requested by way of condition.

The dwellings are semi-detached, with a red-brick finish and pitched, tiled roofs and are in
the ownership of Cheltenham Borough Council.

The proposed external insulation would be approximately 100mm in depth, therefore
resulting in a nominal increase in depth of the buildings. A supporting statement sets out
that an external insulation system has been chosen over an internal insulation as ‘disruption
to the residents will be limited and the external insulation systems reduce the risk of creating
consequential damp and mould problems’. Officers note that only selected addresses are
to have the insulation added, and therefore in some instances one of a pair of semi-
detached properties would be altered. The depth of the insulation is small, however it is
likely that the addition could be noticeable. Furthermore, the properties are to have a
rendered finish; again, one of a pair of semi-detached properties would be rendered with
the other left as original; red brick.

The proposed installation of external insultation will improve the thermal efficiency of the
properties, therefore meeting the aims of Cheltenham Borough Council following the
declaration of a climate emergency and targeting net carbon zero by 2030. The project is
being supported by the Government’s Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund. As such, the
proposed works have environmental benefits that comply with the relevant policies and
guidance.

Officers acknowledge that as a result of the proposal there will be a visual change to the
properties included in this application, both due to the nature of the external insulation and
the use of render. However officers note that there is render and lighter colour brick used
on Lipson Road, and therefore the use of render would not be out of character in the street.

Whilst there would be a visual change to the properties as part of this application due to the
materials and addition of the insulation, when taking into consideration the environmental,
and wider benefits of the proposal in terms of sustainability, the scheme is considered to be
acceptable in this instance. As such, the proposal is considered to comply with the relevant
design policies and would meet the aims of the Council in terms of sustainability and Climate
Change.

The submitted drawings also include the proposal of the replacement of the front canopies
to all properties. The canopies would be a ‘pre-formed dual pitch with open apex’. The



6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

Page 156

design, scale and form of the canopies are considered to be acceptable and would not result
in harm to the character of the main dwelling.

Impact on neighbouring property

Policy SD14 of the JCS and policy SL1 of the Cheltenham Plan require development not to
cause unacceptable harm to the amenity of adjoining land users; this echoes section 12 of
the NPPF which requires development to be of a high standard of amenity for existing and
future users.

Following public consultation, no concerns have been raised from neighbouring residents.
The impact on neighbouring amenity has been considered. The insulation would have an
approximate depth of 200mm and therefore the impact on adjoining properties that are not
being altered would be very limited. As such, given the nature of the proposed works, there
are no concerns that there would be an unacceptable in terms of a loss of light, loss of
privacy or loss of outlook as a result of the proposed works.

The proposal would therefore comply with the relevant policies in terms of protecting
neighbouring amenity.

Other considerations

Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED)

As set out in the Equality Act 2010, all public bodies, in discharging their functions must
have “due regard” to this duty. There are three main aims:

- Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected
characteristics;

- Taking steps to meet the needs of people with certain protected characteristics where
these are different from the needs of other people; and

- Encouraging people with certain protected characteristics to participate in public life or
in other activities where participation is disproportionately low.

Whilst there is no absolute requirement to fully remove any disadvantage, the duty is to
have “regard to” and remove OR minimise disadvantage and in considering the merits of
this planning application the planning authority has taken into consideration the
requirements of the PSED.

In the context of the above PSED duties, this proposal is considered to be acceptable.

7. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

7.1

7.2

Taking the above into consideration, the proposed works are considered to be acceptable
in terms of design and meeting the aims of Cheltenham’s Climate Change SPD and Council
targets in terms of sustainability. Furthermore, there are no concerns relating to an impact
on neighbouring residential amenity.

As such, officers’ recommendation it to permit this application subject to the suggested
conditions below.

8. SUGGESTED CONDITIONS

1

The planning permission hereby granted shall be begun not later than the expiration of three
years from the date of this decision.



Page 157

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 The planning permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans listed in Schedule 1 of this decision notice.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3 No external brick slips shall be applied unless in accordance with:
a) a written specification of the materials; and/or
b) physical sample(s) of the materials.
The details of which shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area, having regard to
adopted policy D1 of the Cheltenham Plan (2020) and adopted policy SD4 of the Joint Core
Strategy (2017).

INFORMATIVES

1 In accordance with the requirements of The Town and Country Planning (Development

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the provisions of the NPPF, the Local
Planning Authority adopts a positive and proactive approach to dealing with planning
applications and where possible, will seek solutions to any problems that arise when dealing
with a planning application with the aim of fostering the delivery of sustainable development.

At the heart of this positive and proactive approach is the authority's pre-application advice
service for all types of development. Further to this however, the authority publishes
guidance on the Council's website on how to submit planning applications and provides full
and up-to-date information in relation to planning applications to enable the applicant, and
other interested parties, to track progress.

In this instance, having had regard to all material considerations, the application constitutes
sustainable development and has therefore been approved in a timely manner.



This page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW

The purpose of this report is to provide Members of the Planning Committee with an overview of all planning appeals that have been received
by the Council since the previous meeting of the Planning Committee. It further provides information on appeals that are being processed with

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING ON PLANNING APPEALS

the Planning Inspectorate and decisions that have been received.

RECOMMENDATION

To note the contents of the report.

Appeals Received

August/September 2024

window for french
doors.

Address Proposal Delegated or Appeal Type Anticipated Appeal Reference
Committee Decision Determination Date

78 Hewlett Road Steps to be built from | Delegated Decision Written N.A 24/00440/FUL and

Cheltenham basement level to Representation 24/00440/LBC

Gloucestershire current garden level, (Householder and

GL52 6AR change rear sash Listed Building)

6GT abed

/. Wa}| epuaby



Little Duncroft
Evesham Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 3JN

Change of use of
garage building as a
standalone
residential property.
Retention of external
cladding, easterly
facing window, roof
lights and boundary
fencing (part
retrospective),
(Resubmission of
planning application
23/01739/FUL).

Committee Decision

Written
representation

n/a

24/00471/FUL

09T abed



Appeals being processed

GL51 6RS

Address Proposal Delegated/Committee Appeal Type Outcome Reference
Decision
The Forge, Branch Use of land as a Delegated Decision Written Not Decided Planning ref:
Road, The Reddings | caravan site without Representation 23/01678/CLEUD
restriction as to Appeal ref:
layout or numbers of 24/00001/PP1
caravans. (Revised
application to
23/00936/CLEUD)
129-133 Marquees at 129 - N/A Written Not Decided Enforcement ref:
Promenade 131 Promenade. representation 23/00230/DCUA
Cheltenham Appeal Ref:
Gloucestershire 24/00005/ENFAPP
8 Imperial Square Installation of Delegated Decision Written Not decided Planning ref:
Cheltenham moveable planters. representations 23/02152/CLPUD
Appeal ref:
24/00012/PP1
Stansby House Erection of 2no. Delegated Decision Written Not decided Planning ref:
The Reddings detached dwellings representations 23/01538/FUL
Cheltenham following demolition Appeal Ref:
Gloucestershire of existing buildings 24/00013/PP1

T9T abed



3 Regent Street Retain existing Delegated Decision Written Not decided Planning ref:
Cheltenham exterior facade paint representations 24/00271/LBC
Gloucestershire colour. Appeal Ref:
GL50 1HE (Retrospective) 24/00014/PP1
22 Dinas Road Proposed installation | Delegated Decision Written Not decided Planning ref:
Cheltenham of a static home at representations 24/00637/FUL
Gloucestershire rear of property. Appeal Ref:
GL51 3EW 24/00015/PP1
14 Suffolk Parade Proposed demolition | Delegated Decision Written Not decided Planning ref:
Cheltenham of existing stores and representations 24/00079/FUL
Gloucestershire officing at rear of 14 Appeal Ref:
GL50 2AB Suffolk Parade, and 24/00016/PP1

construction of
detached 2 bedroom
coach house dwelling
(with pedestrian
access off Daffodil
Street)

29T abed



Appeals Decided

apartments, and
associated works

Address Proposal Delegated/Committee Appeal Type Outcome Reference
Decision
Adey Innovation Ltd | Demolition of the Delegated Decision Appeal Hearing Appeal Allowed Planning ref:
Gloucester Road existing office (25.01.23) 21/02700/FUL
building and erection Appeal Ref:
of a 66 bedroom care 22/00027/PP1
home for older
people (Use Class C2)
including associated
access, parking and
landscaping.
The Hayloft The Conversion of the Committee Decision Written Appeal Allowed Planning ref:
Reddings existing Representation 22/00749/FUL
dwellinghouse into 9 Appeal Ref:
self-contained 22/00028/PP1

€97 abed



159 High Street Proposed installation | Delegated Decision Written Appeal A and Planning ref:
of 1no. new BT Street Representation Appeal B Dismissed [22/00322/ADV and
Hub, incorporating FUL Appeal
2no. digital 75" LCD ref:22/00021/PP1
advert screens, plus and
the removal of 22/00022/ADV1
associated BT kiosk(s)
on Pavement Of
Winchcombe Street
Side Of Hays Travel
159 High Street
3 Apple Close, Replacement of Delegated Decision Written Appeal Allowed Planning ref:
Prestbury existing conservatory Representation 22/01145/FUL
with single storey Appeal Ref:
rear extension. 23/00003/PP1

Increase in ridge
height to facilitate
loft conversion with
rear dormer.

9T obed



37 Market Street Proposed side and Committee Decision Written Appeal Allowed Planning Ref:
rear extensions representations Appeal Costs 22/00708/FUL
(revised scheme (Allowed) Appeal Ref:
following refusal of 23/00004/PP1
application ref.
21/02361/FUL
Brecon House Construction of a Committee Decision Appeal Hearing (date | Appeal Hearing Planning ref:
Charlton Hill paragraph 80 22/03/23) Dismissed 21/02755/FUL
Cheltenham dwelling, estate Appeal ref:
Gloucestershire management 23/00001/PP1
GL53 9NE building, and
associated
landscaping, ecology
enhancements,
30 St Georges Place Conversion to form Delegated Decision Written representations | Appeal Allowed Planning ref:
7no. dwellings, 22/00839/FUL appeal

together with
extensions and
construction of new
mansard roof

ref: 23/00002/PP1

GoT abed



10 Suffolk Road

First floor extension

Delegated Decision

Written

Appeal Dismissed

Planning ref:

at rear of 10 Suffolk Representations 22/01340/FUL
Road on top of Householder Appeal Appeal ref:
existing kitchen roof, 23/00011/PP1
comprising of 1 new

bedroom and ensuite

bathroom (revised

scheme

22/00966/FUL)

101 Ryeworth Road Erection of two Non-Determination Written Appeal Dismissed Planning ref:
storey and single Representation 22/01162/FUL
storey rear Appeal Ref:
extensions and single 23/00006/PP2

storey front
extension.

99T abed



0/s 195 High Street Proposed installation | Delegated Decision Written Appeal A Dismissed [Planning Ref:

Cheltenham of 1no. new BT Street Representation Appeal B Dismissed [22/00328/ADV and
Hub, incorporating FUL Appeal Ref:
2no. digital 75" LCD 23/00013/PP1
advert screens, plus 23/00014/ADV1
the removal of
associated BT kiosk(s)

o/s23and 23 A Proposed installation | Delegated Decision Written Appeal A Dismissed [Planning ref:

Pittville Street of 1no. new BT Street representation Appeal B Dismissed [22/00326/ADV and
Hub, incorporating FUL Appeal Ref:
2no. digital 75" LCD 23/00015/PP1
advert screens, 23/00016/ADV1

St Edmunds, Sandy Conversion and Delegated Decision Written Appeal Decision Planning ref:

Lane Road extension of an Representation Dismissed 22/02064/FUL
existing coach Cost Decision Appeal Ref:
house/garage to a Dismissed 23/00008/PP1

single dwelling with
new access off Sandy

/9T abed



Telecommunications Proposed 5G telecoms | Delegated Decision Written Appeal Dismissed Planning ref:

Mast And Cabinet installation: H3G 16m Representation 22/02190/PRIOR

CLM26321 Glenfall street pole and Appeal Ref:

Way additional equipment 23/00018/PP1
cabinets

4 Dymock Walk Application for prior Delegated Decision Written Appeal Dismissed Planning ref:
approval for the representation 22/01075/FUL Appeal

construction of one
additional storey
atop the existing
dwelling (increase in
height of 2.13

(Householder)

ref: 23/00019/PP1

metres)
28 Westdown Erection of detached | Delegated Decision Written Appeal Dismissed Planning ref:
Gardens garage (revised Representations 22/01679/FUL
scheme to ref: Householder Appeal Appeal ref:
21/01789/FUL) 23/00012/PP1
129 -133 Retention of existing | Committee Decision Written Appeal Dismissed Planning ref:
Promenade temporary marquees representation 22/01373/FUL
at 125,127, 129, 131 Appeal Ref:
further two year 23/00007/PP1

period
and 133 Promenade,

89T abed



4 Red Rower Close

Two storey and single
storey extension to
the front and loft
extension and
dormer

Delegated Decision

Written
representation

Appeal Dismissed

Planning Ref:
23/00361/FUL
Appeal Ref:
23/00021/PP1

69T abed



Land Adjoining Residential Delegated Decision Appeal Hearing (Date | Appeal Allowed Planning Ref:
Leckhampton Farm development of 30 of hearing 18™ July 21/02750/FUL
Court no. dwellings (Class 2023 (rescheduled for Appeal Ref:
Farm Lane C3); vehicular, 12t July 2023) 23/00010/PP1
Leckhampton pedestrian and cycle

Cheltenham access from Church

Gloucestershire Road; pedestrian and
cycle access from
Farm Lane; highways
improvement works;
public open space,

53 Alstone Lane Erection of a single Delegated Decision Written Appeal Dismissed Planning ref:
storey dwelling on representation 22/02201/FUL
land to rear of the Appeal ref:
existing property 23/00017/PP1

201 Gloucester Road | Installation of raised, | Delegated Decision Written Appeal allowed Planning Ref:
split level patio area representation 22/00022/PP1
with boundary Appeal ref:
treatments 23/00022/PP1
(Retrospective).

8 Imperial Square Proposed change of Delegated Decision Written Appeal allowed Planning ref:
use from C3 (dwelling representation 22/00334/COU
house) to mixed use Appeal ref:

23/00009/PP3

of C1 (hotel) and E
(bar and restaurant).

0.7 abed



Land Adj Oakhurst Outline application Committee Decision Written Appeal Dismissed Planning ref:
Rise for residential representation 22/00112/0UT
development of 25 Appeal Ref
dwellings - access, 23/00020/PP1
layout and scale not
reserved for
subsequent approval
Telecommunications | Proposed 5G Delegated Decision Written Appeal Dismissed Planning ref:
Mast And Cabinet telecoms installation: representation 22/01937/PRIOR
CLM24981 H3G 20m street pole Appeal ref:
Princess Elizabeth and additional 23/00026/PP1
Way equipment cabinets
6 Marsh Lane Change of use from a | Delegated Decision Written Appeal Allowed Planning Ref:
single dwelling (Class Representation Costs Decision 22/01864/COU
C3) to a four bed Allowed Appeal Ref:
House in Multiple 23/00027/PP1
Occupation (HMO)
(Class C4)
Telecommunications | Proposed 5G Delegated Decision Written Appeal Dismissed Planning Ref:
Mast And Cabinet telecoms installation: representation 23/00431/PRIOR
Prestbury Road H3G 15m street pole Appeal Ref:
Cheltenham and additional 23/00029/PP1

Gloucestershire

equipment cabinets

T/ abed



218 High Street

Change of use of the
ground floor from a
retail unit (Class E) to
an Adult Gaming
Centre (Sui Generis)
and first floor to
associated storage
and staff area with
external alterations
and associated works

Delegated Decision

Written
representation

Appeal Allowed

23/00452/COU
Appeal Ref:
23/00028/PP1

1 Michaelmas Lodge
Lypiatt Terrace
Cheltenham

Use of area of land
for vehicle parking

Delegated Decision

Written
Representation

Appeal Allowed

Planning ref:
23/00262/Cleud
Appeal Ref:
23/00023/PP1

2/ 1 abed



Land at Shurdington | Full planning Committee Decision Written Appeal Allowed Planning ref:
Rd application for Representation (New 20/01788/FUL
residential procedure Change Appeal ref:
development now a hearing date is 23/00005/PP1
comprising 350 4t July 2023)
dwellings, open
space, cycleways,
footpaths,
landscaping, access
roads and other
10 Selkirk Street Erection of 1no. three | Committee Decision Written Appeal Dismissed Planning Ref
storey self-build representation 22/01441/FUL
dwelling on land Appeal Ref:
adjacent to 10 Selkirk 23/00030/PP1

Street

¢/ T abed



Eagle Star Tower
Montpellier Drive
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

Application seeks
confirmation that
works undertaken in
accordance with a
previously approved
change of use under
Class J, Part 3,
Schedule 2 of the
Town and Country
Planning (General
Permitted
Development) Order
1995 ref:
15/01237/P3JPA
enables the rest of
the conversion to
lawfully continue at
any stage

Delegated Decision

Written
Representation

Appeal Dismissed

Planning Ref:
23/01347/CLPUD
Appeal ref:
23/00031/PP1

12 Pilford Road
Cheltenham

Erection of a Garden
Room

n/a

Written
Representation
(Enforcement)

Appeal Dismissed

Planning ref:
23/00001/DCUA
Appeal ref:
23/00025/ENFAPP

/T obed



Harwood House Proposed Delegated Decision Written Appeal Dismissed Planning
87 The Park replacement of brick Representation ref:23/00929/FUL
Cheltenham boundary wall with Appeal ref:
Gloucestershire an overlap wooden 24/00010/PP1
GL50 2RW feather-edge fence

(retrospective)
44 Springfield Close | A wooden 1 metre Delegated Decision Written Appeal Dismissed Planning ref:
The Reddings tall front fence with Representation 23/01566/FUL
Cheltenham open slats around Appeal Ref:
Gloucestershire front garden with a 24/00008/PP1
GL51 6SF post sheath on corner

to prevent possible
damage and
reflectors put on
posts to add
awareness.
(Retrospective)
Resubmission of
23/01086/FUL

G/ T obed



Hilltop Stores

Demolition of existing

Delegated Decision

Written

Appeal Dismissed

Planning ref:

Hilltop Road retail unit and Representation Costs Application 23/01137/FUL
Cheltenham erection of 2no. Dismissed Appeal ref:
dwellings (revised 24/00007/PP1
scheme following
withdrawal of
application ref.
22/01728/FUL)
278 Old Bath Road Dropped kerb to Delegated Decision Written Appeal Dismissed Planning ref:
provide access from Representation 23/02056/FUL
Kenneth Close, and Appeal ref:
hard standing to 24/00009/PP1

facilitate off street
parking
(Resubmission of
planning ref:
23/00481/FUL)

9/ T abed



21 Glebe Road First floor side Delegated Decision Written Appeal Dismissed Planning ref:
Prestbury extension to provide Representation 23/02033/FUL
Cheltenham additional bedroom Appeal ref:
Gloucestershire and bathroom 24/00011/PP1
GL52 3DG accommodation, and

alterations to existing

dormer (revised

scheme following

refusal of application

ref: 23/01186/FUL)
3 Rotunda Tavern Retention of Delegated Decision Written Appeal Dismissed Planning Ref:
Montpellier Street temporary canopy Representation 22/01681/FUL

structure for two Appeal Ref:

years 24/00002/PP1
1 Coltham Fields Erection of 1no. two | Delegated Decision Written Appeal Dismissed Planning ref:
Cheltenham storey dwelling on Representation 23/00596/FUL
Gloucestershire land adjacent 1 appeal ref:
GL52 6SP Coltham Fields 24/00006/PP1

/1T abed



REPORT OF THE HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT, ENFORCEMENT AND COMPLIANCE ON PLANNING APPEALS AND LEGAL CHALLENGES

LEGAL CHALLENGES
Address Description Reference Reason
Telecommunications Mast Site Installation of 15m pole inc. 23/00551/PRIOR Alleged lack of consideration of
CLM26627 antennas, ground based health grounds in granting Prior
Lansdown Road apparatus and ancillary Approval
Cheltenham development

Gloucestershire

Authorised By: Chris Gomm 10t September 2024

g/ T abed



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the last meeting
	Minutes

	6a 22/01935/FUL Castle Dream Stud, Mill Lane
	Castle Dream Stud - representations

	6b 23/01424/FUL & LBC Glenfall House, Mill Lane
	Glenfall House - representations 23-01424-FUL
	ufm53_Neighbour_Comments
	Carver Knowles Letter of rep Redacted
	OAKFIELD FARM, MILL LANE   2
	OAKFIELD FARM, MILL LANE  Letter of rep
	ON BEHALF OF OAKFIELD FARM, MILL LANE  Letter of rep 2
	ON BEHALF OF OAKFIELD FARM, MILL LANE  Letter of rep

	Glenfall House - representations 23-01424-LBC
	Oakland Farm
	LBC Comments 


	6c 24/00631/FUL 3 Pittville Crescent Lane
	3 Pittville Crescent Lane - representations
	ufm80_Neighbour_Comments
	letter of rep 1
	letter of rep 2


	6d 24/01323/FUL 1 Howell Road
	7 Appeal Update

